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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's go back on the record.

2          Good morning.  My name is John Foreman.  I am

3 Chairman of this Committee, and we are continuing the

4 hearing in the application, our No. 144, of UniSource

5 Energy for a certificate of environmental compatibility

6 for a 138 kilovolt transmission line upgrade from the

7 Vail to Valencia substations.

8          Now, yesterday, we were in cross-examination by

9 Mr. Magruder of Mr. Warner and Mr. Beck.

10          Mr. Magruder, it is a new day.

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  Good morning, sir.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And we will look forward to you

13 engaging in a succinct cross-examination.

14          MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

16          MR. DERSTINE:  Matt Derstine appearing on behalf

17 of the applicant.  I wanted to mention that at the tail

18 end of Mr. Beck's direct testimony yesterday, he

19 testified to some cost numbers and cost number

20 comparisons.  I think overnight in reviewing that, he

21 found out that he was comparing a larger segment of the

22 alternative in Segment 4 rather than the bottom end

23 segment to the preferred route.  At some point we are

24 going to clear that up.

25          My understanding is Mr. Magruder is going to ask
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1 Mr. Beck about cost information on cross-examination.

2 That may be the most efficient way for Mr. Beck to

3 clarify and correct that record.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Mr. Magruder, you may

5 proceed.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you, sir.

7

8           EDMOND A. BECK and MICHAEL L. WARNER,

9 called as witnesses, having been previously duly sworn

10 by the Certified Reporter to speak the truth and nothing

11 but the truth, were further examined and testified as

12 follows:

13

14                CROSS-EXAMINATION CONTINUED

15 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

16    Q.    Mr. Beck, do you have a copy of Exhibit MM-2

17 which has a schematic of the Nogales switch and the

18 three-ring bus?  It is page 3 and 4.

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

20    Q.    Is that switch presently installed at the

21 Nogales tap, and what is it used for?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The Nogales tap includes a

23 three-breaker ring bus.  And that is what is, I believe,

24 you are referring to as the switch.  In previous cases I

25 believe Citizens or UNS Electric identified that as the
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1 switch.  But it is much more than just a single switch.

2 And it is at the Nogales tap.

3    Q.    And what does this switch do?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Before this three-breaker ring

5 bus --

6    Q.    Three-breaker ring bus.

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  -- was installed, the line going

8 to Nogales was simply a tap off of the line that went,

9 Western's line that went from Saguaro down to the Adams

10 tap near Benson.  Again, Saguaro is near Red Rock,

11 Arizona, not too far from Picacho Peak.  Being a tap of

12 that line, if there were an outage on the portion of

13 line from the Nogales tap location towards Benson, it

14 would take the whole line out all the way back to

15 Saguaro.  Likewise, if there were an outage from the tap

16 down to Nogales, it would take out all of Western's

17 system back to Saguaro.

18          This was installed, the three breakers were

19 installed such that if there is an outage on the portion

20 going to Apache to the east, the line back to Saguaro

21 from the Nogales tap could still stay in service leaving

22 power on to Nogales.  Likewise, if there were an outage

23 from the Nogales tap to the south, that breaker would

24 open and power would remain on from Saguaro down to

25 Apache.
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1    Q.    You consider that switch fairly important then?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There was a big improvement in the

3 reliability that existed in the system prior to it being

4 installed.

5    Q.    Looking at the diagram, it has Apache up on the

6 upper right-hand corner of the diagram?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

8    Q.    If Vail was substituted for Apache and the

9 voltages transform so voltage would not be a problem,

10 could this switch then be used to give the same

11 versatility and the same benefits you just mentioned,

12 but using Vail instead of Apache as a second source?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  By connecting to the TEP system at

14 Vail it would be a major improvement to both service to

15 UNSE as we well as upstream service to WAPA, but they

16 would lose their ability to get all the generation to

17 Apache or serve loads to the Benson line, which is what

18 that portion of the line is used for.  They would

19 effectively, WAPA, would turn their system over to TEP.

20          That's our problem, is Western Area Power's

21 system is their system.  It is not one that UNS or TEP

22 controls.  So a connection from Vail replacing Apache

23 would work great for UNS Electric in the upstream

24 portions of WAPA, but their major customer and source,

25 which is the Apache generation down in Benson, would be
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1 disconnected.

2    Q.    Thank you.  That's understood.

3          Let me ask it a different way.  What happens if

4 we put a fourth breaker instead of a -- and so that

5 there then would be a breaker so that you then would

6 have the option they could also keep the power going to

7 Apache, would that work?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Theoretically it would work.  It

9 would need to be studied.  And TEP would be willing to

10 work with Western if they were to request an

11 interconnection like that.  There again, we do not

12 control their system.  If they were to choose to try and

13 make an interconnection to TEP, they always have that,

14 the right and the option to request that, and correct

15 studies would be done.

16    Q.    The reason I am on this line is that we spent

17 $2.1 million for this three-ring bus breaker, and what

18 would happen to it if you abandon the Nogales tap?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That breaker system is a Western

20 Area Power asset.  They own that equipment.  Now, to get

21 it installed to improve reliability, Citizens at the

22 time paid for installation.  If we disconnect, if UNS

23 Electric disconnects from Western at the Nogales tap,

24 all the Nogales tap facility but for one switch is

25 Western's equipment, and they will keep it and use it
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1 for whatever they want to.

2          It still provides some value potentially for

3 sectionalizing their line; although, it really doesn't

4 do much good because there is not that much north of the

5 Nogales tap that they would be keeping on line.  But,

6 you know, it is their equipment.  They own it.

7    Q.    Your preferred alternative for Segment 1A, does

8 it go right past or over the Nogales tap?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It goes adjacent, alongside the

10 Nogales tap.

11    Q.    Alongside.  Do you see any merit in doing a

12 study to consider working with WAPA to make it that, to

13 keep the Nogales tap in commission and to possibly

14 enhance the capabilities for both, for actually three

15 different electrical systems, UNS Electric, TEP, and

16 WAPA?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  UniSource nor TEP receive a value

18 in making the connection to the Nogales tap for our

19 system.  We feel that the Vail connection will provide

20 more than enough capability for us to serve all the

21 Nogales load and the reliability that we need.  If, as I

22 said, Western had an interest in interconnecting to

23 improve their system, which it would be, we are willing

24 to work with them on that, but so far they have not come

25 forward and requested an interconnection like that.
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1    Q.    Would your National Electric Reliability

2 Corporation N-1 rating be improved if you had two

3 sources such as WAPA and TEP to furnish power to

4 UNS Electric?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, we are getting into an issue

6 of cost versus the value of that reliability.  If we

7 were to maintain a connection at the Nogales tap into

8 the Western system, we would be paying O&M charges for

9 the Nogales tap that we otherwise wouldn't be paying, as

10 well as have to have transmission service across their

11 system.  We could either have a point-to-point and pay a

12 flat reservation fee every month, or identify it as a

13 network resource, but -- or as a network, use it under a

14 network system, but to do that you have to identify

15 resources and load.  And if we are typically not serving

16 the load via that system, we do not have any resources

17 identified nor any load identified.

18          So I think Western would take the position you

19 take a point-to-point reservation which is a flat fee

20 per month, and if we reserve 50 megawatts, we pay the 50

21 megawatts for every month whether we use it or not.

22    Q.    That would be in addition to the fee you

23 discussed in your testimony for wheeling charge?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

25    Q.    Do you remember in your response to one of my
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1 data requests that the O&M charge was approximately

2 $23,400 a year for maintaining the Nogales tap?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That sounds approximately correct.

4 It is based on the three years that we have from

5 Western.

6    Q.    Approximately how long might it take to do a

7 study, and could the study be done and reconnect it to

8 the Nogales tap with a fourth bus breaker at some future

9 time?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  First of all, you can always do

11 studies.

12    Q.    Okay.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  And from our standpoint, we didn't

14 see any value in pursuing such a study.  We have no

15 control over Western or their system.  It would be

16 really their responsibility to come forward with a

17 proposed interconnection like that, because the support

18 would really be to their system.  They would be

19 connecting to a much stronger TEP system on the southern

20 end of their system, and all the advantage would be

21 theirs.  So to the extent they want to come forward and

22 request a study and look at interconnection, we are

23 willing and will do that.

24    Q.    Do you remember yesterday I discussed a

25 statement of interest with respect to a renewable energy
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1 proposal submitted by your company that would use the

2 Nogales tap?  The reason I am bringing it up, do we see

3 any future uses for the Nogales tap?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The proposal that you referenced

5 yesterday was from Southwest Transco, TEP, and

6 UNS Electric, and it really was for double circuiting,

7 changing the voltage of the existing 115 line to 230 and

8 making it double circuit with the concept that one of

9 those circuits would primarily be used by Southwest

10 Transco and TEP for future capability needs that those

11 two systems have.

12          The renewable piece is specifically related

13 to -- the only projects that Western is looking at are

14 projects related to renewables.  So it is identified as

15 a potential renewable project.  To the extent renewables

16 might connect to the system, there might be an

17 opportunity to get renewables across that system, but

18 the intent also was that the 230 line would interconnect

19 to TEP potentially at either Vail or South, which would

20 then give us access to that whole system regardless of

21 the Nogales tap.

22          MR. DERSTINE:  Chairman, I would like to object

23 further to this line of questioning.  I think it has

24 been established there may very well be future uses for

25 the Nogales tap, but that's not this case or this
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1 application.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, what is the

3 relevance of this to the issue before the Committee?

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  The application states if the

5 preferred alternative is selected that the Nogales tap

6 will be abandoned.  And I assume that that's what is

7 going to happen.  And we will stop.  I found the

8 information I needed and I don't need to ask more

9 questions on this subject.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good, let's move on.

11 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

12    Q.    Mr. Beck, with respect to reliability, what

13 quantitative analysis has been completed that would show

14 that completion of this project will improve the

15 reliability of power in the Santa Cruz area?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Did you say qualitative?

17    Q.    Is there any number?  Will you go 6,000 hours

18 between failures, move to 8,000 because of this project,

19 or some numeric measure like that that we could say that

20 we know that this project will show some improvement in

21 reliability?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Again, the purpose of this project

23 is really to meet a capacity issue that we are facing.

24 So that's the purpose of the project.  We have

25 identified that attendant to replacing wood poles with
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1 steel poles there will be some improvement in

2 reliability.

3          We did not do an analysis to try and come up

4 with the number of hours that might result, less hours

5 of outage that would result going to steel versus wood.

6 Just by inspection we noted that replacing all wood

7 poles to steel poles and going to a higher voltage

8 capability on the line that will reduce the potential

9 for lightning outages will have an impact on reliability

10 to some degree.  Again, we haven't put an hour number

11 against it.

12    Q.    For N-1, what is the minimum frequency of an

13 outage to obtain N-1 with respect to either, any of the

14 four elements that make up N-1, that is transformer,

15 pole, line, and source?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Again, we didn't analyze that for

17 this project.

18    Q.    Does Santa Cruz County now meet N-1 criteria?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.

20    Q.    Will it meet N-1 criteria after this project is

21 completed?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  And it is not required to.

23    Q.    You discuss the poles.  What criteria do you use

24 to determine if a wood pole needs replacement?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  In other areas of the system, if
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1 we were trying to analyze the life left in a pole,

2 whether or not to replace a pole, there are various

3 tests that can be done, including coring.  I know you

4 have identified one that is relatively recent.  We have

5 not, TEP, used that process yet.  But again, that is for

6 life expectancy of a pole, whether or not to replace a

7 pole.

8          In our case, with this project, keeping the

9 existing poles is not an option because it doesn't work

10 for 138kV line.

11    Q.    Can the present conductor, the wire in

12 Segment 1B that is not being replaced, it can presently

13 transmit 138 kilovolts without any problem, is that

14 correct?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

16    Q.    Does that same wire, which I think is a 595

17 wire, does that same wire exist almost down to Nogales?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, it does.

19    Q.    So the present wire, except the last few miles

20 north of Nogales, can still carry 138 kilovolt

21 satisfactorily, is that correct?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

23    Q.    Are the insulators satisfactory on these other

24 segments of the line?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, they are not.
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1    Q.    Are the insulator segments satisfactory on

2 Segment 1B?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, they are.

4    Q.    So the reason you have to change is really not

5 the line, it is the insulators are what you are trying

6 to change, is that correct?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is, we need to increase the

8 clearance from the ground as well as separation of the

9 conductors as well as the insulators.

10    Q.    Can the present line carry wire, the conductor

11 carry 120 megawatts worth of power, except for the last

12 couple miles before Nogales?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  You know, I don't believe we

14 actually studied that as part of this project.  We

15 studied this project with new conductor, because when we

16 rebuild this line, unless the residents of Santa Cruz

17 County are willing to shut off their power for months at

18 a time, we need to keep that line intact and in place.

19 So we will build the new line parallel and adjacent with

20 the new conductor, a higher efficiency conductor, and

21 then remove the old conductor once we are done.  So if

22 you are going down the path of why not just reuse the

23 conductor --

24    Q.    No, I am going -- have you seen Magruder Exhibit

25 MM-4, which is this, an excerpt of a table that was



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

398

1 prepared in another hearing that you and I participated

2 in?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have seen it.  And I am looking

4 it up again.  Yes.

5    Q.    And does that table imply that at least 120

6 megawatts could be carried on the line except the last

7 few miles?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is what that table implies,

9 yes.

10    Q.    Unfortunately, the page has ibid on the bottom

11 from the previous page so I can't give you the

12 reference.  I won't try and establish any more on that.

13          New subject.  Where will you deviate from the

14 existing 100-foot right-of-way when replacing poles?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's dependent upon the outcome

16 of this process.

17    Q.    On your preferred route where will you deviate

18 from the existing portion of the preferred route?  Where

19 will you deviate from the existing 100-foot

20 right-of-way?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We have identified the area just

22 north of Cañez where we proposed to go over to the

23 railroad, the area between Cañez and Sonoita where we

24 propose to go over on the railroad and a small piece

25 right around Old Tucson Road's intersection with Grand
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1 Avenue.  They are shown in the segment maps.

2    Q.    So that area just shown, you need -- you will

3 use 100 feet of right-of-way which is obviously

4 different than -- the preferred route isn't the one you

5 showed me, is that correct?  The preferred route is the

6 gold route on the Segment 2 that you are pointing at

7 now?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Right.  My intention was just to

9 point to the segment maps.

10    Q.    Okay, okay.  Yesterday the committee was asking

11 about the right-of-way when it is next to the railroad,

12 if that is chosen.  Approximately how close from the

13 railroad will those poles be?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  As I believe I testified

15 yesterday, we have flexibility to look at how close we

16 can put the poles relative to the railroad right-of-way.

17 There also can be potential flexibility to decrease the

18 right-of-way if that were the wish of the Committee.

19          But the way we do that is changing the span

20 lengths used for the line and potential attachments to

21 the poles.  The closer the poles are together, the

22 shorter the spans, the less potential blowout, and the

23 less clearance required or the less right-of-way

24 required to provide the clearance we need under the NESC

25 code.
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1    Q.    We had a discussion earlier this morning before

2 the hearing began concerning reduction of the

3 right-of-way width.  Would it be possible to maybe have

4 a right-of-way of less than 50 feet for a 138 kilovolt

5 line, since that is used by more than half of the

6 companies in the survey that we were discussing earlier?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, as I have said, there is

8 flexibility to reduce the right-of-way needed.  Whether

9 50 feet is satisfactory, I haven't done the calculations

10 to analyze that.  Obviously there are companies that

11 have reported that they do have 50-foot right-of-ways

12 for less than 230kV.  Whether or not they are meeting

13 code is a different question than what they are

14 reporting the right-of-way that they own.

15          You will find companies that have rights-of-way

16 that do not necessarily meet code clearance

17 requirements.  And typically that's based where they had

18 an existing right-of-way, they needed to upgrade a line,

19 they went in and upgraded that line on that existing

20 right-of-way, knowing that they didn't necessarily meet

21 code, but maybe had mitigating factors where they were

22 not concerned about the fact they didn't meet code.  It

23 is all dependent upon land use and what the adjacent

24 land use is.

25    Q.    In the area alongside the railroad, would you
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1 take special care to probably use the minimum

2 right-of-way as possible?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We are willing to take that into

4 consideration in our design, yes.

5    Q.    And also in vegetation management, would you

6 consider it reasonable to consider a condition that

7 would call using the five-year trim instead of the

8 clearing technique that takes away everything?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We are willing to consider various

10 options and factors.  One option would be to put much

11 taller poles in place so that the vegetation isn't as

12 much of an issue.  That's offsetting against the visual

13 impact of having taller poles for those that don't live

14 in that particular area.  They will be seen from further

15 distance.  But we are willing to look at those types of

16 items.

17          On the clearing issue, yes, there is ways to

18 mitigate the trimming that's needed.  We can go back

19 more often with the resulting higher maintenance cost.

20 There is a slight increased risk that, should a fire

21 occur under the line, you are probably going to take the

22 line out of service.  Either, it is either going to trip

23 out due to the smoke or, for fire fighting reasons, we

24 will take that line out of service to allow -- if they

25 are using air tankers or whatever we will have to take a
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1 line out of service for that.  But we can work with the

2 vegetation issue and take a look at that.

3    Q.    You mentioned an important area that we haven't

4 really discussed yet.  If the line was out of service

5 between the Kantor and the Cañez substation, could power

6 still be furnished to all of the customers in an

7 emergency in the Santa Cruz service area?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We are marginally capable of

9 restoring service with the local generation, but we

10 wouldn't, we would not be able to meet peak load with

11 the local generation in Nogales.  You said between

12 Kantor and Cañez?

13    Q.    That's what I said.  We get up to 22 megawatts

14 from the 46 kilovolt line.

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That would come in at Kantor, and

16 if the line stops between Kantor and Cañez, we don't

17 have that 22 available.

18    Q.    Okay.  If a line is out between Cañez and

19 Sonoita, could you still operate?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Marginally we can meet the load

21 today.

22    Q.    And if it was between Sonoita and Valencia,

23 could you still operate?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

25    Q.    Back to the line and the most contentious area,
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1 southern area of Section 2, yesterday we were talking

2 about possibly putting or recommending that the line go

3 to the west of the railroad, and one of the concerns was

4 use of concrete foundations.  Does your company use

5 concrete foundations frequently in other places?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We do use concrete foundations

7 typically on angle structures.  And when we have had to

8 put poles into a wash or a river, we do put concrete

9 foundations in.  Typically we are looking at 60 to 75

10 foot deep concrete foundations.  So in this particular

11 area with the groundwater where it is at, there is a

12 real issue drilling down that deep into the water table.

13    Q.    Have you had any discussions with our flood

14 control district on this subject?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Not on this subject, no.

16    Q.    Color of poles.  I would like to talk about the

17 color of the finish on the poles.  Two colors or

18 finished colors have been discussed in the hearings by

19 the public and other people so far.  One of them is a

20 dull gray stainless steel surface and another is a

21 Corten type surface.  Could you explain the advantages

22 and disadvantages of those two types of finishes?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, first of all, I believe you

24 meant to say dulled galvanized versus stainless steel.

25    Q.    I am sorry, galvanized, yes.
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Those have both been mentioned.

2 The TEP and UNSE --

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Excuse me.  We need to stop.

4          Ms. Webb, did you just take a photograph?

5          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Before you take more

7 photographs or do other things like that during the

8 hearing, would you mind at least advising us in advance?

9          MS. WEBB:  I was videotaped on the last one by

10 an outside company, so I didn't know.  I apologize.  I

11 will ask in advance the next time.  I am sorry.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Very good.  Thank you.

13          Proceed.  I am sorry for the interruption.

14          MR. BECK:  Relative to the pole color, the TEP

15 and UNSE standard for steel pole is Corten steel because

16 of maintenance cost issues and installation concerns.

17 The galvanized pole, you have to take special care

18 during installation that the galvanizing is not damaged,

19 because if you damage the galvanized finish, a steel

20 pole, in particular, in the portion that gets imbedded

21 in the ground, the accelerated corrosion on that pole

22 can make that pole worthless in a manner of years.  So

23 there is an additional aspect to the construction

24 process with galvanized poles in taking care during

25 installation.



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

405

1          There is also an additional cost to the

2 galvanized poles, which it adds probably -- on our

3 average pole for this project we have identified the

4 pole will be around $10,500.  For a galvanized -- for a

5 Corten pole.  For a galvanized pole we have identified

6 about 12,500 a pole.  So there is an additional cost for

7 the galvanized.

8          Can either type pole be used?  Yes.  Our opinion

9 is, internally at the companies, is that the Corten pole

10 tends to blend with the background we have in this

11 region better than galvanized does.  I know that's a

12 matter of perception and various people have different

13 perceptions.  We really see a problem with the

14 galvanized pole:  When the sun is behind, you get more

15 reflection off of galvanized pole, it will stand out

16 more.  But given the preferences, or personal

17 preferences, either type of pole will appeal to

18 different people.

19          And as we have briefly discussed, at least with

20 you, Mr. Magruder, and Mrs. Webb, is that we are open to

21 the concept of looking at using different color poles in

22 different segments.  Our preference again is to use

23 Corten throughout.  It makes the ordering, the

24 maintenance, all of our processes much easier.  It is a

25 cheaper product.  And it doesn't take as much care
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1 during installation to worry about damage to the finish.

2 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

3    Q.    One of the areas of concern mostly by the public

4 is seeing the poles.  Do you agree that the contrast

5 between the pole color and the background is probably

6 the key parameter to determine the visibility of the

7 pole?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Absolutely.  In fact, internally

9 at TEP we did a major study in the past looking at

10 coloration of poles, and we settled on what we all the

11 Mohave sage color as the best color.  We had kind of a

12 focus group.  That was determined to be the best color

13 to be used in the Tucson area for blending in.

14          The problem with that is that paint, after a

15 couple of years, starts to chalk, starts to turn

16 effectively white, so that some of those poles we

17 placed, we have a few in our system that are pretty

18 white.  They show up very well no matter where you are

19 at.  The Corten tends to blend in with existing poles

20 that you see and you are used to every day.  There

21 again, galvanized poles can work.

22    Q.    All right.  Yesterday I showed you, your

23 company, pictures of some of these poles.  Can I pass

24 them out to the Committee, and as an exhibit?

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are asking the witness for
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1 permission to pass materials out to the Committee, is

2 that correct?

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  No, Chairman.  Let me -- I would

4 like to enter an exhibit, that has pictures of some of

5 the poles.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is this an exhibit that you have

7 previously disclosed?

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  It has previously been discussed

9 and shown to the applicant.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And it is marked as Exhibit No.?

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  Marked as 17, MM-17.  I think

12 that's the next number.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And have you provided a copy to

14 the court reporter?

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  I would like to now.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Before you get too

17 excited, is there an objection?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  I guess it is an objection in the

19 nature of a concern.  I think Mr. Beck has already

20 testified that the company is open to a dull galvanized

21 finish as opposed to its preference of the Corten

22 finish.  I just don't want to spend too much time on

23 having someone try to convince this witness or the

24 Committee that one color is better than another.  I

25 think those judgments can be made, and candidly I think
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1 we are crafting language that would allow for that in

2 the proposed CEC.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Your concern is

4 noted.  Since there is no objection --

5          And I assume, Ms. Webb, you do not object.

6          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  I will allow you to

8 proceed.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  Can the reporter please tell me

10 the next number so I have got the right number.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

12          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chair, while he is passing

13 MM-17 or whatever, I did have a couple questions for

14 Mr. Beck.

15          Mr. Beck, you stated that there was

16 approximately a $2,000 difference between the weathering

17 steel poles and the galvanized steel poles, is that

18 correct?

19          MR. BECK:  That is correct.

20          MEMBER EBERHART:  And how many poles do you

21 anticipate for this entire project?  How many new poles

22 will be needed?

23          MR. BECK:  The existing line has 183 poles in

24 the portion to be replaced.  So we are probably talking

25 at least 150, between 150 and 180 poles.
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1          MEMBER EBERHART:  And the new segment in the

2 Vail area, how many poles would that require?

3          MR. BECK:  Approximately 30.

4          MEMBER EBERHART:  Approximately.  So what would

5 you anticipate as the cost difference between the two

6 for the entire project?

7          MR. BECK:  Well, there again our position is

8 that there are places for Corten and potentially places

9 for galvanized.  And so if you assume that maybe half of

10 the poles would be galvanized versus Corten, based on

11 some analysis, you are talking 100 poles times $2,000,

12 so couple million dollars.

13          MEMBER PALMER:  100,000.

14          MR. BECK:  200,000.

15          MEMBER EBERHART:  So the entire project, it

16 would be closer to half a million dollars?

17          MR. BECK:  Correct.

18          MEMBER EBERHART:  For beauty, in the eye of the

19 beholder type of change?

20          MR. BECK:  Yes.

21          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

22          MR. BECK:  And that's strictly upfront costs.

23 There are some added costs for maintenance related to

24 galvanized potentially that you don't have with Corten.

25          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

2          Mr. Magruder, proceed.

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have handed out, just to show

4 you some comparisons in this exhibit, MM-17.  The upper

5 picture is of the Kantor substation.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, again, Mr. Magruder, you

7 are talking now to the Committee.  This is your

8 opportunity to cross-examine Mr. Beck.

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Beck.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If there is something in these

11 pictures that you want him to make reference to, go

12 ahead.  If you want to incorporate this into your

13 testimony, then we should talk about it later.

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

15 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

16    Q.    Mr. Beck, the picture at the top, does that look

17 like it is the Kantor station?

18    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It looks awfully similar to the

19 Kantor substation I have seen, yes.

20    Q.    Okay.  And on the left we see some wood poles

21 and a Corten pole, the larger pole being the Corten

22 pole.  Do you agree with that?

23    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, that is correct.

24    Q.    And on the right there is some galvanized steel,

25 and you can see them, too, is that correct?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

2    Q.    Okay.  Shown on the slide in the board we have a

3 picture of the 46 kilovolt line on the right, is that

4 correct, looking south on the, the board, the screen?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, that is the portion just

6 north of Kantor substation.  The one line on the left is

7 the 115, the line on the right is the 46k.

8    Q.    And looking at that picture, if there was a

9 dulled gray galvanized steel pole, do you think that the

10 contrast between the blue sky would be less than the

11 present contrast as shown in the picture?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There might be slightly less

13 contrast.  I would like to point out that the Kantor

14 substation is galvanized steel back here, and these

15 structures here are Corten.  So you get back a little

16 bit of distance, there is a slight difference, but it is

17 not as noticeable.

18    Q.    In general when a mountain is in the background,

19 is that what would be preferred where a Corten pole

20 would be, from a visual viewpoint?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Typically that's the reason that

22 we came up with a darker color, makes sense, is because

23 we are surrounded typically by mountains.

24    Q.    And in the case where the sky is the background,

25 would that be a reasonable basis, for better aesthetics,
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1 using a dulled gray galvanized steel pole?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There again, it is a matter of

3 perception, who is looking at it.  If you are standing

4 underneath the pole looking at the sky, a galvanized

5 would be slightly less, have less contrast than probably

6 the Corten pole.  But if you are standing back at a

7 distance, I am not sure how much distance there is,

8 maybe a slight difference.

9    Q.    I live in the area of Segment 2.  In general,

10 from the Kantor substation south until the controversial

11 area, actually going through the trees and in the bosque

12 all the way to Cañez in general, I would probably guess

13 that 80 or 90 percent of those poles would probably be

14 Corten in my viewpoint, if I had to give you a

15 recommendation.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, are you testifying

17 now or are you asking Mr. Beck a question?

18 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

19    Q.    Mr. Beck, in the area of Segment 2 about what

20 percentage of those poles would have mountain

21 background?

22          MR. DERSTINE:  Objection; cumulative, asked and

23 answered.

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  Change subject.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am going to sustain the
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1 objection.  Because -- well, so let's move on.

2 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

3    Q.    What are your plans -- and this is probably to

4 Mr. Warner -- for including a project independent

5 archeologist to help survey other areas of new

6 transmission line installations?

7    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't think that is really a

8 call for Transcon, because they have been hired to help

9 us up to the application process and through a CEC.

10    Q.    Okay.

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  But we plan to have, as part of

12 our mitigation plan, an on-call biologist and/or

13 archeologist as needed for the project.

14    Q.    Will they be independent and, like in the case

15 of 111, certified from the respective agencies listed in

16 that CEC?

17    A.    BY MR. BECK:  At this point UNS Electric, slash,

18 TEP, neither company has those credentialed employees

19 that would be available to do that.  I can't commit at

20 this point that we would never have that.  And if we

21 hire one, that would be hired with the understanding

22 that they would do their job as they are supposed to.

23    Q.    And in addition to an archeologist, a biologist

24 would also be used in presurvey and during early

25 construction stages?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  As required, yes.

2    Q.    Now, Mr. Beck, I would like to ask a question.

3 How much will this project really cost?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, again, that will be

5 determined as an outcome of this siting process and what

6 conditions are placed on us.  We have put down an

7 estimate of what the preferred project would cost.  The

8 line itself, the transmission work, as we indicated in

9 the application, we estimated at $26 million.  The

10 project does have some added costs related to substation

11 work and the interconnection at Vail, and Mr. Derstine

12 had mentioned in his opening statement what those

13 numbers would be.

14    Q.    Can you show us those numbers?  Do you have a

15 slide or something that could show those numbers?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, actually the slides that we

17 have are strictly Segment 4 --

18    Q.    Okay.

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  -- because that was a discussion

20 point yesterday.  So we do have some slides we could

21 present showing the cost differentials between the

22 various segment options.

23    Q.    Okay.  We would like to see those.  Can you show

24 those slides?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  Can I clarify for the record that
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1 the slides I think that Mr. Beck is referring to and

2 that Mr. Magruder is inquiring about are new slides to

3 clarify the testimony and the cost testimony on

4 Segment 4.  So what you are seeing will be a new slide.

5 And we have copies of those to hand out to the

6 Committee.  If you would like a paper copy as well, we

7 can move it as an exhibit at the appropriate time as

8 well.  But we are going to be referring to a new slide

9 not in your exhibit and not admitted into evidence.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Let's have that new

11 slide, a paper copy of that, marked as UNS -- and is it

12 Exhibit 21?  Would that be the next one in order?

13          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I am told what will be

14 marked as UNS Exhibit 21 or UNS-21 are six slides total,

15 and collectively mark those as 21.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Would you like to

17 offer those into evidence now?

18          MR. DERSTINE:  I am happy to offer them into

19 evidence at this time with Mr. Beck's testimony to

20 follow.  Move for evidence.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay, all right.  Based upon the

22 avowal and assumption that the material would be, a

23 proper foundation will be established for it, then we

24 will admit Exhibit UNS-21.

25          (Exhibit No. UNS-21 was admitted into evidence.)
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, Mr. Magruder, proceed.

2 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

3    Q.    All right.  Mr. Beck, could you please explain

4 these slides.

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I can.  What we did overnight

6 was take our segment slides that identified the various

7 segment options that were part of the application and

8 then attached or overlaid onto those slides the

9 estimated construction and engineering costs, as well as

10 the estimated right-of-way costs.  I would like to point

11 out the right-of-way cost is our best estimate at this

12 time and will change over time depending on land values.

13          The first slide -- and you will notice in the

14 bottom right corner there is a slide number.  Those

15 slides correspond to the slides that Mr. Warner had in

16 his slide presentation.  So they are the same base

17 slides that were used in the application.

18          For Segment 4 on the preferred alignment, using

19 the existing line but for the one area by the Old Tucson

20 Road, Grand Avenue, we have estimated a total cost of

21 9.1 million for that segment with 3.1 million of that

22 being right-of-way.

23          The next slide, which corresponds to

24 Mr. Warner's Slide 57, that is showing Alternative

25 Alignment 1.  And that's where we deviate for a longer
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1 stretch pretty much bypassing Old Tucson Road.  That

2 total cost, 11.3 million, with 5.8 million of that being

3 right-of-way cost.

4          The next slide, corresponding to Mr. Warner's

5 Slide 59, this is the Alternative Alignment 2, existing

6 line east route.  Total cost 12.5 million, with

7 right-of-way being approximately 7.5 million of that.

8    Q.    Mr. Beck, may I ask you a question on that

9 slide?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Sure.

11    Q.    That cost, does that include the alignment to

12 north of Gold Hill Road, or does it include using the

13 preferred Old Tucson Road cut up to Gold Hill Road and

14 then continue to the east?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We have only an estimate and put

16 together numbers for the alternatives that were in our

17 application.  So we didn't separate out the portion from

18 Gold Hill Road north to Bravo Lane.

19    Q.    Would that hybrid approach reduce the cost?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It would reduce the cost relative

21 to the right-of-way portion that would not have to be

22 purchased from Gold Hill Road north, yes.

23    Q.    So comparing the first two slides with this

24 third slide in this batch, we see the first line with

25 3.1 million, the second one with 5.8, and the third



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

418

1 7.4 million.

2          Can you give an estimate looking at that on how

3 much that 7.4 million would be reduced if the

4 Alternative 2 that is north of Gold Hill Road was not

5 purchased?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Just by observation, I would not

7 be willing to make an estimate.

8    Q.    Thank you.  Continue.

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Okay.  To complete, on the next

10 slide, which was Mr. Warner's 62, here we are looking at

11 Alternative Alignment 3.  It is going on along Pendleton

12 Road on the north end, and then the existing line route

13 for the most part on the south, estimated 12.5 million

14 total cost, 3.7 million of that being right-of-way.

15          On the next slide, Slide 64, this is Alternative

16 Alignment 4 using Pendleton and what we had identified

17 as the east to west crossover route.  Total cost of

18 15 million, with 6.8 million of that being right-of-way.

19          The last slide, Slide 66, this one being

20 Alternative Alignment 5 going down Pendleton and then

21 the eastern route on the whole southern portion, we

22 estimate that a total cost 15.9 million, with 8.1 of

23 that being right-of-way.

24          I think the one thing that all these slides

25 point out is the extreme value of the existing
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1 right-of-way, the value of being able to use that

2 right-of-way for the new rebuilt line.

3    Q.    Mr. Beck, if you look at Slide 64 and 66 at the

4 same time, is the only difference between 64 and 66 the

5 area south of Gold Hill Road with Slide 64 showing the

6 present route and preferred route and Slide 66 showing

7 the Gold Hill Alternative 2 loop?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, that is the difference

9 between the two.

10    Q.    And therefore, if I took and subtracted the

11 difference between Slide 66 right-of-way and Slide 64

12 right-of-way, I would see approximately one and a

13 half million dollars difference.  Do you agree,

14 approximately one and a half million dollars difference?

15 Do you see that?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, that is correct.

17    Q.    So taking that difference of about one and a

18 half million dollars, then is that the additional cost

19 of using the Gold Hill Road southern route compared to

20 using the existing route just for right-of-way?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.  That would be an approximate

22 25 percent increase in the right-of-way cost for that

23 segment.

24    Q.    Thank you.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  How much longer do you
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1 anticipate your examination to last?

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am on my last subject, which is

3 cost.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

5 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

6    Q.    And I would like -- I have two subjects here,

7 but they are both fairly fast.

8          Do you have Magruder Exhibit MM-15, which is the

9 last one in the book, which shows your response to

10 Magruder data request MM-17?

11    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I do not have it in front of me,

12 no.  But I will have it shortly, I believe.

13          MR. DERSTINE:  Marshall, do you have an extra

14 copy?

15          MS. WEBB:  What number is that?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  15.

17 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

18    Q.    Do you have a copy of it now, Mr. Beck?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I do.

20    Q.    Could you look under subparagraph C towards the

21 bottom and read the last sentence.

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  For future environmental costs,

23 UNS Electric estimates spending approximately

24 $2 million.

25    Q.    Well, read the sentence before it, too.
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Total environmental costs to date

2 are approximately 3.1 million.

3    Q.    So if we add those two numbers together, does it

4 look like the environmental cost is about 5.1 million?

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

6    Q.    Is that considered high or low or average with

7 respect to a project of just upgrading some poles?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, if this were just simply

9 upgrading, that would be high.  But I think as we have

10 all seen in this case, this isn't simply just a simple

11 upgrade project that would typically historically not

12 run into the issues that we have had in this project.

13    Q.    Okay.  Can you turn the page and look on the

14 back side of Exhibit MM-15, which I call the Magruder

15 supplement.

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

17    Q.    I have listed categories and items in the left

18 column, and in the center column I have listed your

19 response to this data request, and then I have totaled

20 them in the right column.

21          In the first entry it says Vail substation, 1.5

22 plus million dollars.  Do you agree with that number

23 from your data request response on the other side?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is what we put in the data

25 request, yes.
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1    Q.    Your Slide 15 showed $4.4 million for the Vail

2 substation.

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The 4.4 million includes both the

4 line extension or construction, as well as the one and a

5 half million of transformer and infrastructure cost at

6 Vail.

7    Q.    Okay.  The slides that you have just given us a

8 few minutes ago showed some right-of-way cost.  You had

9 the total right-of-way cost in your data response as

10 $7.8 million.  Is almost all of that right-of-way cost

11 tied up in Segment 4?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The bulk of it is in Segment 4,

13 that is correct.

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, that

15 completes my cross-examination.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.

17          Ms. Webb, you may cross-examine.

18          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Chairman, would you indulge me

19 with one very brief statement that I would like to make

20 to the company?  Because there is really no other place

21 I can do it.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No.

23          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

24

25
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1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MS. WEBB:

3    Q.    How are you today, Mr. Beck?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am doing fine.

5    Q.    Good.  Mr. Beck, is it true that at my request

6 you provided Mr. Magruder and I salty snacks -- that was

7 my request -- and tables for this event?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The company did provide you

9 tables.  And we did have salty snacks yesterday.  And we

10 apologize the first day they weren't there because of a

11 glitch with the hotel.

12    Q.    Okay.  Thank you for that answer.  I will go

13 ahead and start now.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, this is not an

15 opportunity for you to entertain yourself.  If you are

16 here to ask serious questions about a serious topic

17 that's at issue before this Committee, proceed.  We are

18 not here to discuss salty snacks.  So if you have

19 questions, I am going to allow you to proceed.  If you

20 don't have questions that are meaningful, then your

21 cross-examination is over.  Do you understand?

22          MS. WEBB:  Am I allowed to reply?

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No.  You are allowed to start

24 questioning.  If you have questions, ask questions in

25 cross-examination.  If you don't have questions,
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1 indicate that to me and your examination will be

2 concluded.

3          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I have questions.  Thank you.

4 BY MS. WEBB:

5    Q.    Okay, Mr. Beck.  Isn't it true that you and I

6 have gotten to know each other in a capacity that's

7 better than it was a year and a half ago when we started

8 doing transmission line planning issues?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe we have a better ability

10 to communicate, get information between both parties.

11 BY MS. WEBB:

12    Q.    Okay.  Isn't it true that we run into each other

13 a lot at TEP and UNS Electric outreach events?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, I would like for you

15 to focus your questioning in on an issue that is

16 relevant to the Committee's decision in this case.  I am

17 glad that you and Mr. Beck are getting along well, or at

18 least better than you were before.  But we are

19 interested in something that relates to the merits of

20 the application that has been made.  So please, please

21 let's move forward to that.

22 BY MS. WEBB:

23    Q.    Okay.  How many public outreach events would you

24 say that we have attended together in the last year?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I can think of several offhand, at
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1 least twice, two sets of opportunities in this case at a

2 couple of different meetings each time.  So I don't know

3 the number.

4    Q.    Okay.  Would you define my role in the community

5 as interested in transmission line siting issues?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe that's the case, yes.

7    Q.    When you think of Santa Cruz County, would you

8 say that Mr. Magruder is in your top three of people

9 that are interested in transmission line siting issues?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

11    Q.    When you think of Pima County, would you say

12 that as a civilian I am in your top three of the

13 civilians in line siting issues?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  At this point going forward we do

15 know that, yes.

16    Q.    Okay, thank you.

17          You have been doing line siting issues for a

18 long time, haven't you?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I have.

20    Q.    And you have stated that you have been involved

21 in a lot of public outreach?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

23    Q.    Have you observed the financial cost to civilian

24 intervenors?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I do recognize that there is an
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1 obvious cost to being an intervenor, yes.

2    Q.    Thank you.

3          Can you define the company's definition of

4 upgrade for me.

5    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Relative to this project, the

6 concept of an upgrade was that we are looking primarily

7 to increase the voltage from 115kV to 138kV.  Also

8 associated with that there is the capacity issue that we

9 are trying to deal with by extending over to the Vail

10 substation.  Whether upgrade was the correct terminology

11 to use in the application, going forward we might use a

12 different term.

13    Q.    That was going to be my next question.  Who

14 decides within the company what terminology to use in

15 your flyers that go out to the public?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is a team of individuals

17 including both legal, our communications group, as well

18 as myself.

19    Q.    When you testified on Tuesday, did you observe

20 the confusion in the Committee members about replacing

21 poles at existing locations?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I don't believe so.

23    Q.    Do you remember Committee Member Noland

24 expressing confusion over whether or not a pole was

25 going to be replaced in the same location, or any other



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

427

1 Committee members?

2    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There was some -- whether

3 confusion is the correct term or not, some of the Siting

4 Committee members didn't recognize that we might change

5 span lengths and alter the location of poles.

6    Q.    Do you see how members of the public who don't

7 have the expertise or knowledge in these processes might

8 have confusion as well?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There is the potential for

10 confusion, and with each one of these cases we identify

11 new issues to try and address in future cases to reduce

12 that level of confusion.

13    Q.    Thank you.

14          In the application, in your prefiled testimony

15 you stated that there are other environmental concerns

16 associated with the Nogales turbines.  Can you please

17 tell me what those environmental issues, other

18 environmental issues are.

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Generally it is the issue that we

20 are running a gas turbine within the Nogales community.

21    Q.    Can you tell me specifically, because I just

22 don't -- when I think of a turbine I think of a fan.  So

23 can you tell me what other environmental issues are

24 associated with turbines.

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  A turbine generator has a
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1 gas-fired engine that turns the generator.  And so it is

2 a combustion process.  And just like in your car, there

3 are combustion byproducts that come out of that turbine

4 generator unit.

5    Q.    Does that go into the ground?  Does it leak onto

6 the ground or does it go into the air?  I am trying to

7 understand what the environmental issue is that you

8 spoke of in your prefiled testimony.

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, it is probably in the

10 application because I don't think we did prefiled

11 testimony, but...

12    Q.    Summary, it is in the summary.

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  In the summary, yes.  It is really

14 related to the airshed issues, the fact that you are

15 putting some products into the air by running the

16 turbine local.

17    Q.    Okay.  And I have heard some terms used

18 intermixed.  Can you please explain to me what the

19 relationship is between a turbine and a peaker.

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There are various types of turbine

21 units depending on their level of efficiency and their

22 output.  They either, are either classified as peaking

23 turbines, which are used to just shave the peak of load;

24 intermediate turbines, which cover the intermediate

25 range of load; it is, from the next level down is called
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1 base-load.  Those are the units are pretty much run all

2 the time.

3          And you wouldn't want to use these gas peaking

4 turbines for operation for base-load or for

5 intermediate.  They are very costly.  They put out more

6 potential pollutants.  And they are just not efficient.

7          So the units we have in Nogales are primarily

8 used for peaking, short-term use, and not constant

9 operation.

10    Q.    Okay.  So that's -- I am trying to understand.

11 So that's one of the reasons why you don't want to try

12 and do these studies to go ahead and keep the existing

13 line, because of the environmental concerns and the cost

14 associated with using this peaker turbine at Valencia?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We have done studies already that

16 have shown what we can do on the transmission system to

17 alleviate the need to use those peakers, and that has

18 resulted in the proposal that we have brought forward.

19 It is to limit the use of peaking turbines in Nogales.

20    Q.    Okay.  Have you seen my Exhibit EW-9?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have seen it.

22    Q.    Are you aware that there are a lot of people or

23 that made comments about their concerns about a

24 gas-fired plant at the Vail substation?

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, people have commented on
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1 that gas-fired potential at Vail.  The fact is that

2 Tucson Electric Power does have a permit from the City

3 of Tucson that would allow us to pursue such a turbine,

4 but it is not part of this project and has no

5 association whatever.

6    Q.    Okay.  Thank you.

7          Next subject.  This is a short one.  I do

8 understand the concept of a corridor and a right-of-way.

9 So I would like to ask you this about the corridor and

10 the right-of-way.  When you apply to State Land for the

11 lease, do you apply for the whole corridor or for just

12 the right-of-way?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Typically you would apply for the

14 right-of-way.

15    Q.    Okay.  You testified on Tuesday that one of the

16 benefits to this project would be that the

17 interconnection would provide an opportunity for UNS to

18 connect to a renewable system in the future if and when

19 in the future it wanted to do that.

20          Have you seen my Exhibit EW-11 that I mailed to

21 you and to counsel?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That's the one that came in last

23 night?

24    Q.    Uh-huh.

25    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes, I have seen it.
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1          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Chairman, may I --

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

3          MS. WEBB:  -- approach you with this and them

4 with copies?

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Maybe.  Let's talk about you

6 want to offer EW-11; correct?

7          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And EW-11 was sent to opposing

9 counsel last night, is that correct?

10          MS. WEBB:  Correct.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Is there an

12 objection?

13          MR. DERSTINE:  There is an objection.  I am

14 looking at Webb 11.  What it appears to be is a

15 collection of news articles, maybe some other things.  I

16 haven't looked through it entirely.  The first one has

17 to do with meetings on the Rosemont Mine.

18          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Chairman, that's a different

19 exhibit.

20          MR. DERSTINE:  Maybe I am looking at the wrong

21 exhibit.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, hand counsel your

23 exhibit.

24          MS. WEBB:  Yes, Mr. Chair.

25          Mr. Chairman, may I hand an extra one to
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1 Mr. Beck?

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sure.  Why don't you hand one to

3 me so that I will know what you are talking about, I

4 will be able to take a look at it.

5          All right.  Is there an objection?

6          MR. DERSTINE:  I guess I have the same objection

7 on relevancy in terms of this exhibit.  This isn't this

8 project.  It is another -- it is an RFP, or Webb 11

9 appears to be an RFP, a solicitation for bids for a

10 renewable project.  So I am not sure how it ties into

11 this case and the elements of this project.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you are not objecting on

13 disclosure grounds, you are objecting on relevancy?

14          MR. DERSTINE:  It is obviously late in the game,

15 but I guess I am more concerned with the relevancy.  I

16 mean I have looked at it.  I just don't know what it

17 would be used for.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, what is the relevance

19 of this exhibit to this proceeding?

20          MS. WEBB:  Mr. Chairman, one of my data requests

21 I asked specifically for projects that were related to

22 renewable energy.  I have made comments publicly about

23 my interest in transmission line planning and renewable

24 energy that were in my exhibits earlier in the game.  I

25 do have legal -- do you want me to read the reasons
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1 behind it?  I won't if you don't want me to because I

2 knew they were probably going to object.  So -- I am

3 sorry if I made a comment.  I am sorry.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You haven't articulated a legal

5 reason.

6          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I will articulate my legal

7 reasons why.  Mr. Beck testified that connecting to the

8 Vail substation would allow UES, the interconnection

9 would allow UES to attach to renewable energy in the

10 future if and when it occurred.

11          In the Palo Verde/Devers 2 case, Commissioner

12 Mayes and Commissioner Mundell both said -- I have the

13 article right here in front of me, here is the release

14 from the Commission -- that Arizona could become an

15 extension cord to California.  Commissioner Mundell

16 expressed concerns about the long-term needs of the

17 people of Arizona.

18          I would like to shrink that down to a smaller

19 level, because I expressed my concerns in a motion to

20 intervene about the repeated, the repetitive impacts to

21 the people of my area of -- in this project.  And the

22 CEC, it is my understanding from the statutes, is not to

23 be predicated on future need.  And this project is from

24 a documented source that the witness works for, TEP, and

25 UNS Electric which he already has stated that he is the
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1 head of the transmission line siting department for both

2 these entities.

3          Also, in Line Siting Case 137, the second half

4 was denied.  And part of the basis of how they denied

5 the second half, part of their justification was used in

6 the Grand Canyon Trust case, I believe.  And I have

7 that, I just wasn't able to finish reading it.  But

8 phase two was denied based on not enough showing of

9 need.  And I have not seen a study that shows population

10 growth for Santa Cruz County in the evidence that has

11 been presented so far.

12          And this is absolutely relevant because for

13 every reason that I just presented to you.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  It does not appear to me

15 to be relevant at all.  And so the objection will be

16 sustained.

17          Do you have further questions?

18          MS. WEBB:  Yes, I do.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Proceed.

20          Well, actually, no, let's take a morning recess.

21 We will take a 15-minute break.  We will resume again at

22 11:00 a.m.

23          (A recess ensued from 10:46 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.)

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, you may resume your

25 cross-examination.
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1          MS. WEBB:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

2 BY MS. WEBB:

3    Q.    Mr. Beck, are you ready?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Yes.

5    Q.    Okey-dokey.  All righty.  Let's see.

6          Are you aware that there is the revised statutes

7 that says that this project requires you to follow all

8 of the applicable federal, state and local policies?

9    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not sure whether there is a

10 statute or not, but I know that we have committed to do

11 that and will commit to do that in conditions.

12    Q.    Okay.  I don't know this, so I am just curious

13 to know, so I will preface by asking you.  Are you aware

14 that last year I walked around the entire Vail

15 substation before security arrived and took pictures?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I have seen communications to that

17 effect, yes.

18    Q.    You testified yesterday that you have one line

19 that runs from the Vail substation into Sonora, Nogales

20 or Nogales, Sonora, correct?

21    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Could you repeat the first from.

22    Q.    From -- well, if this project is okayed, you

23 will have a line that will run from the Vail substation

24 into Nogales, Sonora?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the form; misstates his
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1 testimony.

2 BY MS. WEBB:

3    Q.    Did you testify to that effect?

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, when an objection is

5 made --

6          MS. WEBB:  Sorry.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- it is customary to give me an

8 opportunity to rule on it.  I am getting old so I am a

9 little slower, but just give me time.

10          What is the relevance of this question?

11          MS. WEBB:  I have concerns of the Vail area,

12 about security at the Vail substation and homeland

13 security, and I believe that would fall under the

14 statute.  I just -- there is a question I don't know the

15 answer to.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  I will let

17 you go a little ways down this road.

18          Mr. Beck, do you understand the question?

19          Or restate it.

20          MS. WEBB:  Sorry.

21          MR. BECK:  I understand her question.  I can

22 restate what I testified to.

23          UNSE has a customer across the border in Sonora,

24 Mexico.  It is an individual customer.  The reason we

25 have that customer is SFE did not have a system that
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1 could reach that customer or it would be too costly to

2 extend their system.  They had to reach an agreement

3 with Citizens Utilities to serve that customer.  As I

4 said, it is in the range of one megawatt.

5 BY MS. WEBB:

6    Q.    Okay.  Actually, I just wanted to verify with

7 you that you do go into Sonora, Mexico, correct?

8    A.    UNS Electric does have one customer in Sonora

9 that is treated as a, under a retail rate tariff at the

10 Commission.

11    Q.    With these organizations that you mentioned you

12 work, or any other organizations, are there any

13 regulatory things in effect for an EHV substation that

14 you have to adhere to for security reasons?

15          MR. DERSTINE:  Can I, can I have Ms. Webb

16 misstate -- or restate the question?  I don't understand

17 it.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Tell us what you are --

19          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Try and restate the question.  I

21 had a little difficulty understanding it, too.

22          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

23 BY MS. WEBB:

24    Q.    The Vail substation is an EHV substation,

25 correct?



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

438

1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  That is correct.

2    Q.    Are there any regulatory agencies that you deal

3 with that have additional security concerns with

4 homeland security that you have to adhere to?  Because

5 that is the substation that serves my area.  And can you

6 understand my concern that it might be at higher risk

7 because it goes into a foreign country?

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, is this something that

9 you want to testify to later or --

10          MS. WEBB:  No.  I am just trying to understand

11 are there higher security measures that need to be taken

12 for these kinds of substations.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Let's see if

14 Mr. Beck can answer that question.

15          MR. BECK:  There is a series of rules and

16 requirements at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

17 that oversees the North American Energy Reliability

18 Corporation, NERC, all of those policies and

19 requirements apply to the interstate transmission grid,

20 which includes the TEP system.  And there are

21 requirements for cyber security as well as physical

22 security.

23          We do follow all of those requirements.  The

24 requirements do not go to where the power that may be

25 transported goes to.  The issues are with physical and
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1 cyber security related to the assets that serve the

2 UNS Electric grid.

3 BY MS. WEBB:

4    Q.    So my last question related to this subject.  If

5 you are granted this CEC over to the Vail substation, as

6 a consumer of TEP and a resident of that area, would

7 there be any security upgrades to the Vail substation?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  We have security in place as

9 it is.  Whether or not we add another line to the

10 substation will not impact how we treat security for the

11 station.

12    Q.    Okay.  You have testified that part of the need

13 is to, for anticipated growth in Santa Cruz County.  Can

14 you, can you point to which studies you have used to

15 project population in Santa Cruz County?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, the one that I have, that is

17 in my testimony in this case, there is a slide that

18 shows projected forecast load peak which is related to

19 load growth.  So that's the most pertinent for this

20 case.

21          There have been many studies that have been done

22 throughout many different processes for planning

23 purposes, starting at the Southeast Arizona Transmission

24 Study group, working its way up to the Southwest Area

25 Transmission group, on up to WestConnect, and ultimately
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1 into the biennial transmission assessment that the

2 Corporation Commission itself does.  And all of those

3 studies have identified a need for there will be load

4 growth in the Nogales/Santa Cruz area, and that there

5 are capacity issues today that should be dealt with, and

6 specifically points out the RMR, the required must-run,

7 local generation that should be reduced on a

8 going-forward basis.

9    Q.    Okay.  Do you have a population study,

10 anticipated population study for the area that I can

11 look at it?  Is it in like the population study similar

12 to the saturated load growth study done last year in

13 Line Siting Case 137?

14    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, we don't.  I do not have,

15 personally have a population forecast for the Santa Cruz

16 County area.  There is a different department within the

17 company that does the forecasting, and they base their

18 forecasting on historic load trends, known new business,

19 projections of residential customer growth.  And they

20 probably do have population projections.  I personally

21 don't have those.

22    Q.    Would you be able to get that population growth

23 trend?

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Well, it is really a -- I am not

25 sure what the right term is.  It wouldn't be something
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1 we would want to publicly release.

2    Q.    What is the difference between Santa Cruz County

3 and Pima County as far as releasing population growth?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It all depends on the time period

5 that we are talking about.  So in a relatively short

6 term there is business reasons that we may not want to

7 put down or release publicly what population growth

8 forecasts we are using.  There are population forecasts

9 that are available.  Santa Cruz County has done some of

10 their own.

11    Q.    Okay.  I am just trying to understand for myself

12 where I would be able to find these population growth

13 studies that I could see that are available to the

14 public.  As a member of the public where would I find

15 these?

16    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I believe if you go to the Santa

17 Cruz County website you will find some references.  I

18 know if you talk to Mr. Magruder, he has references also

19 he has used in the past.

20    Q.    Is that something I would be able to use as

21 evidence in the testimony?

22          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the question.  I think

23 she is being argumentative.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are asking the witness

25 again --
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1          MS. WEBB:  Withdraw the question.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- whether I would allow the

3 evidence in, is that your question?

4          MS. WEBB:  Would you?  I don't know.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is that your question?

6          MS. WEBB:  No.  I withdraw the question.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Thank you.  Proceed.

8          MS. WEBB:  Yes.

9 BY MS. WEBB:

10    Q.    So to your knowledge there are no TEP documents

11 that I could use to show population growth, projected

12 growth in the Santa Cruz County area?

13    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There has been previous testimony

14 in previous cases where we have talked or identified

15 future potential population growth.  Those are

16 available.  They are available on the ACC website under

17 the various dockets.  So there is historic information

18 that has been put out there.

19          As I said, I don't have population forecasts

20 that would be in my possession at all.  And I doubt our

21 forecasting group would release the information that

22 they used to base their forecasts on.

23    Q.    Okay.  All right.  On Tuesday you testified at

24 the interconnection at the Vail substation there would

25 be a cost to TEP -- small costs to TEP customers.  I am
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1 not exactly sure on the adjective.  Can you explain to

2 me what costs there would be to TEP customers at the

3 interconnection at the Vail substation?

4    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There will be a cost that TEP is

5 paying for related to the upgrade at Vail.  Whether it

6 goes into the customers' costs will be determined in the

7 future in a rate case.

8          The concept is we are putting in a 345kV to

9 138kV transformer.  It is good for 672 megawatts of

10 capacity.  We are looking for approximately 120 of that

11 to be allocated to UNS Electric, and therefore there is

12 a pro rata percentage of the cost of the transformer

13 that is assigned to UNS Electric and the balance is

14 assigned to TEP and it provides future capacity needs

15 for the TEP load area.

16    Q.    I am sorry for being confused.  I am not great

17 with the numbers.

18          Can you explain to me how then TEP can use

19 something that belongs to UNS Electric?  Because I

20 thought that the two-county rule said that they couldn't

21 do it.  So can you explain to me how that works that TEP

22 would get any benefit off of the transformer that

23 UNS Electric owns.

24    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The TEP system, the 138kV system

25 in total, is covered by two-county dollars.  This new
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1 transformer is being separated into two pieces.  There

2 is a UNS Electric piece that will not enter the

3 two-county funding mechanism.  That's the portion that

4 UNS Electric is paying for.  The balance of that will go

5 into the TEP system and ultimately becomes part of the

6 138kV system for TEP.

7    Q.    Okay.  And just so I understand, you are asking

8 in this case, though, for the CEC for the whole 345

9 transformer.  Am I understanding that correctly?

10    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No.  We have not -- first of all,

11 that's a rate issue really and should be in a rate case.

12 Relative to this project, we have identified the portion

13 of the cost of that transformer that is attributable and

14 would be paid for as part this project by UNSE.

15    Q.    I mis -- I apologize.  I want to go ahead and

16 leave the rates and costs alone for now.  I am talking

17 about the whole transformer, because it is included in

18 the application.

19          Can UNS Electric only use half of the 345, I

20 mean can you shut off the 345, but is it still a solid

21 asset that exists there?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It is a -- it will be a jointly

23 owned asset owned by the two companies, which is typical

24 in the industry.

25    Q.    Okay.  Is TEP applying for the CEC also?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  There is no CEC required to

2 install a transformer at a substation.

3    Q.    But -- okay.  And I am just trying to understand

4 this because I am a TEP customer.  Can this line exist

5 without that 345 transformer?

6    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The line could exist.  And it

7 could be interconnected to the 345 system.  There would

8 need to be a transformer.  Either UNS Electric pays for

9 the whole transformer or they pay for a portion.  But

10 the case isn't about the transformer, it is about the

11 line that extends from that transformer out to the load.

12    Q.    So I am understanding correctly in this case,

13 you are asking as part of the project to have this 345

14 transformer that will be shared by UNS Electric and TEP?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, because again, a transformer

16 is not part of a CEC process.

17    Q.    But it is included in the application, I think I

18 read that, is that true?

19    A.    BY MR. BECK:  We are just --

20          MR. DERSTINE:  I am going to object to the

21 question.  It is becoming argumentative.  Mr. Beck has

22 testified that the transformer is being installed and

23 described in the application, that the application is

24 not for installation of the transformer.

25          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  That explained it, thank you,
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1 Mr. Derstine, that it was in the application.

2 BY MS. WEBB:

3    Q.    Okay.  This is just a question about the

4 transformer, but it is about environmental effects,

5 Mr. Beck.

6          How much mineral oil is used in a 138

7 transformer?

8    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Offhand I don't know.  It is a

9 spec that's available.

10    Q.    Percentage wise is there more than mineral oil

11 required for a 345 transformer?

12          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the question,

13 relevance.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is the relevance?

15          MS. WEBB:  Environmental concerns for the area.

16 Mineral oil, when it does catch on fire, is very big and

17 burns very big.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So are you asking for, so you

19 are asking for how much mineral oil is involved in, is

20 found in a 138kV transformer, is that the question?

21          MS. WEBB:  What I am asking is the difference

22 between a 138kV transformer versus a 345kV transformer,

23 correct.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And again, the relevance here is

25 what?
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1          MS. WEBB:  Environmentally one is more

2 dangerous.  No, that's testifying.  One is more

3 combustible, or could be.  I guess I would have to ask

4 that question.  Maybe I should ask that question prior

5 to asking the other.  Maybe I need to build some

6 foundation from an environmental standpoint.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I will let you ask a couple of

8 questions in this area.  Then you are going to need to

9 move on.

10          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

11 BY MS. WEBB:

12    Q.    Mr. Beck, does this line, putting aside the

13 two-county rule, have the ability to operate on a 138

14 transformer?

15    A.    BY MR. BECK:  If this line is going to connect

16 into the TEP 345 system, it will require a 345 to 138kV

17 transformer.

18    Q.    Is there already a 138 bus that it could connect

19 into if it weren't for the two-county rule?

20    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It could connect in there, but

21 there is not sufficient capacity on that 138 bus without

22 the new transformer.  That's why TEP is paying for a

23 portion of the transformer, to increase its capacity

24 into the future, and UNS Electric is picking up a

25 portion to cover its needs for the future.
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1    Q.    Okay.  Thank you.

2          In your professional opinion, what number

3 constitutes a large number of transmission lines in an

4 area?

5          MR. DERSTINE:  Object to the question.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are going to have to

7 rephrase that question.  It is not understandable.

8 BY MS. WEBB:

9    Q.    In a visual landscape, how many transmission

10 lines traversing the visual line from a few different

11 perspectives, one being a car, one sitting, how many

12 lines and structures would you say constitutes a large

13 number?

14          MR. DERSTINE:  Same objection.  I understand

15 that Ms. Webb probably has a position and argument she

16 wants to make on this topic, but that's where it is

17 appropriate.  It is not a proper question.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, I think this might be

19 an area for you to explore in your testimony.  I am not

20 sure Mr. Webb -- Mr. Beck's being in this area would be

21 relevant.

22          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Thank you on that one.

23 BY MS. WEBB:

24    Q.    Okay.  Are there any tangible benefits to TEP

25 customers at this point for this project?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  The tangible benefit to the TEP

2 system is the 345 to 138 transformer that's being added.

3 It is an opportunity for TEP customers to get some added

4 capacity into the 138kV system while not paying

5 100 percent of the cost of the transformer.  So it is an

6 opportunity to share the cost with another entity and

7 not have as big of an increment of cost incurred before

8 it is needed.

9          Transformers are large units.  They are, for

10 lack of a better term, the installation of this type of

11 equipment results in a chunky addition to capacity.  You

12 will have to add large blocks of capacity at a high cost

13 to have an efficient system.  But you don't use

14 100 percent of that capacity on day one.  So when you

15 have an opportunity to share that capacity, that big

16 cost issue up front, that's the benefit to the TEP

17 ratepayer in the end, is that there will be added

18 capacity by adding that transformer.  But it is not at

19 the cost of the full cost of the transformer.

20    Q.    Okay.  But you don't have -- do you have an

21 intended project for that transformer now?

22    A.    BY MR. BECK:  It will become part of the TEP

23 system and will have load capability.

24    Q.    Thank you.

25          Would it be inaccurate to say that adding new
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1 transmission lines would be a detriment to the physical

2 environment such as plants and the dirt?

3    A.    BY MR. BECK:  I am not sure there is an impact

4 to dirt, but to plants, you do mitigate the issue.

5    Q.    But if there was an alternative using the

6 existing WAPA system, would there be any impact to --

7 some people do like dirt.  And -- I am sorry, I

8 testified.  I am sorry.

9          And would you agree that if you use the existing

10 WAPA system that there would be no impact to the

11 environment such as trees?

12    A.    BY MR. BECK:  No, because first of all, as I

13 have said, to get additional capacity on the Western

14 system would require upgrading that line.  It would

15 require reconstructing 115, 115 miles of 115kV line to

16 230 or double circuit 230 or double circuit 115.

17 Whatever upgrade you did on that line would require

18 rebuilding their line.  So you would be affecting 115

19 miles then for added capacity reasons.  We would still

20 be looking at ultimately upgrading at the existing 115

21 line from the Nogales tap to the south, so we would be

22 dealing with the same issues we have been dealing with

23 in this case relative to the mesquite bosques and so on.

24    Q.    I am sorry, I am referring to Segment 1A.  Have

25 you identified a mesquite bosque in the Segment 1A?
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1    A.    BY MR. BECK:  Again to that point, it would be

2 115 miles of rebuild versus four miles of new

3 construction.

4    Q.    Let me see here.  I think I am going to go to

5 Mr. Warner now, if that's okay.

6          Mr. Warner, how are you today?

7    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  I am fine.  Thanks.

8    Q.    Good.  In your testimony you mentioned in your

9 credentials there that you have 20 years of consulting

10 for utilities and president of Transcon Environmental.

11 Can you tell me some of the other companies you have

12 worked for, or some of the other agencies that you have

13 worked for and some of your projects.

14    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Yes.  I started out as a city

15 planner for the City of Hailey, which is the county seat

16 in Sun Valley, Idaho.  I was a -- I was the planning and

17 zoning administrator, the city planner and floodplain

18 administrator for that area.

19          I, I worked for Power Engineers.  I was the

20 environmental manager for Power Engineers.  I worked for

21 Dames & Moore Phoenix office.

22    Q.    Actually more specifically I was talking about

23 what projects have you done in your capacity with

24 Transcon when you have had Transcon.

25    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Sited transmission lines in
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1 California and worked on projects, both fiber-optic and

2 road projects and mining projects, mostly utility

3 projects from New York to Louisiana to the Midwest to

4 Pacific Northwest and California, and of course in

5 Arizona.

6    Q.    Speaking of Arizona, do you only work on state

7 projects in Arizona?

8    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  State projects?

9    Q.    Uh-huh.

10    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  I am not sure what you mean by

11 that.

12    Q.    Do you work on only projects that involve state

13 agencies?

14    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  No.

15    Q.    Can you name some other agencies that you have

16 worked with.

17    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  I have worked with the National

18 Park Service.  I have worked for the Bureau of

19 Reclamation.  I worked for the Forest Service.  I worked

20 for the Bureau of Land Management.  I have worked with

21 national monuments.  Again, some of those agencies, most

22 of the agencies with the Department of Interior that

23 manage land, I have worked with both of those.

24    Q.    Okay.  In your close you mention that this

25 project fulfilled the requirements of the total
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1 environment.  Can you tell me in your professional

2 opinion what total environment means.

3    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  I am not sure I understand the

4 question, Ms. Webb.

5    Q.    You said that this project -- I am paraphrasing.

6 And to my recall -- maybe Clark could bring up that

7 slide, the summary slide, if that would be okay with the

8 Chairman.

9          In the fourth sentence down, do you recall

10 saying that this project is environmentally compatible

11 or environmentally compatible with the total environment

12 of the project study area?

13    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Yes.  The intent there is to

14 really, what it is really talking about is that we are

15 trying to take a measurement of what is a significant

16 impact to, for the project, whether it is incompatible.

17 And this project in particular, the line has been in

18 place for such a long period of time, and largely the

19 communities have grown up around it.  And I think you

20 have heard the people talk about that.  Sometimes they

21 have grown up around it a little bit awkwardly, and so

22 that's why we are trying to improve the conditions by

23 moving it into other areas.

24    Q.    Okay.  Mr. Warner, again, can you give me in

25 your opinion what your definition of total environment
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1 is.

2    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  I would view that as in the

3 context of the biological, the cultural and land use

4 environmental conditions.

5    Q.    Do you know of any statutory definition of total

6 environment?

7    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Not that I am aware of.

8    Q.    Have you worked with other agencies that have a

9 definition under total environment?

10    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Not that I am aware of.

11    Q.    Have you worked with any agencies that have used

12 the word human environment?

13    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Oh, yes.

14    Q.    Can you tell me a little bit about that.

15    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  That's a common term in NEPA

16 compliance, and it is part of the, it is part of the CEC

17 guidelines I think in terms of how they perform an

18 analysis.

19    Q.    Okay.  Do they use any -- are you familiar with

20 the words cumulative impacts?

21    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Yes.

22    Q.    Would you characterize this statement -- and you

23 can answer it yes or no -- as accurate, that there are

24 cumulative impacts to the visual viewshed in Segment 1A

25 with transmission lines?
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1    A.    BY MR. WARNER:  Well, first of all, cumulative

2 impacts are evaluated certainly for NEPA, under the

3 National Environmental Policy Act.

4          I think what you are asking is whether a place,

5 whether some activities that are occurring in a location

6 would all gather up, if you gather all the impacts that

7 are created by existing activities that are being

8 performed in an area, that you put one more straw on the

9 camel's back, whether that basically breaks the camel,

10 and so what is that incremental impact.

11    Q.    And I guess what I am asking is, because you

12 have been doing this for so long, what is your

13 professional -- well, I withdraw that question.

14          I am going to probably for now say that's it,

15 give the Committee a break.  Thank you.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Redirect?

17          MR. DERSTINE:  None.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.  Thank you,

19 gentlemen.

20          Call your next witness.

21          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, the applicant would

22 call George Miller to the stand.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sir, do you wish an oath or

24 affirmation?

25          MR. MILLER:  Yes.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you have a left hand or a

2 right hand?

3          MR. MILLER:  I am sorry.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Choose, which would you like?

5          MR. MILLER:  Oath, please.

6          (George Miller was duly sworn.)

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  State your name, spell your last

8 name for the court reporter, please.

9          MR. MILLER:  George Miller, M-i-l-l-e-r.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I think you need to get closer

11 to the mike or have the mike amplify your voice a little

12 more or speak up, because we are having a little

13 difficulty hearing you over here.

14          MR. MILLER:  Very good.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Counsel, you may proceed.

16          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17

18                      GEORGE MILLER,

19 a witness herein, having been previously duly sworn by

20 the Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the

21 truth, was examined and testified as follows:

22

23                    DIRECT EXAMINATION

24 BY MR. GELLMAN:

25    Q.    Please state your business address for the
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1 record.

2    A.    I work with Transcon Environmental.  Business

3 address, 3740 East Southern Avenue, Suite 218, in Mesa,

4 Arizona.

5    Q.    And could you briefly describe your background

6 and experience for the Committee.

7    A.    Yes.  I am a senior planner with Transcon

8 Environmental.  I have about 20 years experience as a

9 planner and project manager in both the private and

10 public sectors.

11    Q.    And could you briefly describe your involvement

12 specifically in transmission line siting cases.

13    A.    Yes.  I have been involved in about 20

14 transmission line projects in Arizona, not always as a

15 project manager, but as a land use planner.

16    Q.    What will you be testifying about today?

17    A.    I will be testifying about the public agency and

18 tribal outreach efforts that took place as part the line

19 siting project.

20    Q.    And did you develop a PowerPoint presentation to

21 aid in your testimony today?

22    A.    Yes, I did.

23          MR. GELLMAN:  And for the record, that has been

24 marked and is in the binders as Exhibit UNS-5.

25 BY MR. GELLMAN:
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1    Q.    Do you adopt that PowerPoint presentation as

2 part of your testimony today?

3    A.    Yes, I do.

4    Q.    And the information contained in the PowerPoint

5 is true and accurate?

6    A.    Yes, it is.

7    Q.    Could you summarize the outreach and

8 notification process in general for this project.

9    A.    Yes.  This slide that's up on the screen right

10 now provides a summary of the primary outreach efforts

11 that took place on the project beginning in March 2007,

12 with the establishment of a project telephone line and

13 website.  After that point, a series of four newsletters

14 were submitted and three series of open houses, a total

15 of eight open houses altogether took place.

16    Q.    And as part of your testimony today, you can

17 respond to some of the questions posed during the

18 course, I believe, of the first two days regarding

19 public outreach and notification, specifically to the

20 area within the bosque of the landowners that have

21 provided public comment?

22    A.    Yes, I can.

23    Q.    And you could also provide testimony regarding

24 the public outreach notification to the area I am going

25 to describe as the bypass along the preferred alignment
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1 in Segment 4 where the alignment shifts from the

2 interconnection of Grand Avenue and Old Tucson, around

3 that area, and then back on the existing alignment the

4 Frank Reed Road?

5    A.    Yes.  I unfortunately was not able to attend the

6 field visit yesterday, but I think I understand the

7 issues.

8    Q.    Okay.  With that understanding, let's talk a

9 little bit or could you describe a little bit about, or

10 talk, describe the telephone information line.

11    A.    Yes.  As I mentioned, the telephone line was

12 established in March of 2007.  It was in both English

13 and Spanish.  And the message provided information about

14 the project, the need for the project, approximate

15 timelines on the project.  And also requested or allowed

16 whoever that was on the phone to leave a message, and

17 the messages would then be returned by a UNS Electric

18 representative.

19    Q.    And what content, turning to the next slide, was

20 on the project website?

21    A.    The website was also established in 2007.  And

22 it included a lot of the same general information that

23 the telephone line did regarding the description of the

24 project, what is being proposed, the purpose and need

25 for the project, approval timelines and then also
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1 allowed folks to submit a comment or provided a

2 telephone information line for them to provide a comment

3 in that way.

4    Q.    I notice on the depiction in this slide kind of

5 towards the top it has about UES.  Is it your

6 understanding that UES stands for UniSource Energy

7 Services?

8    A.    That's correct.

9    Q.    And is it your understanding that that's the

10 immediate parent of UNS Electric?

11    A.    Yes, that's correct.  And I forgot to mention

12 that this, the website for UNS Electric was a part of

13 this larger website of UES.

14    Q.    Did the project or the project website at some

15 point contain or have an interactive project map?

16    A.    Yes.  The interactive map was actually

17 established in November of 2008.  And it included

18 information about the project alternatives, as well as

19 existing line, and again the same information about the

20 project description.

21          The interactive map allowed people to kind of

22 zoom in on specific areas to look at their residences or

23 the parcels to find out where the alternatives were in

24 relation to those.  And it was updated at several times

25 as the project progressed to indicate various locations
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1 of the alternatives.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

3          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chair, Mr. Miller, to that

4 point, when, do you recall when a preferred route was

5 added to the website so that residents could look on

6 there and see which alternative was the preferred route?

7          THE WITNESS:  Not precisely, but I believe it

8 was in the March time frame, March 2009 time frame.

9          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

10          MEMBER WONG:  Question.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Wong.

12          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

13          Mr. Miller, you stated that the project

14 telephone line was in English and Spanish, is that

15 correct?

16          THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

17          MEMBER WONG:  Is the website also provided in

18 Spanish?

19          THE WITNESS:  The website itself was not, no.

20          MEMBER WONG:  Why did you have the telephone

21 message for information in Spanish?

22          THE WITNESS:  The thought process there was the

23 telephone line was actually advertised at different

24 locations in the newsletters and so forth in the Nogales

25 and southern Santa Cruz County area.  And it was
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1 determined that the telephone line would have the

2 Spanish translation.

3          MEMBER WONG:  So you thought that there was a

4 sufficient number of population of Spanish speaking

5 individuals that may be interested in this project, is

6 that right?

7          THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  And, again, on

8 the website the telephone line was indicated and it was

9 described that the message was in English and Spanish.

10          MEMBER WONG:  So if somebody that is Spanish

11 speaking took your offer and made the telephone call,

12 they received a description in Spanish.  Did that drive

13 the caller further to the website in that telephone

14 message?

15          THE WITNESS:  The telephone message, the person

16 of the telephone message, if they left the message, we

17 transcribed the message, provided it to the appropriate

18 UNS Electric representative, and they responded to the

19 message directly in English or Spanish.

20          MEMBER WONG:  So somebody that wanted to go to

21 the website, how would they know to go to the website in

22 the Spanish speaking version?

23          THE WITNESS:  Again, the information about the

24 website was provided in a number of locations, including

25 the newsletters themselves, which were also in English
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1 and Spanish.

2          MEMBER WONG:  But the website was not in

3 Spanish.  So how do you communicate that if -- I am not

4 clear.  You wanted to communicate to the Spanish

5 speaking population, but you didn't provide the details

6 in Spanish.  So I don't understand why, if that was your

7 intent, you didn't do that.

8          THE WITNESS:  I understand your question.  That

9 is correct.  And again, the telephone line was broadcast

10 clearly on the website, which led folks to comment in

11 Spanish on the telephone line.  And the response was

12 given then by UNS representative.  You are right, the

13 website was not in Spanish.

14          MEMBER WONG:  Let's go to the initial contact to

15 the public where your telephone number was advertised.

16 This public advertisement, was that the notices or radio

17 ads or newspaper ads?

18          THE WITNESS:  Yes, initially the telephone line

19 was established in March of 2007 and was provided at

20 various meetings and then was, throughout the process,

21 provided on the various newsletters, at the open houses,

22 on the comment forums, et cetera.

23          MEMBER WONG:  And that initial communication to

24 the public was in English and Spanish?

25          THE WITNESS:  That's correct.
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1          MEMBER WONG:  All of them or just some of them?

2          THE WITNESS:  I am sorry?

3          MEMBER WONG:  You said newsletters.  I am trying

4 to understand the initial contact that the public had to

5 even know to dial the phone number.

6          THE WITNESS:  We will get to the initial

7 newsletter here in a second.  Yes, initial newsletter

8 was translated in English and Spanish and provided that

9 information.

10          MEMBER WONG:  And advertisements to the public,

11 same?

12          THE WITNESS:  Yes.

13          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you.

14          I am trying to establish that, if you are -- if

15 you have an intent to communicate to a certain

16 population in their language, that it needs to be

17 consistent from the initial contact to the follow

18 through.  Otherwise, it is not thorough.

19          THE WITNESS:  Understood.  Member Wong, I think

20 as we proceed through this PowerPoint presentation it

21 becomes more evident our efforts to provide information

22 in English and Spanish.

23          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.

24 BY MR. GELLMAN:

25    Q.    I think we are done with the -- we were talking
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1 about interactive project maps.  Let's move to the next

2 map slide.

3          What outreach did UNS Electric and Transcon

4 conduct to engage agencies, jurisdictions and other

5 governmental and nongovernmental entities?

6    A.    The list you see in front of you is a partial

7 list, almost complete, but partial list of things you

8 would find in Exhibit J-7 of the application.  Transcon

9 and UNS Electric conducted a number of meetings with

10 agencies, nongovernmental organizations, and

11 stakeholders.  What you see on the right-hand side are

12 the various groups that were contacted.  These are

13 direct meetings.  And on the right-hand side of the

14 screen is the dates of those meetings.

15    Q.    And you referred earlier to providing the

16 telephone number at various meetings.  Did you provide

17 the phone number to these groups when UNS or when

18 UNS Electric and Transcon met with these groups?

19    A.    I cannot testify that the phone numbers were

20 provided at each of these meetings, but with the

21 landowners in particular, yes, the phone numbers were

22 provided.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Youle.

24          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

25          Mr. Miller, did you -- I notice that, unless I



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

466

1 am misreading it, Arizona Department of Game & Fish is

2 not on that list.  Were there any meetings conducted

3 with Arizona Department of Game & Fish?

4          THE WITNESS:  We did not have a face-to-face

5 meeting with Arizona Department of Game & Fish.  We did

6 send a letter to them and they responded with a very

7 thorough response and listed the species of concern.

8          MEMBER YOULE:  My other question was, I notice

9 that you had a meeting about two years ago, one or two

10 years ago with U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service, have you

11 had any subsequent meetings with them?

12          THE WITNESS:  Meetings, no.  There have been

13 follow-up conversations with Transcon's biologist

14 specific to surveys that we were being -- that we were

15 conducting in the area.

16          MEMBER YOULE:  And specifically with reference

17 to the endangered or threatened species and candidate

18 species?

19          THE WITNESS:  That's correct, including

20 southwest willow flycatcher.

21          MEMBER YOULE:  Thank you.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

23          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

24          Mr. Miller, I realize you said this is a partial

25 list.  Was there any agency contact with the Union
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1 Pacific Railroad?

2          THE WITNESS:  Yes, the Union Pacific Railroad

3 was contacted.  It wasn't a direct meeting, these

4 contacts were over the phone.

5          MEMBER EBERHART:  And was there any contact with

6 Western Power, WAPA?

7          THE WITNESS:  I may have to leave that for

8 Mr. Beck to testify about.  I am not familiar with the

9 direct contact with Western Area Power Administration.

10          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Proceed.

12 BY MR. GELLMAN:

13    Q.    Mr. Miller, is there a more, I guess, detailed

14 summary table included in the application at Exhibit J-7

15 to UNS-1?

16    A.    That's correct.

17    Q.    So this is just a summary of that information in

18 J-7?

19    A.    Yes.  The table in J-7 provides information on

20 who was part of these meetings for both the agency and

21 stakeholders, as well as the UNS Electric and Transcon

22 representative.

23    Q.    And among this list you have entities including

24 Rio Rico Properties and East Bridge Road property

25 owners.  So agency and stakeholder meetings were held
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1 not just with governmental entities but with other

2 entities as well?

3    A.    That is correct.

4    Q.    Let's transition and talk about notice to the

5 general public.  When was the first newsletter sent out?

6    A.    The first newsletter was sent out at the end of

7 December 2007.

8    Q.    And why December 2007?

9    A.    The project had progressed to the point where

10 UNS Electric and Transcon felt that they had done enough

11 background work and fieldwork to understand the general

12 needs of the project, including some of the encroachment

13 areas and so forth.

14          In addition, the siting study that was conducted

15 for the northern portion of the study area had been

16 completed.  And it was felt that that was a good time to

17 introduce this project to the public on a more grand

18 scale.

19    Q.    So where was UNS Electric and Transcon, where

20 were they in the analysis of selecting route

21 alternatives at this time, December of 2007?

22    A.    Well, as I mentioned, I think the siting study

23 for the northern portion of the area, which is I think

24 known as Segment 1A, was complete.  And the State Land

25 Department already indicated that the northern
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1 alternative was their preferred alternative.

2          And in addition, areas around Sonoita substation

3 and around Cañez, there were considerations of potential

4 reroutes in those areas as well.

5          The newsletter itself, as you can see, was a

6 four-page newsletter, had two pages of maps, three

7 insets.  And those insets themselves described the areas

8 of potential new routes at that time.

9    Q.    And this newsletter is included as a part of

10 Exhibit J-3 to Exhibit UNS-1, which is the application?

11    A.    That's correct.

12    Q.    And the newsletter was sent out in both English

13 and Spanish?

14    A.    Yes, it was.

15    Q.    And I think you talked a little bit about the

16 maps, but let me ask you a clarifying question.  Do the

17 maps basically show at this point the initial study work

18 that was being done?

19    A.    Yes.  The maps, one map was a general overview

20 map of the project with three inset areas, and the

21 second map were aerial photos that showed those inset

22 areas in more detail.

23    Q.    Turning to the next slide, was a notification

24 letter sent around this time to various state and local

25 agencies?
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1    A.    Yes.  A letter was sent, again a

2 four-page letter sent to 34 different federal, state,

3 and local agencies at that time.

4    Q.    And I apologize, Mr. Miller, I forgot to ask one

5 question about the previous slide.  How many mailings

6 were sent out regarding the first newsletter?

7    A.    For the first newsletter, approximately 5,000

8 mailings were sent out.  And these were focused

9 primarily around the existing alternative -- existing

10 alignment in these primary routes, reroutes, excuse me.

11    Q.    So turning back to the agency notification, that

12 was, those letters were sent out in January of 2008?

13    A.    January 25th, 2008, yes.

14    Q.    And why did UNS Electric and/or Transcon decide

15 to send those letters in January of '08?

16    A.    Well, similar to the first newsletter, we felt

17 at this point that we had the project description fairly

18 well in line with the existing alignment as well as

19 these three potential reroute areas or two potential

20 reroute areas in the northern route of Segment 1A.

21    Q.    Were the contents to the agency notification

22 letter similar to the first newsletter?

23    A.    Yes, it was, with the exception of a request for

24 data which we make typically for agencies to see if they

25 have additional information that they want to provide
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1 us.

2    Q.    And is a copy of the form of that letter as well

3 as the mailing list a part of Exhibit J-1 to the

4 application marked and admitted as UNS-1?

5    A.    Yes, it is.

6    Q.    Did you send this letter to Arizona Game & Fish?

7    A.    Arizona Game & Fish Department was one of the 34

8 letters that we sent out, yes.

9    Q.    And both Pima and Santa Cruz Counties were sent

10 a copy of this letter?

11    A.    That's correct.

12    Q.    And did you get responses to this letter?

13    A.    In total of the 34 letters that were sent out,

14 11 responses were received back.

15    Q.    Including from Game & Fish?

16    A.    That's right.  Game & Fish Department provided

17 information on special status species which we took into

18 account in our environmental analyses.

19    Q.    And were other issues raised in the responses

20 taken into consideration?

21    A.    Yes.  It ranged from agencies saying they really

22 didn't have an interest in the project or weren't

23 concerned about the project to providing input as far as

24 what would be required during project construction.

25    Q.    Turning to the next slide, was the same,



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

472

1 relatively the same letter sent to Native American

2 groups, tribal governments?

3    A.    Yes.  Right about the same time, on

4 January 25th, 2008, a letter was sent to nine different

5 Native American groups.  A total of 19 letters were sent

6 out to nine groups.  And the only difference between

7 this letter and the federal letter was a specific

8 request that if the tribes had any specific concerns

9 regarding traditional cultural properties or other

10 sensitive areas that they provide that input to us as

11 well.

12    Q.    And is a copy form of this letter as well as the

13 mailing list a part of Exhibit J-2 to the application

14 marked and admitted as UNS-1?

15    A.    Yes, it is.

16          MEMBER WONG:  Question.  Sorry to interrupt,

17 Mr. Chairman.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Wong.

19          MEMBER WONG:  Mr. Miller, I am sorry for the

20 interruption.  I didn't want to go too far along without

21 asking a question about the initial newsletter again.

22          THE WITNESS:  Okay.

23          MEMBER WONG:  Newsletter No. 1, did you state

24 you sent that to all residents along the entire project

25 route.
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1          THE WITNESS:  Yes, initially, because we felt

2 that this project was a rebuild project, and it wouldn't

3 affect people too far beyond the project extent, the

4 initial mailing of 5,000 was sent to residents along the

5 existing alternative as well as the project reroutes

6 that had been identified at that time.

7          MEMBER WONG:  How did you determine the

8 residents along that route?  What basis did you

9 determine the names and addresses?

10          THE WITNESS:  We went with an outside service

11 that provides that information.  And they get that

12 information through a zip code list, basically a mailing

13 list, if you will.  And so it wasn't a real even

14 boundary because zip codes obviously have a lot of

15 different zigs and zags.  But that information was sent

16 to the zip code list in that area.

17          MEMBER WONG:  And how do you know that's

18 accurate in terms of covering a high percentage, if not

19 all, residents within the actual area?

20          THE WITNESS:  At that time, we felt that that

21 was a solid way to cover off the majority of the

22 residents.  As the project went on, we realized that we

23 needed to improve that, and I think we will describe

24 that in future newsletters, how we attempted to do that.

25          MEMBER WONG:  But when you selected the outside



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

474

1 vendor to provide that information, how do you know that

2 vendor was accurate in collating that information?

3          THE WITNESS:  This vendor does this on a fairly

4 routine basis, and we took that to mean that that

5 information was accurate.  Again, we found out as we

6 went further along we were going to improve the process.

7 We understood that there probably were some folks that

8 were missed, including landowners, so we made the

9 improvements in future newsletters.

10          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you.

11 BY MR. GELLMAN:

12    Q.    I think we were talking about responses to the

13 tribal government letter.  I just wanted to make sure it

14 is covered.  Did you receive responses?

15    A.    Yes.  We received responses from five tribes.

16    Q.    And those are also included in Exhibit J-2 to

17 the application?

18    A.    Yes, they are.

19    Q.    What was the next step in the outreach and

20 notification process?

21    A.    The next step, as you can see on the screen, was

22 the first open house meeting series.  And this took

23 place in late February 2008.

24    Q.    And I notice a lot of the information about that

25 is already up on the screen.  But could you tell us
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1 generally, what was the purpose of holding this first

2 series of public open houses at this time?

3    A.    Yes.  At this time -- again, it was similar to

4 the newsletters -- it was felt that the project was

5 defined well enough that we wanted to bring that to the

6 public and allow them to provide comments on the

7 project.

8    Q.    And I notice that there were two locations in

9 Rio Rico and Nogales.  Why at this time wasn't there a

10 public open house held on the northern part of the

11 project in Tucson?

12    A.    In the northern part of the study area it was --

13 it is primarily state land.  And there are no residences

14 within a half a mile of any of the alternatives.  And at

15 that time we felt that it was not necessary to go beyond

16 that and inform the public.

17          Again, I think, as I mentioned, we learned these

18 things as we went on on this project.  And in the

19 second, third, and fourth newsletters, we covered off on

20 that area much more thoroughly.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Wong.

22          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23          And just to follow up on the question about the

24 Spanish speaking, I just want to make it clear that I am

25 not advocating or expecting every hearing and every
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1 process should have multiple languages.  But since you

2 brought up the point that you felt that the population

3 was such that your company felt it was important to

4 reach out to the Spanish speaking population, whether

5 you carried that further to say that in the newsletters

6 and other communications that the Spanish speaking

7 population you are trying to reach is encouraged to

8 attend the open house, and if that was your intent, to

9 reach out to them, whether you had Spanish speaking

10 translators, English, Spanish, so that they felt

11 comfortable to participate in the process as well, would

12 you talk about that.

13          THE WITNESS:  For this specific open house

14 meeting, is what you are referring to?

15          MEMBER WONG:  This one as well as other public

16 forums, whether the environment was such that you

17 encouraged that population you were trying to reach to

18 also participate beyond just the telephone call.

19          THE WITNESS:  Right.  For the first open house

20 meeting, the advertisements were put out in the Nogales

21 International.  And in addition, there was a number of

22 contacts made with homeowners groups in the area and

23 information was posted at different locations in Tubac,

24 Rio Rico, and the Nogales city hall.

25          MEMBER WONG:  You said the notices were posted
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1 in various public arenas where the public congregates.

2 And they were posted in both Spanish and English?

3          THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I am sorry.  I should have

4 mentioned that.  Sorry.

5          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Would this be a convenient time

7 to take a lunch recess?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, we can do so.  I

9 only have one or two more questions on this slide.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Then let's finish the slide.

11          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you.

12 BY MR. GELLMAN:

13    Q.    Mr. Miller, just to draw this down, what was the

14 study area like that Transcon and UNS Electric was

15 studying in February of '08 versus the latter part of

16 '08?

17    A.    Again, the study area that was being considered

18 at this point was in the immediate vicinity of the

19 existing alignment and of the two reroutes down in the

20 Rio Rico area.

21    Q.    So the study, is it fair to say that the study

22 area expanded during the latter part of 2008?

23    A.    That's correct.  And I think as we move on to

24 the next set of newsletters and open house meetings,

25 that will become evident.
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1    Q.    Finally on this topic, what kind of materials

2 were presented to the public, if any, at this first

3 round of open houses?

4    A.    For the first round of open houses the materials

5 presented were basic information about the project,

6 including pole heights, pole types, right-of-way widths,

7 that type of information, as well as words describing

8 the project's purpose and need, the CEC approval

9 process.  And like all the open houses we had, we

10 allowed folks to have maps and draw on the maps if they

11 prefer to, and also comment forms were available

12 throughout the, throughout the meeting also.

13    Q.    So people were invited to provide written

14 comments at this round of open houses?

15    A.    That's right.  And I think at one point in the

16 presentation here we have a copy of the comment form.

17 It requests or allows people to provide comment.  And it

18 also requests if they are interested in joining the

19 mailing list if they are not already on the list.

20    Q.    And these materials that were presented to the

21 public, they are included as part of Exhibit J-4 to the

22 application moved and admitted as UNS-1?

23    A.    They are.

24          MR. GELLMAN:  That concludes my questions on

25 this slide.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let's take the lunch recess.  We

2 will resume at 1:30.

3          (A recess ensued from 12:02 p.m. to 1:30 p.m.)

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  We are going to do a couple

5 housekeeping matters.

6          During a break this morning I was approached by

7 a Kathi Campana, who has spoken to us during the public

8 comment session.  And her husband, who has also spoken

9 to us during a previous public comment session, is here

10 today.  And she has dropped off a letter which

11 summarizes her public comments.  I have had it marked as

12 Exhibit COM-6 and we will have it accompany the

13 transcript as with the other public comment documents.

14          Because they are not offered under oath, my

15 interpretation of the law and the rules is they cannot

16 be entered into evidence.  The court reporter has

17 advised me that Docket Control may refuse to docket

18 exhibits which are not in evidence.  We will hope that

19 they don't do that, since that might appear to be in

20 violation of the statute.  But I am only the Chairman of

21 the Committee; I am obviously not in control of Docket

22 Control.  So I just wanted to advise the parties in

23 advance about that issue.

24          Now, that brings us to a second issue.  And

25 that's the exhibits that are in evidence.  By my count
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1 now we have Exhibits UNS-1, 3, 5, 7, 9, 12 and 21 in

2 evidence.  Does that comport with the notes of the

3 parties?

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I didn't formally

5 move UNS-5 into evidence.  But I am willing to do so at

6 this time.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  That is the PowerPoint

8 presentation that you are working on now, is that

9 correct?

10          MR. GELLMAN:  That is correct.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection to UNS-5?

12          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  It is now admitted.

15          (Exhibit No. UNS-5 was admitted into evidence.)

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I would like for the transcript

17 of the tour to be marked as UNS-22 and submitted to the

18 court reporter for inclusion with the remainder of the

19 transcript as soon as it is prepared.  And as I

20 understand, that's supposed to be prepared by next

21 Monday, at least that's what Diane Laur, the court

22 reporter who reported the tour, indicated.  So if that

23 can be transmitted to our regular court reporting

24 service so it can accompany the transcript of this

25 proceeding, I would appreciate it.
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1          All right.  Mr. Magruder.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, you were pretty

3 fast on the numbers for UNS exhibits.  Can I

4 double-check?  It is 1, 2, 3, 5 --

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No, 1, 3, 5, 7, 9, 12, 21, and

6 22 when it is submitted.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  22 will be admitted into

9 evidence when it is received.

10          (Exhibit No. UNS-22 was admitted into evidence.)

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  We were

12 in the direct examination of Mr. Miller.  Mr. Gellman,

13 you may proceed.

14          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

15 BY MR. GELLMAN:

16    Q.    Mr. Miller, I neglected to ask you a couple

17 questions about this slide.  Regarding the attendees for

18 Nogales, 35, what exactly is meant by attendees on this

19 slide?

20    A.    Attendees I guess is a little bit of a misnomer.

21 It is actually people who signed into the meeting.

22 There may have been other people who attended the

23 meeting who did not sign in.

24    Q.    What kind of concerns were you or was

25 UNS Electric/Transcon getting at this first series of
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1 public open houses?

2    A.    In Rio Rico the meeting was almost entirely of

3 residents, and they just had basic questions about the

4 project, again, pole heights, color of the poles,

5 right-of-way widths, what would happen to the

6 right-of-way if there were a reroute, that type of

7 thing.

8    Q.    Were you starting to hear from residents along

9 the south part of Segment 2, the bosque area that has

10 been the focus of public comment in a lot of the

11 testimony so far?

12    A.    Yes.  There was some initial comment about the

13 lower part of Segment 2.

14    Q.    And could you generally describe what you were

15 hearing at this time.

16    A.    At this time, the residents that were commenting

17 were pushing to have the existing alignment pushed to

18 the west toward the railroad.

19    Q.    Turning quickly to the, to something you said

20 about the first newsletter and the mailings that went

21 out, could you clarify how you came up with the number

22 of mailings that were sent out with that first

23 newsletter?

24    A.    Yes.  I think I misspoke a little bit.  The

25 first newsletter, close to 3,000 folks were notified.
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1 And that was within 300 feet of the existing line and

2 the preliminary reroutes.  And then in addition to that,

3 P.O. box holders in the Tumacacori and Amado area were

4 included in that list.

5    Q.    So is it fair to say that the total number of

6 mailings that were sent out with the first newsletter

7 was approximately 5,000?

8    A.    Yes.  I think there were approximately 3,000,

9 3,000 residents that were located within the 300 feet,

10 and then adding in the Tumacacori and Amado areas left

11 it at about 5,000.

12    Q.    And since there has been some questions from the

13 Committee about it, let's take a step back for one

14 question about -- and the question is:  What efforts

15 were taken during the entire process to inform Spanish

16 speaking residents about the project?

17    A.    Well, we did have a couple of questions about

18 that.  And I think the important thing is that a Spanish

19 speaking person was available at all times, whether it

20 was at a public meeting or returning phone calls.  In

21 fact, we did have several people from UniSource

22 available at the public meetings to respond to questions

23 in Spanish.  In addition, we mentioned the website, the

24 newsletters were posted to the website.  And again,

25 those newsletters, as they came out, were both in
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1 English and Spanish.

2    Q.    And by public meeting you mean public open house

3 meeting?

4    A.    That's correct.

5    Q.    Let's move to the next slide.  And when did the

6 second newsletter go out?

7    A.    The second newsletter was sent out on May 20th,

8 2008.

9    Q.    And why did UNS Electric and Transcon decide to

10 send out the second newsletter at that time?

11    A.    At that time, as Mr. Beck and Mr. Warner

12 testified, there had been kind of a substantial change

13 in approach where UNS Electric and Transcon determined

14 that there needed to be an expanded study area to

15 consider other alternatives along the project route.

16    Q.    Was that what basically had changed in terms of

17 the environmental analysis for the project?

18    A.    That's correct.

19    Q.    Could you briefly describe the contents of the

20 second newsletter.

21    A.    Yes.  The newsletter was three pages in length,

22 again with an English and Spanish translation.  It

23 included the map that you see on the right-hand side of

24 the screen which depicts the expanded corridor, which is

25 basically one mile from the centerline of the existing
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1 alignment, as well as the potential reroutes in the

2 area.

3    Q.    And is this newsletter also included in Exhibit

4 J-3 to the application?

5    A.    It is.

6    Q.    And was the telephone information line included

7 in this newsletter?

8    A.    That's correct.  And it also included the

9 locations of the open houses that were upcoming for the

10 project.

11    Q.    How many mailings of the second newsletter were

12 sent out?

13    A.    For this, for Newsletter No. 2, approximately

14 20,000 mailings were sent out.

15    Q.    Why 20,000 mailings of this newsletter?

16    A.    Again, as UNS Electric and Transcon tried to

17 refine the mailing list, what was determined is that in

18 Pima County where there were good records for both

19 residential and landowners, we went through for the full

20 mile or, I guess it is, two mile wide corridor.

21          In Santa Cruz County the records weren't quite

22 as refined so UNSE and Transcon determined that the

23 newsletter would go to customers, all UniSource

24 customers in Santa Cruz County.  And then in addition,

25 UniSource identified approximately a thousand additional
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1 names and numbers that they wanted to have on that

2 mailing list.

3    Q.    Okay.  So in relation to Segment 1A, of what we

4 are calling Segment 1A of the final proposed routes,

5 where did newsletters go in that area, May 2008?

6    A.    It is a little hard to see there, but it is in

7 the crosshatched area, very northern part of the study

8 area.  And that is within one mile of all alternatives

9 that were considered in the siting study.

10    Q.    Let's turn to the -- well, let me ask you before

11 we leave this.  Have you checked to see what addresses

12 or who was sent a newsletter specifically in the bosque

13 area of Segment 2, which has been the focus of public

14 comment testimony?

15    A.    Yes.  And just in the last couple of days we

16 have come back and looked at the mailing list and

17 verified that the speakers that spoke on the first day

18 all were notified of the project, as well as the

19 individuals that are speaking about the bosque area in

20 Segment 2.

21    Q.    And in reference to the bypass, the .9 mile

22 portion in Segment 4, preferred alternative, where Old

23 Tucson Road intersects with Grand Avenue, have you

24 checked to see whether mailing of this second newsletter

25 was sent to entities in that specific location?
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1    A.    Yes.  Again, in just the last couple of days we

2 verified the fact that the landowners for that area were

3 all notified.  And there are duplicate mailings to those

4 addresses.  We assume that some of those went to lessees

5 of the property as well.  And they all are UniSource

6 customers as well.  So they may have been hit up more

7 than once.

8    Q.    Let's turn to the next slide.  How soon after

9 the second newsletter was the second series of public

10 open houses?

11    A.    The second series of open houses were held about

12 a week later from the newsletter.

13    Q.    So approximately last week in May of 2008?

14    A.    That's correct.

15    Q.    And what was the purpose of holding the second

16 series of open houses at this time?

17    A.    Again, with the change in the project and

18 looking at the expanded study area, UNS Electric and

19 Transcon determined the need to bring that information

20 to the public and allow them to consider and look at

21 other alternatives within that expanded study area.

22    Q.    And there were three open houses held at this

23 time, including one in Tucson?

24    A.    That's correct.

25    Q.    Was that the one you have listed on this slide,
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1 the Tucson Airport Holiday Inn?  Was that the original

2 location for this, for that particular public open

3 house?

4    A.    No.  In fact, originally the meeting was held,

5 was scheduled at to be held at the U of A science and

6 technology park, which is closer to the beginning of the

7 project at the Vail substation.

8          At about two weeks prior to the meeting, the

9 folks, the management at the park decided that they

10 didn't want the meeting there, especially since there

11 would be some concerns about the public going through

12 their security gate.  So at the last minute UNS Electric

13 found a site, a Holiday Inn, Holiday Inn & Suites at the

14 airport in Tucson.

15    Q.    So how was the public notified of the change in

16 location for the Tucson public open house?

17    A.    Well, I guess I want to point out an error that

18 is in the CEC application itself.  There is a newspaper

19 advertisement there that shows the U of A science and

20 technology park as being the location for the public

21 meeting.  That was actually corrected.  And

22 unfortunately, we didn't catch that when we put together

23 the CEC application itself, but the newspaper

24 announcement was corrected and did show the Holiday Inn

25 at the airport as being the location of that meeting.
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1    Q.    And you have listed here the other ways in which

2 the public was notified of the second series of public

3 open houses?

4    A.    That's right.  In addition to the second

5 newsletter, there were radio announcements in both

6 English and Spanish, and newspaper advertisements in the

7 Nogales International, Green Valley News, Vail Sun, and

8 Sahuarita Sun.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Let me interrupt you for just a

10 moment.  I would like you to look at Exhibit J-3 to

11 Exhibit UNS-1, page 11.  This is the application.  And

12 on my copy of it, it appears that in the English and

13 Spanish lettering, there is a two- or three-paragraph

14 portion obliterated.  Is that portion the portion that

15 refers to the locations of the meeting?

16          THE WITNESS:  I apologize.  My copy does not

17 have page numbers on it so let me just page through

18 this.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It is Newsletter 2, dated

20 May 20, 2000 --

21          THE WITNESS:  Okay, I have that.  Which pages

22 were not showing?

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am showing on mine -- I am

24 sorry.  I am actually looking at your Exhibit 5, your

25 PowerPoint, page 11.  Back up a page.  It appears on
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1 mine, and you can see it there, there are portions of

2 the writing that are obliterated.  Does this have

3 anything to do with the address change situation?

4          THE WITNESS:  No.  Actually I think that's more

5 of a formatting issue with the newsletter itself.  That

6 is just white space on the newsletter.  What you can

7 barely see there off to the side are lettering of the

8 locations of the meetings.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So what we are seeing here is

10 not the full text of what was sent, is that correct?

11          THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  I am sorry.  That was my

13 error.  Thank you.

14 BY MR. GELLMAN:

15    Q.    Just to follow up on that point, is the full

16 text of what was sent regarding Newsletter 2 included in

17 Exhibit J-3 to the application?

18    A.    Yes, it is.

19    Q.    Regarding -- again going back to the public open

20 house series number 2 slide, Slide 12, the Tucson

21 Airport Holiday Inn & Suites, how far away is that from

22 the Vail substation?

23    A.    I would say that's approximately eight, eight or

24 nine miles away.

25    Q.    And was that, to the best of your recollection,
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1 the closest venue you could find to the Vail substation

2 and around Segment 1A to hold the public open house in

3 that area?

4    A.    Yes.  I know personnel from UniSource looked for

5 other locations.  It was relatively short notice after

6 the technology park backed out, but I know that

7 UniSource personnel looked for other locations, and the

8 Holiday Inn was deemed to be the most appropriate.

9    Q.    I know you have the list of attendees at the

10 bottom.  What was the attendance like at these public

11 open houses, this series?

12    A.    Well, as you can see, there were approximately

13 32 people who actually signed into the meeting.  And in

14 Tucson, most of those were residents with a person

15 representing Representative Gifford's office.  And in

16 Green Valley and Nogales I would say the vast majority

17 of those people were residents of the area as well.

18    Q.    And in general, what issues were the attendees,

19 the people that were there at these public open houses,

20 what issues were they bringing up?

21    A.    The primary issues were related to potential

22 alternatives that should be considered.  But again, they

23 were interested in right-of-way concerns, how much

24 right-of-way would be consumed, and also the look and

25 design of the project itself.
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1    Q.    Were they invited at this point to suggest

2 additional alignments to explore as part of the analysis

3 that UNS Electric and Transcon were undergoing?

4    A.    Yes.  At this meeting we had a number of maps in

5 addition to ones that were put on foam core for display

6 boards.  We also had a number of maps people could use a

7 marker on to place additional alternatives if they felt

8 that that was appropriate.

9    Q.    And were those suggested additional alignments

10 incorporated into the analysis as it moved forward?

11    A.    Those alternatives were considered as we moved

12 forward, yes.

13    Q.    What other materials were presented to the

14 public at this time?

15    A.    These were open house meetings.  So large

16 display boards were presented, and the display boards

17 had information ranging from basic project description

18 information, tower types, right-of-way widths.  It also

19 had a description of the environmental resources being

20 considered, the approval process, and how to get more

21 information about the project.

22    Q.    And were there comment forms, written comment

23 forms available at this time?

24    A.    Yes, there were.  And similar to the last

25 meeting -- or these comment forms were used at all of



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

493

1 the various open house meetings and allowed people to

2 make comments about the project, as well as a space for

3 them to be included on the mailing list for the project

4 if they weren't already there.

5    Q.    Turning to the next -- well, before I leave this

6 slide, were you getting any particular feedback about

7 the bosque area just north of Cañez at these series of

8 meetings?

9    A.    Yes.  Again, there were a number of residents of

10 that area.  And the general consensus was to move the

11 alignment toward the railroad, away from the existing

12 alignment toward the railroad.

13    Q.    Were you getting any indication at this point

14 that residents wanted it west of the railroad?

15    A.    West of the railroad?

16    Q.    Right.

17    A.    No, not at this time.

18    Q.    What was of the next step in the notification

19 and outreach process?

20    A.    A third newsletter was submitted.  And you can

21 see portions of that on the screen.  This newsletter

22 consisted of four pages, with two pages of maps, and

23 identified the alternatives that were being carried

24 forward as a result of the study area analysis.

25    Q.    And the date on the upper right-hand corner is
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1 when this third newsletter was sent out?

2    A.    That's correct.

3    Q.    And why did UNS Electric and Transcon decide

4 that this was a good time to send out the third

5 newsletter?

6    A.    Enough work had been done following the

7 expansion of the study area and looking at additional

8 alternatives that both the public as well as

9 UNS Electric and Transcon placed on maps.  And as far as

10 a land use analysis, environmental analysis, and so

11 forth, the lines that you see on these maps were the

12 remaining alternatives.  We felt it was important at

13 this time to bring those forth to the public and solicit

14 comments.

15    Q.    So these weren't the final proposed routes, but

16 they were just preliminary alignments at this point?

17    A.    That's correct.

18    Q.    How many mailings of this third newsletter went

19 out?

20    A.    Approximately 30,000 mailings went out for this

21 newsletter.

22    Q.    And why the difference between approximately

23 20,000 for the second newsletter and 30,000 for the

24 third newsletter?

25    A.    Well, again, UNS Electric was attempting to
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1 refine the mailing list and cover as many residents and

2 landowners as possible.  At this point a buffer was

3 created, a full buffer within one mile within the

4 project alternatives.  And also the Santa Cruz County

5 assessor's map and Pima County assessor's maps were

6 used.  The UniSource, a standing UniSource database was

7 considered.  And, also, UNS Electric customers were

8 added or were continued to be added.

9    Q.    And the 30,000 mailings shown in big numbers on

10 the screen, that's an approximate number?

11    A.    That's right.  I think it was just slightly over

12 30,000.

13    Q.    And the newsletter was like the first two, in

14 English and Spanish?

15    A.    That's correct.

16    Q.    And it is included in Exhibit J-3 to the

17 application?

18    A.    Yes.

19    Q.    And the newsletter includes both the website

20 information and telephone line?

21    A.    It does.

22    Q.    Turning to the -- I keep forgetting to ask this.

23 Before we leave this third newsletter, did it go out to

24 the residents of the bosque area just north of Cañez

25 substation?
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1    A.    Yes.  At this point the mailing list has been

2 refined to the point where residents of the bosque area,

3 as you call it, were all included on the mailing list.

4    Q.    And what about the bypass where Old Tucson Road

5 and Grand Avenue intersect?

6    A.    Yes.  The industrial facilities, warehouse

7 facilities in that area also were on the mailing list.

8    Q.    Now, we can go to Slide 14 of your PowerPoint.

9 How soon after the third newsletter was the third series

10 of public open houses?

11    A.    About two weeks.

12    Q.    And the purpose of the public open houses at

13 this time?

14    A.    For the third open house, we again wanted to

15 inform the public of the alternatives that were being

16 carried forward.  These aren't the final alternatives,

17 but these are the ones that were carried forward at this

18 time, and we wanted to solicit their input on those

19 alternatives.

20    Q.    And I see a location, dates, the advertising,

21 but could you tell us what the attendance was like at

22 this third series of public open houses.

23    A.    Yes.  In all, about 36 people signed up as

24 attending these meetings.

25    Q.    And were there materials displayed in this
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1 series of public open houses?

2    A.    Yes.  In addition to some of the same materials

3 that were provided in the second series of open houses,

4 new maps were provided, and again these included all of

5 the remaining alternatives that were being considered.

6    Q.    And was the, I guess, the flavor of the

7 attendees that were at these public open houses, were

8 they relatively the same as with the second series?

9    A.    Yes.  I would say in general that's the case.

10    Q.    And what kind of concerns and/or feedback were

11 you, you being UNS Electric and Transcon, receiving at

12 this point?

13    A.    Again, the bulk of the comments were coming from

14 the Tubac area and the Rio Rico area.  There were very

15 few concerns for the northern portion of the study area

16 or for the Nogales area.  The big concerns, again, were

17 some of the proposed alignments through the bosque area,

18 and then also along the railroad in Tubac.

19    Q.    To your personal knowledge were you, you being

20 UNS Electric and/or Transcon, receiving a push to go

21 west of the railroad or west of the railroad

22 right-of-way around Segment 2 near Cañez substation?

23    A.    No, not at this time.

24    Q.    Turning to the next slide, was a fourth

25 newsletter sent out?
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1    A.    Yes, the fourth newsletter was sent out.  This

2 was a biggy.  It was six pages in length with two pages

3 of maps.

4    Q.    And you should see a, I guess, a binder in front

5 of you with the UNS Electric exhibits.  Could you turn

6 to Tab 10, I believe, of those in that binder.  Actually

7 it is Tab 11.

8    A.    Okay.

9    Q.    Is that a copy of the fourth newsletter that was

10 sent out?

11    A.    Yes, it is.

12    Q.    And are you familiar with its contents?

13    A.    Yes, I am.

14    Q.    Does that appear to be a true and accurate copy

15 of Newsletter No. 4 when it was sent out?

16    A.    Yes.

17    Q.    And does that copy look to be in the same

18 condition as the copies that were mailed at the time of

19 the mailing?

20    A.    Yes.

21          MR. GELLMAN:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, I move

22 for the admission of UNS-11.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  No.

25          MS. WEBB:  No objection.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No objection, Exhibit 11 is

2 admitted.

3          (Exhibit No. UNS-11 was admitted into evidence.)

4 BY MR. GELLMAN:

5    Q.    When was -- was April 29th, 2009, the date in

6 the upper right-hand corner of your slide, was that when

7 the newsletter was sent out?

8    A.    Yes.

9    Q.    And could you briefly describe its contents.

10    A.    Yes.  At this point the primary purpose of the

11 newsletter was again to inform the public about the

12 project, any changes that had occurred.  And at this

13 point the preferred alignment was being shown.  And

14 again, we were soliciting input about the preferred

15 alignment.

16    Q.    And did this fourth newsletter include the

17 docket number of this siting application as well as the

18 date, time, location of these hearings?

19    A.    Yes, it did.

20    Q.    How many mailings were sent out?  Regarding the

21 fourth newsletter, how many mailings were sent out?

22    A.    It says 30,000 on the screen.  I think it was

23 slightly less than that, because between the third and

24 fourth newsletter a lot of duplication was found in the

25 mailing list that was sent for the third newsletter.
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1 And then also there was some returned addresses that

2 were removed from the mailing list.

3    Q.    So the mailing list for the fourth newsletter,

4 is it fair to say, was a refined version of the mailing

5 list of mailing list No. 3?

6    A.    Yes.

7    Q.    Throughout the process, was the public

8 encouraged to respond?

9    A.    Yes.  I think you will see on the screen that

10 will pop up here in a second a comment form that was

11 provided.  I mentioned this a couple of times in my

12 testimony.

13          And it is hard to see on the screen, but clearly

14 the comment form allows people to provide their name and

15 address, phone number and e-mail, space for a comment.

16 And also down at the very bottom it includes a question

17 about whether they want to be included on the mailing

18 list or not.  But this comment form was used at all of

19 the public open houses.

20    Q.    Was this the only form that you received written

21 responses?

22    A.    No.  During the course of the project, and you

23 can see on the right-hand side of the screen, we

24 received 27 of these comment forms at the open houses

25 themselves, 18 comment forms or letters through the
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1 mail.  We received 13 e-mail responses, and 41 calls to

2 the project telephone line.

3    Q.    And as far as written responses that were

4 received, are those included in the application at

5 Exhibit J-8 to the application?

6    A.    Yes, they are.

7    Q.    And throughout the public process, did people

8 always have the ability to join the mailing list, for

9 lack of a better term?

10    A.    Yes.  As I have mentioned a couple of times, at

11 the very bottom of the comment form you can see a line

12 there that, I can't quite read it from here, but I want

13 to be included on the mailing list for additional

14 information, and allows a check box yes or no, and then

15 a signature and a date.

16    Q.    Turning to the 17th and I believe last slide in

17 your presentation, on the right-hand side -- by

18 right-hand side I mean right-hand screen -- what major

19 concerns did people provide comments about?

20    A.    What you see here is a pretty comprehensive

21 list, I think, of the comments that were received.  I

22 think if I were to put that in priority, I think the

23 effects on property values was a concern; proximity to

24 residential areas; some of the visual impacts,

25 especially in the Tubac area; effect on rural landscape,
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1 community character; and potential impacts to sensitive

2 wildlife species.

3    Q.    Could you generally describe how UNS Electric

4 and Transcon incorporated the concerns, particularly the

5 major concerns that you mentioned, into the overall

6 analysis of the project and what alignments to

7 ultimately select for inclusion in the application.

8    A.    I can give you a couple of examples.  In the

9 Tubac area, as I mentioned, there were concerns about

10 the visual impacts as well as the effects on the

11 community character.  And so we have the one route that

12 skirts along the railroad here.  And as a result of

13 those concerns, the preferred alignment was chosen to be

14 the existing alignment rather than the route that goes

15 along the railroad in that area.

16    Q.    Since the application was filed, has Transcon

17 and UNS Electric continued to meet with interested

18 groups, concerned individuals about the project and/or

19 about the proposed alignments?

20    A.    Yes.  As a result of the fourth newsletter and

21 filing of the CEC application, and a number of folks

22 that have expressed more recent interest in the project,

23 UNS Electric and Transcon representatives have met with

24 several people, including several in the bosque area, as

25 we are referring to it, since that time.
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1    Q.    And I guess I should point out for the record

2 that the bosque area is on the upper right-hand box of

3 Segment 2 that I am outlining in the green laser?

4    A.    That's correct.

5    Q.    And to the extent possible, has UNS Electric and

6 Transcon tried to address their concerns regarding

7 vegetation management and other concerns that they

8 brought up?

9    A.    Yes.  Discussions have taken place as far as how

10 to manage the vegetation or minimize the amount of

11 right-of-way that's needed in that area.  I am not sure

12 that there has been any conclusions at this point, but

13 discussions have taken place.

14    Q.    Finally, just turning to Tab 10 in the UNS

15 exhibit binder, do you recognize the letter that's, I

16 guess, provided right below that tab?

17    A.    Yes, I do.

18    Q.    And are you familiar with its contents?

19    A.    Yes.  It is a letter from Mr. Bolton, who is a

20 principal planner with the Arizona State Land

21 Department.

22    Q.    And is that a true and accurate copy of that

23 letter?

24    A.    That's correct.

25          MR. GELLMAN:  I would move for the admission of
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1 Exhibit UNS-10.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

3          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objection.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  UNS-10 is admitted.

6          (Exhibit No. UNS-10 was admitted into evidence.)

7 BY MR. GELLMAN:

8    Q.    What does that letter indicate regarding, well,

9 any of the proposed alignments, but particularly the

10 alignments in Segment 1A?

11    A.    That's correct, it focuses on Segment 1A and

12 indicates that the State Land Department's position is

13 that they prefer the northern alternative from Vail down

14 to the Nogales tap.

15    Q.    And that is the preferred alignment in

16 Segment 1A?

17    A.    That's correct.

18    Q.    Mr. Miller, is there anything else you need to

19 add to your testimony at this time?

20    A.    I don't believe so.

21          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.

22          That concludes my direct.  The witness is

23 offered for cross-examination.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, you may

25 cross-examine.
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

2

3                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

4 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

5    Q.    Back to the State Land Department letter, it

6 says, if I am not mistaken, quote, concurs with the

7 preferred northern route, but it doesn't say that it

8 prefers the northern route.

9    A.    That is correct.  When we did the initial siting

10 study for that area, the State Land Department at that

11 time indicated that the northern route was their

12 preferred route, and I believe that's what this letter

13 when it says concurs is referring to.

14    Q.    Okay.  Let's look at Slide 13.  Can we go back

15 to Slide 13 for a second.  I am looking down at the

16 lower right-hand corner of that slide.  In particular we

17 have had some discussion concerning the Gold Hill route

18 in the Alternative 2 of Segment 4.

19          That lower right-hand Gold Hill route is

20 slightly different than the present east route in the

21 Gold Hill Road and south.  Do you agree with that?

22    A.    Well, at this scale, I cannot quite tell that.

23    Q.    The reason I am looking at the map in the, in

24 your newsletter, I believe your third newsletter, which

25 is what this really is from -- I suggest that map is
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1 probably better to look at.

2    A.    Okay, I have the third newsletter.

3    Q.    And comparing that with Segment 4 like in the

4 lower right-hand corner of the left screen, do you see

5 there is a slight difference in the, that eastern route?

6    A.    Yes, I guess I could say that there is a slight

7 difference in that route.  And again, I guess between

8 the Newsletter 3 where there were a number of

9 alternatives provided and Newsletter 4 where the

10 alternatives had been refined, that's a possible

11 explanation for that.

12    Q.    But back to the Newsletter 3 route, the one that

13 is not the straight line route, but the one that comes

14 up from Gold Hill Road, does that route look like it is

15 lower down the hill in your Newsletter 3 than in the

16 present alignment in your preferred, in that route on

17 your present display for Segment 4?

18    A.    Mr. Magruder, I am having a hard time flipping

19 back and forth here to see the difference.  I will say

20 it appears there are slight differences between those

21 routes.

22    Q.    Would you -- and slight difference meaning a

23 little bit less down the hill or a little bit southwest

24 in the Newsletter 3 than in the proposed alternative 2

25 segment for the eastern route?
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1    A.    Is there a way you could show that on the

2 screen, Mr. Magruder?

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Palmer.

4          MEMBER PALMER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

5          Mr. Miller, what is the corridor, proposed

6 corridor width specific to Mr. Magruder's concern?

7          THE WITNESS:  For the line that he is

8 highlighting, right?

9          MEMBER PALMER:  Gold road, right.

10          THE WITNESS:  The right-of-way or the corridor?

11          MEMBER PALMER:  Corridor.

12          THE WITNESS:  Corridor in that area is 500 feet.

13          MEMBER PALMER:  So wouldn't that account for a

14 slight differential and accommodate that slight

15 differential?

16          THE WITNESS:  That would be part of the

17 difference.

18          MEMBER PALMER:  Because we are not looking at

19 more than a 500-foot difference?

20          THE WITNESS:  Again, I am not sure if that's

21 true or not.  It doesn't appear to be a major

22 difference, that's correct.

23          MEMBER PALMER:  Thank you.

24 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

25    Q.    And I agree, it is not a major different, too.
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1 I agree with you on that comment.  But that is one of

2 the -- do you remember on the tour that the -- did you

3 go on the tour?

4    A.    I did not.

5    Q.    I can't ask you about the tour then.

6          Would there be any public process or dialogue

7 concerning after the CEC is granted?

8          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I am going to

9 object.  I think this is beyond the scope of

10 Mr. Miller's testimony.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is the relevance?

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am wondering if the public is

13 going to be informed during the course of the project,

14 does the company have plans to possibly do that.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Informed of what?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  The status of the project as it

17 continues.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And this would be relevant to

19 what?

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Feedback from the public.  If we

21 still got this 500 foot wide corridor and the 100 foot

22 wide right-of-way, there might be some placement of

23 poles at the last second type of feedback.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am going to allow you to go

25 down that road only with regard to pole placement,
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1 because there has been some discussion amongst Committee

2 members about the possibility of appending a condition

3 that would require some consultation concerning pole

4 placement.  So with that limited area, I will overrule

5 the objection and allow you to proceed in that area

6 only.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you, Chairman.

8 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

9    Q.    Do you know if there is any plans to have

10 available people to consult with the public on issues

11 such as pole placement after the CEC is granted?

12    A.    Mr. Magruder, Transcon was contracted to help

13 UniSource Electric through the CEC application process.

14 And I am not sure of what is planned for the future.

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, can I ask the

16 attorney for the company if he knows if there are any

17 plans?

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You want to cross-examine him

19 now?  That's not how it works.

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay, I won't do this.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are cross-examining this

22 witness.  The witness has said I don't know.  So you

23 move on.

24 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

25    Q.    Did you know that there was a citizens action
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1 advisory council established in the City of Nogales for

2 the specific purpose of discussing hearings and filings

3 before the Commission on issues such as line siting?

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Same objection, Mr. Chairman, and

5 I would add relevance.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Where are we going here?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  My question was did he meet with

8 that committee, that council.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Previously about this matter?

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  On this subject, at any time.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  I will allow.  Go a

12 little ways.

13 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

14    Q.    Did you ever meet with the citizens action

15 council?

16    A.    No.

17    Q.    Similar question, did you ever meet with the

18 combined City of Nogales/Santa Cruz County energy

19 commission to discuss this project?

20    A.    No.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you very much.  That's the

22 finish of my questions.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, you may cross-examine.

24

25
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1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 BY MS. WEBB:

3    Q.    Hi, Mr. Miller.  How are you?

4    A.    Doing well, thank you.

5    Q.    Good.  Okay.  Make sure I am on the right

6 page here.

7          On the newsletters, I notice that it is titled

8 UniSource Energy Services.  And I am hoping you can

9 clarify something for me.  Could you please tell me the

10 difference between UniSource Energy Services and

11 UniSource Electric?  I am hearing those two and I need

12 some clarification on the newsletters.

13    A.    Ms. Webb, I am probably not the best person to

14 ask that of.  I think a UniSource representative would

15 be much better equipped to answer that.

16    Q.    Did you write, did you write the newsletters?

17    A.    Personally write the newsletters, no, I did not.

18    Q.    Do you know who wrote the newsletters?

19    A.    It was a combination effort between UniSource

20 and Transcon.

21    Q.    Okay, thank you.

22          Are you aware of if the customers in the

23 northern portion of the alignment Segment 1A are

24 customers of UNS Electric, or UniSource Energy, or TEP?

25    A.    Again, I guess I refer that question to a



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

512

1 UniSource representative.

2    Q.    Okay.  Do you know if this information that's

3 listed in the newsletter was ever put on the TEP

4 website?

5    A.    I don't believe it was put on the TEP website.

6 It was put on the UniSource website.

7    Q.    Okay.  Do you know how the customers from TEP

8 would know to go to the website and look up this

9 information on the website for UniSource?

10    A.    No, I don't.  I don't know how they would do

11 that.

12    Q.    Okay, thank you.

13          Do you still have the application in front of

14 you?

15    A.    Yes.  Yes, I do.

16    Q.    Can you go to J-3, newsletters, please, or

17 project newsletters.

18    A.    Okay.

19    Q.    About three-quarters of the way down the page

20 there is a meeting listed for May 27th.  Would you agree

21 that that location is different than the one you just

22 testified to?

23          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, can I ask which

24 newsletter Ms. Webb is referring to?

25          MS. WEBB:  It is project Newsletter No. 2 for
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1 May 27th.

2          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you.

3          THE WITNESS:  Could you repeat the question,

4 Ms. Webb.

5 BY MS. WEBB:

6    Q.    Would you agree that the location for the

7 May 27th meeting in Tucson is different than the one you

8 referenced at the Tucson Airport?

9    A.    I am not sure I understand your question.  The

10 meeting in Tucson was held at the Holiday Inn & Suites.

11    Q.    I am asking if this location on South Palo Verde

12 Road, Tucson, Arizona is the same location that you

13 referenced at the Tucson Airport.

14    A.    Yes.  The Holiday Inn Hotel & Suites is commonly

15 known as the Holiday Inn at Tucson Airport Holiday Inn.

16 Is that answering your question?

17    Q.    I didn't know that.  Okay.  I am not testifying.

18 Okay.

19          How do you identify upgrade when referring to

20 transmission line?

21          MR. GELLMAN:  I would object; beyond the scope

22 of Mr. Miller's testimony.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I suppose you can ask this

24 witness that question, but he is not -- again, this is

25 someone whose duties don't appear to relate to the
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1 technical aspects of upgrading a line.  Are you wanting

2 to ask him this question, and if so, why?

3          MS. WEBB:  Can I ask him if he wrote that part

4 of the newsletter?

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

6 BY MS. WEBB:

7    Q.    Okay.  Did you write the portion of the

8 newsletter in paragraph 1 of the project summary?

9    A.    No, I don't think I was the primary author of

10 that section.

11    Q.    Did you have any sort of authorship in

12 paragraph 1?

13    A.    I honestly don't recall, Ms. Webb.

14    Q.    Okay, thank you.

15          Does it say anywhere in paragraph 1 that in

16 Segment 1A there would be new construction of a new

17 transmission line?

18    A.    In paragraph 1 it does not, no.

19    Q.    Does it say that in paragraph 2?

20    A.    It doesn't appear to, no.

21    Q.    Does it say it in paragraph 3?

22    A.    You are asking me to be a speed reader, I think.

23    Q.    Sorry.

24    A.    No, it does not.

25    Q.    Does it say anywhere on the May 27th Tucson
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1 newsletter project, project Newsletter No. 2 that was

2 put out in the Vail Sun, that this is a new construction

3 in Segment 1A?

4    A.    I guess I am misunderstanding your question.  It

5 was put out in the Vail Sun?

6    Q.    You just testified to that previously when you

7 testified on this previously, in one of these slides,

8 that it was published in the Vail Sun.

9    A.    Advertising -- I am sorry.

10    Q.    I am sorry.

11    A.    Advertisements were sent to the newspapers,

12 that's correct.  The newsletter itself was not.

13    Q.    Okay.  This advertisement, where was this

14 advertised, this newsletter?

15    A.    Newsletter No. 2, again, the newsletter itself

16 was not advertised.  The open house was advertised.  And

17 it was advertised in the Nogales International, Green

18 Valley News, Vail Sun, and Sahuarita Sun.

19    Q.    And was the meeting location for the Holiday Inn

20 & Suites advertised in the Vail Sun?

21    A.    Bear with me for a moment.

22          Now, could you repeat the question one more

23 time.  I am sorry.

24    Q.    Was the location for the Holiday Inn & Suites

25 advertised in the Vail Sun for the May 27th meeting?
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1    A.    Yes, it was.

2    Q.    Okay.  Now, can you tell me where the project

3 newsletter was advertised with this information?

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I would object.  I

5 think Mr. Miller -- this question has been asked and

6 answered.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It does seem we have gone over

8 this before.

9          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

10 BY MS. WEBB:

11    Q.    Is there anywhere in the project newsletter that

12 it says that there is new construction in the northern

13 end of this project?

14          MR. GELLMAN:  Same objection; asked and

15 answered.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Actually I don't think that this

17 has been answered.  But I do note in my copy of the

18 newsletter, it appears in the second paragraph and on

19 the legend to the map, it appears that there is

20 reference to new construction.  Are you meaning

21 something other than those things or am I missing

22 something here?

23          MS. WEBB:  Am I allowed to talk?

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

25          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  I wasn't sure.
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1          I just don't see it in paragraph 2 that it says

2 in project 2 newsletter.  But my eyes are really blurry

3 right now.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Doesn't it say in the second

5 sentence, on the north end of the project near the Town

6 of Vail 4.5 mile segment of transmission line must be

7 built to interconnect?

8          MS. WEBB:  I think maybe we are looking at a

9 different --

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am looking -- and if we are,

11 let's get on the same document.

12          MS. WEBB:  Let's get on the same page here.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am looking at Exhibit J-3,

14 newsletters, to Exhibit UNS-1 of the application.  Is

15 that what you were referring to?

16          MS. WEBB:  No.  I am referring to it says Vail

17 to Valencia 115kV to 138 upgrade project Newsletter

18 No. 2.

19          MR. GELLMAN:  Mr. Chairman, if I could clarify.

20 I believe Ms. Webb is referring to the third page of

21 what is in Exhibit J-3, which is entitled Vail to

22 Valencia 115kV to 138kV upgrade project Newsletter

23 No. 2.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So are you asking the witness

25 only about page 3 of the newsletter or are you asking
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1 him about the whole newsletter?

2          MS. WEBB:  I haven't established where this has

3 been shown to anybody yet.  So I don't know -- it is

4 hard for me to ask any questions about it from there.

5 Because when I thought it -- oh, I can't testify.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, let's start with basics.

7          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are asking questions about a

9 newsletter.

10          MS. WEBB:  Uh-huh.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is the newsletter the newsletter

12 that is found after the tab that says Exhibit J-3 in the

13 application?

14          MS. WEBB:  J-3 is a whole bunch of newsletters,

15 and this is one specific newsletter that I am asking,

16 inquiring about.  It is not, it is not a whole, it is

17 not one cumulative package.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Now I am confused.  Let

19 me ask Mr. Miller.

20          Exhibit J-3 to the application, how many

21 newsletters are there and where are they, what pages are

22 they?

23          THE WITNESS:  There are four newsletters in J-3.

24 And they are listed at the very top.  The first one

25 doesn't have a number on it, it simply says Vail to
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1 Valencia 115kV upgrade project.

2          The second newsletter is UniSource Energy

3 Services Vail to Valencia 115kV to 138kV upgrade project

4 Newsletter No. 2.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So, and then you have a

6 Newsletter 3 and a Newsletter 4.

7          THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Proceed.

9          MS. WEBB:  Thank you.  If I may have a moment to

10 reorganize in my brain because I got a little confused

11 there myself.

12          So am I allowed to ask where it was posted, the

13 Newsletter 2, or no?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

15 BY MS. WEBB:

16    Q.    Mr. Miller, can you tell me then where

17 Newsletter No. 2 was posted?

18    A.    Newsletter 2 was sent out to approximately

19 20,000 people along the transmission line route.

20    Q.    And that's the only place that it was posted?

21    A.    The newsletter was posted on the website as well

22 for people to see the newsletter in both English and

23 Spanish.

24    Q.    Was it posted on the TEP website?

25    A.    No, it wasn't, not to my knowledge, anyway.
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1    Q.    How do members of the public know to make

2 informed comments if they don't have all of the

3 information?

4          MR. GELLMAN:  Objection; argumentative.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

6          MS. WEBB:  Sorry.  Did members -- I am going to

7 try to ask it another way and if I do it wrong, just

8 tell me.

9 BY MS. WEBB:

10    Q.    How were TEP customers to find the information

11 to make informed, I mean to make comments?

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sustained.

13          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Do I get one more try?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are asking a psychological

15 question --

16          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- relating to a vast number of

18 people who are not accessible --

19          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- to the witness.  You can ask

21 him what he did, what he thought and so on, but unless

22 you qualify him as a psychologist, we are not going to

23 be able to go much beyond there.

24          MS. WEBB:  I think I figured out, if I can have

25 one more try.
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1 BY MS. WEBB:

2    Q.    How would TEP customers access this information

3 if they did not live along the immediate route?

4    A.    Ms. Webb, on this project, this is a project

5 that includes about a four-mile new portion of

6 transmission line, and then almost an entirely 55 to 60

7 mile rebuild of an existing transmission line.

8    Q.    Thank you.  This project -- okay.  We will move

9 on to the next one.

10          Was there an open house held in Vail or Corona

11 de Tucson?

12    A.    No.

13    Q.    Why not?

14    A.    The project, again, was an upgrade project with

15 a small new transmission line build from the Vail area

16 to Nogales tap.

17    Q.    Okay.

18    A.    And it was determined that the area needed to be

19 covered for this project was a somewhat limited area in

20 the immediate vicinity of those features.

21    Q.    But isn't it true that that's the only portion

22 that is entirely new?

23    A.    That is correct.

24    Q.    Okay.

25    A.    The Vail area and Corona de Tucson are both
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1 located five or more miles away from the project area.

2    Q.    Okay.  Are you aware that both the Nogales tap

3 and the Vail substation are both located within the Vail

4 School District boundaries?

5    A.    Yes, I am aware of that.

6    Q.    Okay, thank you.

7          Were you involved with Line Siting Case 137?

8    A.    Yes.

9    Q.    And are you aware that there are nongovernmental

10 agencies in the Vail/Corona area?

11    A.    Yes, there are.

12    Q.    Were any NGOs invited to become involved in this

13 process from Vail or Corona de Tucson?

14    A.    I don't believe there were any nongovernmental

15 organizations, not within the immediate vicinity of the

16 project, being considered here.

17    Q.    Are there any within the Vail School District

18 boundaries?

19    A.    I do not know the answer to that.

20    Q.    Thank you.

21          Are there are any civilians interested in

22 transmission line siting issues that live within the

23 Vail School District boundaries?

24          MR. GELLMAN:  Objection; relevance.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is the relevance?
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1          MS. WEBB:  May I have a moment just to compose

2 my thoughts?

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

4          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  In a rural community, we don't

5 measure our space by blocks, we measure them by miles.

6 And this area is very important to us.  Our boundaries

7 from the Vail Preservation Society and Vail School

8 District are encompassed, both of these sites are within

9 that area.

10          I have shown that I am very interested in

11 transmission line siting issues.  I showed that in Line

12 Siting Case 137 which Mr. Miller acknowledged he was

13 involved with.  And I would like to know if I was

14 invited to any meetings or anybody else who spoke in

15 front of the Commission or the Committee was invited,

16 because he has acknowledged that he did speak with many

17 groups in the Rio Rico and Nogales area.

18          The character of this area is such that

19 distances, again, are not measured in blocks.  And I

20 understand that it is different, but it is a rural

21 environment.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, if you want to testify

23 concerning whether or not you were invited and if you

24 want to argue whether or not you should have been

25 invited or others should have been invited, that's fine.
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1 The questions that you may ask this witness are who did

2 he, on behalf of the applicant, invite and why.

3          MS. WEBB:  That was my question.  I am just

4 curious as to after such a contentious case why no one

5 was invited when we have shown such an interest.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, if you want to ask the

7 witness why you were not invited --

8          MS. WEBB:  Okay.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- because you had shown such an

10 interest, go right ahead.

11 BY MS. WEBB:

12    Q.    Okay.  Why wasn't I invited to a meeting when I

13 had shown such an interest?

14    A.    Ms. Webb, I think the answer to that is that the

15 residents and landowners in the vicinity of this project

16 were invited to participate.  Your residence and

17 business fall outside of the area that we believed would

18 be of concern, and I think that's the answer.

19    Q.    Okay.  Do you acknowledge that a rural character

20 is different than an urban character?

21    A.    Yes, I do.

22          MS. WEBB:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all I have.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Redirect.

24          MR. GELLMAN:  Briefly, Mr. Chairman.

25
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1                  REDIRECT EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. GELLMAN:

3    Q.    Mr. Miller, could you just turn to Exhibit J-3

4 where the first page of the second newsletter is

5 located.

6    A.    Okay.

7    Q.    Could you just read the first sentence of that

8 newsletter.

9    A.    It is under the subtitle project summary, is

10 that what you are referring to?

11    Q.    Yes.  I am sorry, I should have been more

12 specific.

13    A.    It states UniSource Energy Services, UES, is

14 planning to upgrade an existing 115 -- 115,000 volt,

15 115kV, transmission line to a 138,000 volt, 138kV,

16 transmission line between the Vail substation in Tucson

17 and the Valencia substation in Nogales, Arizona.

18    Q.    And in that newsletter on the second page is

19 there a map?

20    A.    Yes, there is.

21    Q.    And does that map show or depict blue lines from

22 the area of the Nogales tap to the Vail substation?

23    A.    Yes, it does.  And blue lines indicate

24 alternatives that are being considered.  There is also

25 an orange line, I guess, that depicts the existing
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1 transmission line.

2    Q.    And also regarding the Newsletter No. 2, it

3 indicates the Tucson Holiday Inn Hotel & Suites.  Does

4 it give an address?

5    A.    Yes, it does.

6    Q.    And could you just read that address into the

7 record.

8    A.    Yes.  4550 South Palo Verde Road, Tucson.

9    Q.    Is that the same Holiday Inn that's referred to

10 in your Slide 12 of your PowerPoint presentation?

11    A.    Yes, it is.

12          MR. GELLMAN:  Thank you.  I have no further

13 questions.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.  Thank you for

15 testifying.

16          Does the -- I am sorry.  Before we move on, we

17 ought to ask whether the Committee members have

18 questions.

19          (No response.)

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The Committee members do not

21 have questions.

22          Thank you again for testifying.

23          THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Does the applicant have

25 additional testimony to present?
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1          MR. GELLMAN:  We do not at this time.  The

2 applicant rests.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

4          Mr. Magruder, are you ready to proceed or would

5 you like us to take a short break?

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  I think people would probably

7 prefer to have a short break.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, the question was whether

9 you prefer to have a short break.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am ready.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are ready?  All right.

12 Well, let's take 15 minutes since the guacamole is here.

13 And we will begin again at five minutes to 3:00.

14          (A recess ensued from 2:41 p.m. to 2:57 p.m.)

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, are you ready to

16 present your case?

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, Chairman, I am ready to

18 proceed.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Do you wish to

20 present a witness?

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, I am my witness.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you do wish to present a

23 witness, and that witness is you, is that correct?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  That is correct, Chairman.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And when you start being a
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1 witness, you start with an oath or affirmation.  Do you

2 wish an oath or affirmation?

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  Oath.

4          (Peyton Marshall Magruder, Junior was duly

5 sworn.)

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Please be seated.  Tell us your

7 full name, spell the last name for the court reporter.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, my name is

9 Marshall, my full name is Peyton Marshall Magruder,

10 Junior.  I go by Marshall because I am a junior.  My

11 last name is spelled M-a-g-r-u-d-e-r.  My address is

12 Post Office Box 1267, Tubac, Arizona 85646.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Now, as I indicated

14 to you and Ms. Webb during the break, I am going to

15 allow you to proceed in narrative form at least

16 initially.  But it would be helpful to me and to

17 opposing counsel if you would identify the area that you

18 are going to talk about before you get into it and, if

19 you are going to talk about documents, to refer to the

20 exhibit numbers as you go through in those documents.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, Chairman.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You may proceed.

23          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you very much.

24

25
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1             PEYTON MARSHALL MAGRUDER, JUNIOR,

2 a witness herein, having been previously duly sworn by

3 the Chairman to speak the truth and nothing but the

4 truth, testified as follows:

5

6                     DIRECT TESTIMONY

7 BY MR. MAGRUDER:

8          I appreciate the honor to participate in these

9 proceedings.  As I have stated several times in similar

10 proceedings, I try not to take a negative view.

11 Sometimes that might not appear that way to the

12 applicant.

13          Let me introduce myself.  I have a bachelor of

14 science degree from the United States Naval Academy with

15 two full years of electrical engineering which was a

16 required part of the curriculum.  I have a master's of

17 science in physical oceanography from the naval

18 postgraduate school, and another master's of science in

19 systems management from the University of Southern

20 California.

21          Having retired from the Navy after 25 years of

22 service on eight aircraft carriers, three cruisers, two

23 destroyers, and home ports in Japan, France, and Italy,

24 my career was mostly split between at sea operations

25 with home ports in each of the four Navy fleets twice,
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1 going to schools or instructing others in underwater

2 acoustics, and hunting for Soviet submarines.  I have

3 Navy board certified qualifications, including command

4 in destroyers, surface warfare officer, and I am a

5 proven subspecialist in geophysics and antisubmarine

6 warfare.

7          Then I worked for almost 18 years at Hughes

8 Aircraft Company, later Raytheon, as a systems engineer.

9 I worked on or led many different challenging projects

10 for all U.S. Navy, Royal Navy, Saudi Arabian minister of

11 defense.  In that case I had an entire kingdom as my

12 system.  As a systems engineer you rarely get a kingdom

13 to be your thing you are working with.  I have covered

14 what most systems engineers do in my witness summary and

15 I will not repeat it here.

16          Since then I have had ten years experience at

17 H&R Block qualifying as a senior tax advisor level III.

18 Level V is the highest level before becoming an enrolled

19 agent and eligible to practice before -- with the IRS in

20 a tax court proceeding.

21          I have eight years as an energy commissioner

22 representing Santa Cruz County and the City of Nogales

23 in many diverse energy and water issues.

24          I am the vice president and a director of the

25 B-26 Martin Marauder Historical Society, with over 1700
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1 members for the past six years.

2          I consult for several different military

3 contractors, including some in Sierra Vista for the

4 U.S. Army and their intelligence command, and in

5 California as an information systems technology

6 architect for United States Navy, Marine, and Royal Navy

7 ship and training system design contracts.

8          I also participate as a volunteer working with

9 citizens on renewable energy projects to reduce demand,

10 with others who have submitted several hundred watts of

11 home and small business photovoltaic solar systems, also

12 with at least seven commercial firms that have applied

13 in the last three months for between 20 and 100 watts of

14 photovoltaic stems, and working on probably two or three

15 one- to three-megawatt solar systems all to be installed

16 in Santa Cruz County.

17          Other projects involve a possible greenhouse,

18 that's a place where you grow vegetables, a greenhouse

19 with a vertical windmill to generate electricity as a

20 part of the renewable energy processes being put into

21 the vocational training program at Rio Rico High School.

22          I have also taught master of business

23 administration students from Nogales, Sonora and in

24 Tucson with the University of Phoenix courses involving

25 operations management, which is really statistical
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1 methods to improve production, and another course in

2 managing innovation R&D.

3          Last year I wrote a proposal for the Border

4 Patrol virtual fence project, including training

5 programs and the establishment of a national border

6 patrol center in Dallas, Texas.

7          In between these tasks, I participated in two

8 Line Siting Committee hearings, two gas, one electric

9 and one water rate case, and other dockets involving

10 UniSource Energy's acquisition of Citizens before the

11 Corporation Commission since 2000.

12          I just try to do the right thing.  I never have

13 or never want payment for my services.  But the cost to

14 REPRO is so high something has to be done because

15 self-funded individuals are really having a problem

16 intervening.

17          Why am I here today?  I have very strong ties in

18 making the smallest county in Arizona the best.  I love

19 my county.  I know I have a steep road ahead, with

20 harder challenges.  But it makes me grow mentally, and I

21 enjoy overcoming obstacles, solving hard problems, as

22 long as they are completely moral and ethical that

23 benefit any and all citizens of the country and county I

24 love.

25          What is unique about Santa Cruz County?  We are
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1 a small county of about 46,000 inhabitants.  We are

2 smaller than most Phoenix suburbs with one city, one

3 town, immense natural beauty, and a wonderful

4 environment.

5          As a border town, we see many different

6 cultures, including a community that is growing slowly

7 with an 85 percent Spanish speaking population and a low

8 level of education, with 19.8 percent of our population

9 not having a ninth grade education.

10          I use my background to help those folks.  I do

11 taxes for AARP as a volunteer free.  My wife and I also

12 volunteer a few weeks a year at the Hubbell Trading Post

13 national historic site assisting in auction preparation,

14 with an average of $200,000 distributed twice a year to

15 Native Americans for making their rugs, pottery,

16 baskets, jewelry and other handmade objects.

17          For your information, Santa Cruz County did not

18 have a building code until 1970.  Let me repeat that.

19 We did not have a building code until 1970.  Some places

20 take a little longer to catch up with the municipal and

21 cities found throughout the country.  That's why many of

22 our older structures are different, and obviously don't

23 meet code anyplace else in the country.

24          Most growth in this county is in Rio Rico.  We

25 have about 300 to 400 homes a year added to this
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1 community.  It is a very large development area with

2 over 20,000 platted lots.  Let me just show you a map.

3 This is a map of Rio Rico.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And it is Exhibit --

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't want -- it is the only

6 copy.  I can't give it up.  I am just showing you a

7 picture that has many platted lots on it.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  We can consider only what is in

9 evidence.  So if you want to put it in evidence, then

10 you are going to have to have it marked as you are going

11 to have to say good-bye to it.

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't want it in evidence.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will never get another one.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  But Rio Rico is a lot

17 bigger than the little south end of Segment 2.  It is at

18 least ten miles north-south.  And it is about 40,

19 45 percent of the population of the county in one

20 community, originally managed or presently managed

21 through Rio Rico properties.  They sell off the

22 properties over time.  But it is one group doing the

23 whole thing.

24          What is your attitude towards electric, gas, and

25 water utility companies?  I have to answer this because
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1 of the people here representing the companies.  I want

2 them to be the best.  I want them to have high quality.

3 I want them to have reliable service.  I want them to

4 be -- to have the best customer's cost.  I am not

5 anti UNS Electric, but sometimes I have to rake them

6 over the coals to get their attention.  My issues are

7 issues, they are not I hate you threats.

8          Why did you intervene?  When I heard that the

9 Arizona Corporation Commission Staff was not going to

10 intervene, and due to my experience in our county, it

11 gave me no other option.  I won't give any company

12 anywhere, not just UNS Electric, a cakewalk.

13          By having participated with the Chairman and

14 this new Line Siting Committee, I am very impressed with

15 the professionalism that may have been less obvious in

16 my prior case, as might be remembered by probably more

17 senior members of this Committee.  I am very impressed

18 with the questions and with the performance of the

19 Committee as an intervenor.  It is a quantum jump over

20 eight years ago.  And also I am impressed with the

21 company's presentation, a quantum jump over eight years

22 ago.  For both, I thank you.

23          Now let's get into some of the questions I have

24 that were in my prefiled testimony and in this oral

25 testimony.  One reason I have asked so many questions is
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1 that I really did not get a good response from the

2 company in a prompt manner to my data request.  I have

3 available Magruder Exhibit 17 with holes punched that I

4 handed out before, and Magruder Exhibit MM-18, which has

5 my data request set No. 1, and Magruder Exhibit MM-19

6 which has my data request set 2.  Both of those were

7 submitted on 7 May.  I should have had responses by the

8 17th of May.  The responses were not satisfactory, as I

9 told the Chairman in our prehearing conference.  And it

10 is without information from a company that you can't

11 read the records remotely on the types of questions I

12 have been asking.

13          I am trying to help, I am not trying to hurt,

14 but if I can't find out the failures on the

15 transmission, 115 kilovolt transmission line, I can't

16 analyze the data.  And I think if you look at my

17 questions, you will find maybe not all but I think a

18 high percent you will find is reasonable questions that

19 you maybe as a Committee member may even consider

20 asking.

21          This made my case preparation extremely

22 challenging.  But with Google, and going from website to

23 website, I was able to get some information.  Maybe the

24 company didn't understand that the data should have been

25 ready, available to answer those types of questions.
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1          When I prepared my Exhibit MM-5 that we

2 discussed yesterday, where I had the peak demands shown

3 on a three-page handout, Exhibit MM-5, I missed

4 Mr. Beck's data.  I didn't have his data that was shown

5 on his slide.  I did not receive that particular data

6 until Monday.  But on Sunday, I wrote MM-5.  That is why

7 that data was not in my handout.  And I am sorry I did

8 not have the data, but I just didn't have it when I

9 mailed the handout because I mailed it to the

10 Corporation Commission on Monday before I got the

11 information.  Forecasts are very important, and that's

12 why I thought MM-5 was so important.

13          Yesterday also, when you look, I was reading

14 Magruder Exhibit MM-8, and I was misled, I don't believe

15 intentionally, but I was misled with respect to a

16 December 2008 Pantano 230 kilovolt upgrade.  And the use

17 of SWTC data shown in MM-9, and it would show data

18 through 2017 coming to the Nogales tap.  Also, the

19 calculations that I have in Magruder Exhibit MM-14 are

20 not valid.

21          All of those are errors that I readily admit

22 having made earlier in this proceeding and those

23 exhibits I will ask not to be entered a little bit later

24 in this process.  But I didn't have the data.  And I am

25 sorry I made a mistake.
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1          In this case I tried to provide my honest

2 opinion with respect to the project and with the

3 preparation of materials for these hearings.  I did not

4 file my data requests with tricks or snakes.  They were

5 meant to be honest questions by an honest person seeking

6 responses.

7          This has put me in an unusual situation because,

8 as I was admonished yesterday for probably testifying

9 and not asking good questions, it was because I knew I

10 was in a bad position, as indicated by the Chair.  And I

11 am sorry.  I tried to recover and I think I will.  I

12 abhor discovery disputes, and I don't ever want to do

13 one of those again.  And I haven't done one in this

14 case.  But I do not find them very much fun.

15          Now, what issues do I still have?  My issues

16 involve overall costs.  That's a key decision parameter,

17 because as you look through that, the alternatives costs

18 will change.  I know this is not a rate case, but there

19 is only one group of people who pay those costs.  And

20 this is not the place to determine if those costs are

21 prudent or if it meets the criteria for the Corporation

22 Commission in a rate case.  But the cost estimates from

23 the company are very important for you to help make your

24 decisions.  Because the costs will be different for

25 reliability, for a more efficient, and for a progressive
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1 electric system.

2          The second issues I have are with local factors,

3 the location, this area, that may not be known by the

4 applicant, so that they are objectively brought forth

5 for consideration by the Committee.

6          The third is the most -- another key term,

7 reliability.  And reliability in this area can only be

8 improved.  I did not receive the data I needed to

9 complete the study I had done for the previous ten

10 years' worth of reliability.  And that was a personal

11 goal that I wanted.  But no system is ever 100 percent

12 reliable.  I work with reliability engineers.  I am

13 familiar with the technique and I can do the

14 calculations, and I can give you the numerical answers

15 that were not given to you in the testimony earlier

16 today.

17          I have also worked in companies that work with

18 more efficient processes.  In my previous life, we went

19 through the ISO 9000 process.  ISO 9000 is quality

20 management.  And coming from a very high quality

21 company, having to go through a quality management

22 reorganization, I came away believing that you can even

23 get better, you are never good enough.  And ISO 9000 for

24 this company would help them.  That's an opinion, but

25 that's not an issue in this case.
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1          The fourth area is environmental factors.

2 Somebody has to represent the trees -- they just can't

3 come in here -- and the other things that are in nature.

4          Now let's talk about these costs.  My prefiled

5 exhibit, Magruder Exhibit MM-15, contains the data

6 request and the company's response.  There are some

7 numbers there.  And I provided a little update on the

8 back of the page.  And we got another update this

9 morning.  But we need more information really, I think,

10 to make that final decision.

11          For example, this morning, in company Exhibit

12 A-21, which was a new data for Segment 4, I have

13 recomputed during a break, using the company's data, an

14 estimate for what I refer to as Hybrid Alternative 2.

15 That is follow the preferred route to Gold Hill Road,

16 then take the eastern roundabout.

17          If you take the eastern roundabout, you will

18 find that the engineering and construction costs are

19 $402,000 less by taking the roundabout to the east than

20 coming through the preferred route.  You save money on

21 engineering.  However, you will spend $1.291 million

22 additional on right-of-way costs.  And when you subtract

23 the difference, it turns out that the Gold Hill Road

24 route to the east is $889,000 more than the preferred

25 route.  It is more, but it is not 16 million.  It is
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1 only $889,000.

2          As I came to work this morning, I thought I was

3 going to not have that option and not even be pushing

4 for that option anymore.  The cost now is so close, or

5 closer, it is something to consider.  And that's why I

6 asked the questions about the second or third newsletter

7 that showed a slightly different route just slightly

8 within maybe the 100 -- 500 foot width that might even

9 be less costly.  And that's how I use cost to help make

10 a decision.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, let me help you

12 with your presentation here.  Let's start at the south

13 end and go north.  In Segment 4, do you favor the

14 preferred route that's shown on the setup there?  Just

15 talking routes now.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  No, I do not, Mr. Chairman.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What route do you favor?

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am about 60 to 65 percent in

19 favor of what I would refer to as the hybrid route,

20 which is the blue alternative going east from Valencia

21 substation north, and then northwest to Gold Hill Road

22 and then following the alternative route, this route,

23 this route right here, then go up the regular route

24 right there.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you take the lowest
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1 alternative blue route from the Valencia to Gold Hill

2 Road, you reconnect at that point with the preferred

3 route and take the preferred route north, correct?

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  That is correct.  But again, I am

5 about 65 percent for that and about 35 percent for the

6 existing route.  In other words, it is fairly close.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And am I talking to the

8 65 percent now or the 35 percent?

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  65 percent on that road.  The

10 35 percent would be just the regular preferred

11 alternative, preferred route.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And the deciding

13 factor in those two is what?

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Right now I am down to money.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Down to money.

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  Money I would, the cost I would

17 put at the top of the list, and is that cost worth it.

18 And I can't get anybody from the county building here to

19 talk for it, but the county complex on the top is the

20 most senior governmental organization in this county,

21 and I just don't think it should be obscured with power

22 lines, especially if there is a reasonable alternative.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And so your understanding of the

24 cost situation is that using this lower alternative loop

25 would save how much money?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  It will cost, the Hybrid

2 Alternative 2 as I have described will cost $889,000

3 more than the preferred route, for a total cost of

4 $10,008,000.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So that the alternative

6 route that you selected actually costs $800,000 more?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So let's go up to Sonoita

9 substation in Segment 3.  From Sonoita to Cañez, do you

10 favor the preferred, the company's preferred route or

11 their alternative route?

12          MR. MAGRUDER:  I would like to use the preferred

13 route but about 400 feet to the west, which would put

14 them on the other side of the railroad track, to the

15 west.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So you would like to go west of

17 the railroad track.

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  Actually west after, where they

19 are both close to each other.  But down on the southern

20 part of Segment 3, it really doesn't matter, whatever,

21 it doesn't matter.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So your desire to go

23 west of the railroad tracks occurs only where the

24 alternative alignment is within, what, a couple tenths

25 of a mile and parallel to the existing alignment?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  That is correct.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, help me understand how this

3 Committee could approve a line west of the railroad

4 tracks, given the legal notice that has been provided so

5 far.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  If you will approve a route, and

7 I gave a long discussion in my opening comments how much

8 I wanted siting instead of corridors, but this would be

9 a place where a corridor would be very convenient, a

10 500-foot corridor using the preferred route on the map.

11 But putting the poles in their 100 foot right-of-way to

12 the west side of that 500-foot corridor, it would still

13 be inside the 500-foot corridor.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  But doesn't the application

15 indicate that the corridor would be centered on the

16 alignment that's referenced, which would mean that you

17 would have only 250 feet to the west to move?

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will have to agree with your

19 comment.  I don't remember seeing those words, but I

20 agree with those comments.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am just trying to figure out

22 if your alternative that you are proposing is legally

23 possible.  And I have the uneasy feeling that it is not.

24 So if it is not legally possible --

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  Let's talk 250 feet.  So they
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1 have a 37 and a half foot alignment in that distribution

2 corridor, and I believe that's the correct number.  I

3 did not get an answer going how wide the railroad's

4 right-of-way was.  Do you remember, I did ask that

5 question.  And that's why some things are hard for me to

6 make a firm judgment.

7          But let's say it is a 100-foot right-of-way for

8 the railroad.  Now, we have got half of 37 and a half,

9 18, for example, plus 100, 118 feet to reach the west

10 side boundary of the railroad easement.  We still have

11 another 100 feet left to get a 200-foot wide corridor.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  How would you deal

13 with the flooding issue that was raised?

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Flooding issue is an issue that

15 really needs to be looked into, and it is -- I wish it

16 had been looked into in depth prior to these hearings.

17 The flooding issue is solvable, I believe, with my

18 Magruder Exhibit MM-16 from yesterday.  That was a

19 photograph of a transmission line the middle of the

20 Santa Cruz River.  If we look at this river --

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So your solution to the flooding

22 problem is to use concrete bases that would be sunk how

23 many feet?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't believe the survey data

25 is available.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Survey data for what?

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Indicating how deep they would

3 have to go.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Would you -- I believe Mr. Beck

5 referred to 20 or 30 feet.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  I also heard 50 or 60 at one

7 time, and I am just not sure.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What would you do about the

9 water table impact?

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Put in, you can put in a steel

11 encasement.  You just put a piece of steel and then you

12 put the concrete in it and then you put the pole in it.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So let's keep moving

14 north --

15          MEMBER EBERHART:  Before we leave the flood

16 issue, there is a big concern expressed by Mr. Beck

17 whether or not the flood control district of Santa Cruz

18 County would even allow you to build in the floodway,

19 and I suspect they would not.  So that makes the whole

20 discussion of building in that area moot.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  I know.  Can I give you some

22 advantages of going in the floodplain?

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What I am trying to do is to

24 figure out your alignment position, so let's just walk

25 north through the alignment.  So now we are up to the
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1 Cañez substation.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now we are going north through

4 the bosque area, and do you -- and we will go from

5 stop 8 to stop 9 on the tour, which is the place where

6 the bosque or bosque area is sort of in between the

7 preferred route and the existing route.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  I see that on the map.

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, and that has been a point

10 of much contention.  Which of those routes do you favor?

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  Prefer west of the railroad.

12 Second to that, I then would 51/49 probably go west on

13 the preferred route.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So you would, but

15 your best solution would be to take the line west of the

16 railroad using this generous corridor --

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  Option.

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- option that you have

19 identified.  And would you then take it up to the point

20 where the preferred route pulls back over to the

21 existing route.

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, I would.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And then from that point

24 north, do you favor the preferred route or do you favor

25 the alternative route?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  The preferred route all the way

2 through to the north end.  And the north end I prefer

3 Segment 1A.  And the reason I would -- which is the

4 preferred segment.  And the reason I prefer that is so

5 that I think we might have an option in the future of

6 using the Nogales tap.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  Because that would be eliminated

9 if we chose Segment 1B.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  We have got

11 alignment.  Now we come to this critical issue of pole

12 color.  Where do you stand on pole color?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  Pole color, I think the criteria

14 for selection of pole color should be the contrast

15 between the background and the pole from the greatest

16 number of viewers of people that are looking.  For

17 example, I will go back to the county building.  That

18 pole on top of the hill there is seen by thousands of

19 tourists, thousands of people every day driving by.  It

20 is not even by residents that I am worried about it, it

21 is just it is there seen by thousands of people.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So if I can just kind of cut

23 through to the chase here, does that mean you would

24 favor the galvanized poles at higher relative elevation

25 and the brown poles at the lower relative elevation?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  That is correct.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And how would you distinguish

3 between higher and lower elevations?  Would you leave

4 that to the discretion of the company with consultation

5 with the local residents, or how would you do that?

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  If I get further in my testimony,

7 I have a condition proposed.  And my condition says, to

8 the best I can, that within 30 days after granting of a

9 CEC by the Committee -- notice I didn't say approval by

10 the Commission -- granted by the Committee, that a pole

11 plan would be submitted by the company looking at places

12 that had sky background dominant viewable from the

13 largest population, land background viewable by the

14 largest population, and lay that out based on the final

15 approved alignment from the Committee.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, and I did read that with

17 interest in your proposed CEC, legally what would be the

18 effect of that proposed plan?  Would you think that that

19 would somehow become a part of the CEC?

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  No, but if they submitted --

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  If it is not a part of

22 the CEC, do you think it would somehow become a part of

23 the record of the Committee in developing the CEC?

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  No.  Because the Committee --

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If it is not part of the CEC or
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1 part of the record in developing the CEC, how would the

2 Commission consider it, given the statutory requirement

3 that they make their decision based on the record before

4 the Committee?

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  If I remember correctly in the

6 finest prints -- and I am not an attorney, as I am sure

7 you are well aware -- it says that parties can submit

8 exceptions, I believe, within 20 days after the CEC is

9 issued, which will be before the Commission meets.  And

10 maybe the 30 days is too long.  Maybe I give them 20

11 days.  But what it would do is at least the parties, I

12 am not just saying because of myself, but people can

13 write in exceptions.  The exceptions are reviewed when

14 the Committee -- when the Commission reviews the CEC.

15 And they can take that into account at that time.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You will need to show me where

17 it says that in the statute because I don't think it

18 does.  But that --

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- allows me now to understand

21 your --

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's the rationale on that 30

23 day.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  It might be 20 days.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  But I wanted to give them time.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.  Now, I am sorry, go

4 ahead.

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  As I discussed earlier in

6 cross-examination concerning flooding, the company has

7 testified and used the proposed floodplain maps that are

8 undergoing review by FEMA before being implemented.

9 These new FEMA maps have resulted in dozens of meetings.

10 They are available on the web and hard work by our

11 county flood coordinator.

12          Several major subdivisions which we happen to

13 call planned area developments here in Santa Cruz County

14 have relied on the Union Pacific Railroad to be a berm

15 in order to allow them to build more homes on the other

16 side from the river.  None have been approved.  In fact,

17 he is adamant that without Corps of Engineering

18 certification for a railroad qualifying, and been

19 inspected and qualified as a berm, it is transparent

20 with respect to flooding.

21          And while walking up the railroad yesterday,

22 even the eastern side was visibly at a lower elevation

23 than the western side.  I even walked past a large, I

24 would estimate, four or five foot diameter two pipes of

25 a conduit underneath the railroad track, which first of
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1 all would allow the water to equalize on both sides, but

2 secondly, looking at that railroad conduit that allowed

3 the water to go underneath on the west side on the

4 riverside, it was filled with mud maybe six inches.  On

5 the east side, there was no mud.  That implies that the

6 water was flowing from west to east through this very

7 large culvert.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

9          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

10          Mr. Magruder, just to cut to the chase again, I

11 think in their proposed CEC they have acknowledged that

12 they will have to comply with all state, city, and

13 county ordinances, of which Santa Cruz Flood Control

14 District is going to have to review and approve this.

15 So what you are saying is fine and good, but anywhere

16 within that preferred 500-foot corridor was in a

17 floodplain.  That was shown to us.  So it is going to

18 have to be submitted to the county for review and

19 approval by the flood control district.

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.  I fully agree.  And I

21 also want to indicate that Valencia substation is inside

22 the 100-year floodplain, which will really have an

23 impact on the City of Nogales if it gets flooded out.

24          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chairman, that whole map

25 that was in blue, the blue portion is the 100-year
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1 floodplain.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  I know.

3          MEMBER EBERHART:  So the proposed poles will be

4 in the 100-year floodplain.

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  The whole county is going through

6 a very traumatic floodplain issue you might not be aware

7 of, and it is a big deal.

8          With respect to the railroad, on the west side

9 it is all agricultural land.  It has to remain

10 agricultural land for Rio Rico Properties to exist,

11 because it comes with agricultural water rights.

12 Without those water rights, the people couldn't live

13 here.  And that's why the rent-a-cows are all over the

14 place.  Those are all rented cattle brought in here

15 to -- it is a very fertile plain and they can really

16 gain weight, stomping around to the west.

17          There is no intention to the best of my -- to

18 the master plan for Rio Rico that shows that that will

19 do any, be anything but agricultural land.  So from a

20 land problem, the agricultural land cost per square acre

21 for obtaining right-of-way compared to land on the east

22 of the railroad where it is all platted property, all up

23 and down, except for that one part that I said I didn't

24 care what side it is on because that goes through the

25 field, the agricultural fields.  But the part that we
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1 are interested in, I think Rio Rico Properties -- there

2 was one public comment today said they wouldn't mind

3 going to either side.  They wanted to make it -- they

4 are not against, from the property owner, one owner to

5 negotiate with, or 40 or 50, I think is easier for the

6 company's viewpoint.

7          All I can say is I think that's a reasonable

8 option to be explored.  I obviously am not in a position

9 to make a decision.  I can only give you a

10 recommendation, and after that, it is totally up to you.

11          I also do attend the Santa Cruz active

12 management meetings.  We meet once a month.  And

13 Ms. Sherry Sass, who was one of the ladies who talked

14 from the Friends of Santa Cruz River, is in charge of

15 that citizens' committee.  And we are a unique active

16 management area.  We are required to sustain our water

17 resources.  Probably the only place in Arizona that is

18 presently sustaining and not drilling down and taking

19 away groundwater, because this county's

20 agriculture -- or hydrological conditions are slightly

21 unique.

22          We have six microbasins from Mexico that the

23 river flows.  It goes through six little ponds until it

24 gets into Pima County.  We really don't have

25 groundwater, we really have surface water.  It is always
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1 flowing.  But we are not allowed to stop that flow.  We

2 are required to keep -- the amount that comes in from

3 Mexico has to be equal to the amount that goes out, or

4 Pima County loses their water.  So it is very important

5 for our friends to the north.

6          Right now, our comprehensive plan for Santa Cruz

7 County on page 62 says that, the 2004 plan says that

8 with 31 more thousand people, approximately 31 more

9 thousand people, we will then reach the limit of

10 sustainability of water resources in this county, which

11 comes to about 77,000 people, 80,000, 75, somewhere

12 number in that range will be the outer limit before dry

13 lots will be the way you get your water.  A truck will

14 bring it in, which I don't think is a very good

15 arrangement.

16          And so, also, about 75, 80,000 people being the

17 maximum sustainable population for Santa Cruz County, it

18 also gives us a maximum number of people we have to

19 furnish electricity for.  And in a study I did in 2005,

20 I came to the conclusion, if I remember the numbers,

21 about 117 to 120 kilowatts -- megawatts was what we

22 needed to have sustainability to max that population

23 with sustainability with electricity.

24          So the numbers that we are working on this power

25 line are reasonable, but it is 20 or so years from now
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1 before we reach that number.  That's some background.

2          Next I would like to talk about reliability.

3 Are there any questions on the other areas I have talked

4 about?

5          (No response.)

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  Reliability.  Without redundancy,

7 reliability means only fractional improvements.  It is

8 redundancy.  Two is so much better than one.  And as I

9 have said before, nothing is being done to make the

10 system more reliable in my cross-examinations.  For

11 normal operations, sometimes called N-0, a system must

12 operate to meet expectations.  That's about all we can

13 do now.  But to have one element not operating within

14 its normal range, that's called N-1, one element not

15 operating.

16          There are four elements, generation,

17 transmission, poles, and transformers.  Let's look and

18 compare the present situation versus the proposed, the

19 138 kilovolt.  Are we going to be limited by one

20 transformer to the north?  Yes.  If that transformer

21 fails, we are in big trouble.  Are we going to be

22 limited by one transmission line?  Well, we do have our

23 46kV line and transmission down south, but when that

24 line fails, it cuts us off.  If a pole fails, it cuts us

25 off.  And if the source of generation, which is remote
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1 north of either the Vail substation or the Nogales tap,

2 when that fails, we lose power.  So we cannot meet N-1

3 today.

4          Mr. Beck is very proud of the fact that many of

5 the people in Santa Cruz, many parts of San -- of Pima

6 County are at N-2, or at least N-1-1.  He works for

7 those goals and he has done an excellent job.  But this

8 county isn't there.  We were required by ACC Order 62011

9 of 2 November 1999 to have installed a second

10 transmission line, not the subject of today's

11 proceedings, but would give us the second required line

12 we need.

13          I have talked to the company about ways to try

14 to do that.  And one of the ways I have proposed is to

15 take the overloaded Valencia substation, which I think

16 you might admit could not have had much expansion left

17 if you saw it on the tour yesterday, there is a second

18 already approved by the City of Nogales, already

19 approved with the CEC in Case No. 111, a second

20 substation authorized with 115 kilovolt line in

21 northwest Nogales in the City of Nogales.

22          Where that would be on the map, Nogales is way

23 down at the bottom, but do you see, do you see Mariposa

24 Road at the bottom, the one that goes east-west?  There

25 is like a little box down there where it intersects with
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1 another road.  Do you see a little box?  Just a little

2 bit up to the northwest of that, they already own the

3 property.  They can put in a second substation.  And

4 they already have a line authorized to go there.  That

5 then would offload the flood prone Valencia substation,

6 give us a second -- the number two is always better than

7 number one -- the second substation in Nogales.

8          MR. PATTEN:  Chairman, if I could interrupt, I

9 think we are straying far afield from this particular

10 project.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What can we do about that in

12 this proceeding?  What is the relevance?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  The relevancy is when I take that

14 line, continue through the national forest on the

15 utility corridor and come out and join either Sonoita or

16 the Cañez substation, those lines can be double

17 circuited going north, and we can have a loop.  And one

18 of the benefits of this program is putting in poles that

19 can take six wires instead of three, that was the point

20 I was trying to make, which will improve our reliability

21 with the loop.  And that happens to also be in the

22 10-year plan.  So it is a little related to this, so we

23 might come back here, you might have to come back to

24 here again.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So your position is
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1 that from Cañez or Sonoita north the poles should be

2 replaced with poles that could carry six wires?

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  Six conductors instead of three,

4 some day.  And it doesn't have to be done on this

5 project, but this project poles are capable of adding

6 three more arms at some future time.  And that's a very

7 good benefit that we don't have now.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Before we leave

9 reliability, you have in your opening statement made the

10 comment that you didn't think that all of the wooden

11 poles needed to be replaced.  Am I remembering that

12 correctly?

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  I do.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Doesn't this cut

15 against that?  Isn't that inconsistent with that?

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  We could have the wood poles

17 until we get ready to put the loop in.  In other words,

18 they might not have to be done now.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Wouldn't we be assuming a risk

20 of a reliability problem unless we had perfect knowledge

21 about which 40-year-old pole was going to fail?

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  As Mr. Beck testified, and based

23 on an exhibit that I had called Magruder Exhibit MM-3

24 from Transmission and Distribution World Magazine of

25 February 2009, it goes into testing of poles.  And the
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1 reason I handed that out is I really want to know do

2 these poles really have to be replaced now, because age

3 in that article is not the best way to determine just to

4 replace poles, there are other ways.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is that the article that talks

6 about drilling a hole in the pole?

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, yes, that's one way.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So we are going to drill a hole

9 in a wooden pole in order to increase reliability of

10 that pole?

11          MR. MAGRUDER:  We determine the strength of the

12 pole.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Isn't the strength of the pole

14 after the hole is drilled in it likely to be less than

15 the strength of the pole before the hole is drilled in

16 it?

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  I haven't seen the results of

18 that study.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Well...

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't know.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  I am sorry.  I just

22 wanted to make sure we talked about it.

23          MR. MAGRUDER:  Now let's look at Magruder

24 Exhibit MM-11.  MM-11 -- I am pretty sure I am on the

25 right one now.  MM-11 is a result of a data request and
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1 it comes into the ten failures in the last five years on

2 the 115 kilovolt line.  And you can read the data I

3 received on the first two pages.

4          And I have done a summary on the third page.  My

5 summary is meant to accurately reflect the first two

6 pages.  And if we look at the outages, and I did number

7 them and I drew some horizontal lines so you could see

8 which failure number is 1, 2, 3 through 10, I won't read

9 my summary, but other than the last one, none of those

10 poles failed.  They might be replacing a pole, but that

11 doesn't mean they had an outage due to the pole.

12          The NERC requirements for N-1 reliability are

13 .33 failures per year.  That turns out to be a failure

14 per third year.  Five years of data, other than the

15 tenth one, I would, I would say they exceeded the NERC

16 requirements, just happen to be in the last five years

17 of those poles.  Now, number 10, an insulator failed.

18 Well, that's, I consider that a failure.

19          So from a reliability sense, those poles, at

20 least on the data for the last five years, don't show

21 any major problems.  And in the study I did in 2005, we

22 averaged about the same failure rate on the transmission

23 line during that time, too.  But basically, from the

24 last five years there have been no pole failures other

25 than one insulator on one pole.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you think the company should

2 wait until there is a pole failure?

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  No.  No, I don't think they

4 should wait until there is a pole failure.  What I am

5 suggesting is they might want to use more modern methods

6 to determine the strength and capability of existing

7 poles to decide when they should be replaced based on

8 statistical data, not just because, oh, they are a bunch

9 of old poles.

10          MR. PATTEN:  Your Honor, I think that misstates

11 Mr. Beck's testimony.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  He is testifying now so he can

13 give his statement.  I am trying to understand it.

14          Is the modern method of testing pole strength

15 that you referred to the process that involves drilling

16 a hole in it?

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's one of the techniques,

18 yes.  And the article basically said that's better, you

19 get better results unless long-term failure and it is

20 more cost effective in the big picture to use strength

21 measurement data.  There is another technique.  And

22 that's also just measuring the diameter of the pole.

23 That tells you when it fails.

24          I think there is another question, Mr. Chairman.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member McGuire.
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1          MEMBER McGUIRE:  Doesn't it seem that the most

2 effective way to evaluate the life of a pole is what

3 those poles have done in the past?  They know after 40

4 years they start to fail.

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  Well --

6          MEMBER McGUIRE:  That's past history, they know

7 that.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't know if they -- to the

9 best of my knowledge, I asked how they determine if the

10 poles needed replacement.  I never got an answer.  So to

11 the best of my knowledge I have no idea how they

12 determine when it is time to replace the poles.

13          Poles come, are made out of different types of

14 wood.  There is different types of treatment.  Some are

15 in the sun, some are in the -- different weather

16 conditions.  All that affects when a pole eventually

17 reaches -- woodpeckers are a major -- in the south, pine

18 poles can maybe go 12 years, but we don't have too many

19 woodpeckers around here, which is good from that sense.

20 But I am just -- I asked the company and they didn't

21 have an answer other than the fact they are old.  I look

22 for scientific methods to make decisions.  I am sorry.

23          The Nogales tap.  I don't know if I am in love

24 with the Nogales tap.  But I think that it is an

25 important thing, and I don't want to see it given up
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1 unless that is the ultimately best decision.  Even

2 though $2.1 million was spent in 1999 for this fancy

3 three-ring bus, I just hate to walk away and leave it,

4 because this is the case where the ratepayers have paid

5 for it.  We own it.  And we paid it for ten years.  So

6 about $200,000 a year, if we just amortize it over ten

7 years, has gone into that switch for 15,000 customers.

8 That's a lot of money just for the switch that you are

9 just going to throw away.

10          So if we can possibly put a fourth breaker on

11 it, if it can be, if the proposals that I have also had

12 in my testimony to bring in renewable energy to that

13 switch occur, then the renewable energy that comes into

14 that tap can still go down to us as a way to augment the

15 WAPA line.

16          The technical decisions that Mr. Beck had this

17 morning I am not disagreeing with.  He knows that;

18 that's his job.  But if we could make, I am not going to

19 going try to take that one on, but if we could make it

20 so that we could have two different sources, because two

21 sources are always better than one, then we will have

22 higher reliability.  And I always like two.  But right

23 now we will go from one substation to another

24 substation.  If we could have two substations coming to

25 us, that would be better.
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1          The next thing is with respect to double

2 circuiting.  We already have poles in Segment 1B.  They

3 are not being adjusted in this process.  But these steel

4 poles are made in sections.  Pull off the top section

5 and put on a new one, it could take a double circuit.  I

6 forgot to ask that question.  But if we could do

7 something like that, then we could get the double

8 circuit going all the way down for as far as we could go

9 down, and we would help finally satisfy ACC Order 62011

10 which right now is in abeyance.  It tells us we have to

11 have a second transmission line.

12          I am not trying -- I am speaking in favor of a

13 second transmission line, if some people think I am

14 against a second transmission line.  But if it can be

15 more efficient and cost effective, I think we should

16 always think in that direction in the future, and not

17 lose our $2 million switch.

18          The next subject is increased capacity.  I think

19 we discussed that this morning.  I think I came up with

20 the answer.  It is -- our line is capable of the 120

21 megawatts.  So there is no -- the conductor is not going

22 to make a big -- carry more power.  It is the insulators

23 that apparently are a problem between the 115 insulator

24 and a 138 insulator, which is why we have to rig new

25 lines, new wires.
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1          Mr. Beck also this morning discussed the 345 to

2 115 transformer at the Vail substation and wanted to

3 allocate 120 megawatts for our customers here.  75 is

4 our peak.  I don't -- would prefer not to have, when he

5 makes that decision, to make us pay for 120 megawatts

6 when we have no demand under any circumstances for that

7 number of megawatts at this time.  It could be a

8 progressive 75 this year, 80 three years from now, 85 in

9 five years and so forth.  I would have full concurrence

10 with that type of approach.  But I don't think we should

11 buy and pay the costs of something we cannot use.  I do

12 not see a major new electrical demand requirement other

13 than normal progression in Santa Cruz County.  I know of

14 no steel mills moving here, no aluminum factories, no

15 car mills, very slow progression.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Before we leave there, I need to

17 understand your testimony, Mr. Magruder.  Now, are you

18 saying that there is no need for this project?

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  I am saying after hearing the

20 discussion on the insulator, then I think we -- that's

21 probably the thing that requires us to need the new

22 lines.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  So, all right, so you

24 take the position, your position is that the project is

25 needed, is that correct?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  It would not be needed if they

2 could get power from WAPA.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And the testimony was

4 that they have some problems with that.  So again, is it

5 your position that the project is needed?

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  I will say it is needed.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And hopefully you are

8 saying that, because you are under oath as a witness,

9 that's what you believe.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, I believe.  But again, this

11 is the 52/48 case.  Well, you know, that's why I had to

12 think.  But at this time, I believe that it is needed.

13 Okay?

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  52 percent is testifying now?

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's the majority.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Proceed.

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  In summary, I think that it is a

18 little bit better taking the hybrid approach in

19 Segment 4 on that section.  In summary, I think it is

20 best to take the west route, if not the west route, as

21 far west and as close to that railroad track as you can

22 put those poles on the preferred alignment in the Rio

23 Rico area where it is close and in the north end of

24 Segment 1A.  And in Segment 2, I didn't discuss it but

25 the preferred route there.
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1          I think the company should try to figure out a

2 way of possibly using the Nogales tap.  A suggestion

3 off-line yesterday was put it in my backyard, and I said

4 no, I don't really want it in my backyard.  I think

5 there is someplace.  It will not help my grandson's

6 electric train set; I don't need that much power.  So I

7 declined that offer.  I hope they can come up with a

8 better offer in the future.

9          And I am now ready, I would like to talk through

10 the CEC recommendations and then go through the

11 exhibits.  Is that a reasonable way to go?

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you are going to talk through

13 the CEC recommendations, it doesn't sound to me like you

14 are going to be testifying.

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  Can I testify what I have

16 proposed for those CEC recommendations?

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  That's probably legal argument,

18 and you ought to wait until we are all on that page and

19 we are all talking about it.  Then you can tell us why

20 you favor one and don't favor another.

21          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I would like

22 to look at my exhibits and consider them --

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  -- for -- what is the right

25 word -- offer them for evidence.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  And I will walk through the book

3 one at a time.  I think that's probably the easiest way

4 for all the parties to look at them.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Certainly it is the easiest way

6 for older folks like you and me.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  So we have Exhibit MM-1.  The

8 basis for the exhibit, it was the result of a data

9 request submitted by the company.  It is a document

10 written by the company.  The document appears to me to

11 be a reasonable copy.  The applicant was familiar with

12 the document when I showed it to him.

13          MR. PATTEN:  Your Honor, we have no objection to

14 MM-1.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  See, that's, it cuts

16 things short if you see if there is an objection.  If

17 they don't object, then you don't have to worry about

18 arguing.

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  No objections, okay.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, do you object?

21          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You are offering MM-1?

23          MR. MAGRUDER:  Offering MM-1 for evidence.

24          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  There is no objection to MM-1.
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1 MM-1 is admitted.

2          (Exhibit No. MM-1 was admitted into evidence.)

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-2, any objections?

4          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

5          MR. PATTEN:  I would just note for the record it

6 is a portion of a filing in front of the Corporation

7 Commission, and the entire document would be available

8 on the Commission website.  With that understanding we

9 don't object to MM-2.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, and of course the Arizona

11 rules of evidence postdate the rules of procedure in

12 these proceedings, unfortunately, but I am willing to,

13 as a matter of, we will call it, the common law of this

14 Committee, consider a Rule 106 application to allow a

15 complete document in if you so desire.

16          If you are content with allowing the Committee

17 and/or the Commission to go to the documents that are on

18 file with the Corporation Commission should they be

19 interested in seeing the complete document, then I am

20 comfortable with that, because those documents would be

21 a matter of I think the Commission and the Committee

22 could take administrative or legal notice of.

23          Does that make sense to you?

24          MR. PATTEN:  That makes sense to us and we have

25 done that in numerous other proceedings in front of the



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

571

1 Commission.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

3          MR. MAGRUDER:  Mr. Chairman, could you explain

4 that in English?  Does that mean it is okay?

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  That means it is okay.

6          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So MM-2 is admitted.

8          (Exhibit No. MM-2 was admitted into evidence.)

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  But the rule here is important

10 and it may come up again, so I will explain it to you.

11          If you try to offer part of a document or part

12 of a transcript, another party can say that's taken out

13 of context, we want the whole document or the whole

14 transcript.  And so that's an option that they have,

15 they can make an objection based upon what is Rule 106

16 of the rules of evidence in Arizona.  And that's

17 something I would consider.  They have said that they

18 are not going to object on that ground, so that's good

19 enough for me.  And so MM-2 is admitted.

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.

21          MM-3 happens to be an article out of a magazine

22 that discusses wood pole strength.

23          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

24          MR. PATTEN:  We have no objection.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  And this involves
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1 the Aussie widget, this is the pole testing method?

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes, Your Honor.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It would involve drilling a hole

4 to test the strength of the pole?

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  Amongst other things.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Amongst other things.  All

7 right.  There is no objection.  MM-3 is admitted.

8          (Exhibit No. MM-3 was admitted into evidence.)

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-4, which is one page of a

10 previous filing submitted in another case.  And I prefer

11 not to give the 204 pages of that testimony.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection to MM-4?

13          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

14          MR. PATTEN:  No objection based on the same

15 understanding as with MM-2.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  MM-4 is admitted.

17          (Exhibit No. MM-4 was admitted into evidence.)

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-5, which is a forecast peak

19 demand, which in my opinion is, it is something that I

20 have created.  I have 15 references on page 3.  I have

21 used this, and it is a continually expanding document,

22 graph, that contains the history of peak demands in

23 Santa Cruz County.  I did not include, because of the

24 late receipt, Mr. Beck's latest numbers.  But it is

25 correct and I think a good reference as it is now.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

2          MR. PATTEN:  Your Honor, I think I would object

3 to this one.  Again, it is based on numerous documents

4 asserted, allegedly based on numerous documents that

5 were not provided to meet the summary.  And without

6 having an opportunity to review those, I would be

7 concerned it is not accurate.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I need to ask you some

9 questions, Mr. Magruder.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You say that this data is taken

12 out of the documents that you have listed.  The

13 documents that you have listed are what kinds of

14 documents?

15          MR. MAGRUDER:  Well, reference 60 is -- 16 is

16 UNSE generation forecast, and I have the website and it

17 was available on the 27th of May 2008.  Reference 15 is

18 another forecast and it was from, I believe, Exhibit

19 MM-1, in this hearing.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So, and I am looking down

21 through here and seeing that the dates on these

22 documents go from May 27 of 2008 back to, looks like

23 1988 or February 2001.  Is the data contained in those

24 references data that is or was current at the time of

25 the publication of the references that you have listed?
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1          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have done the best that I could

2 to indicate the date of the reference in the line

3 underneath the reference, horizontal line.  There is a

4 date there.  And when I look, the first reference is

5 typical, it is some slides that I got from Citizens and

6 an energy commission meeting.

7          I can say there that none of this data is mine.

8 I did not derive any of these numbers.  All of this came

9 from other documents.  And I cannot determine the

10 validity of anybody else's document, of course, it is

11 not mine.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And can you tell me which bits

13 of data on your chart come from which references?

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.  If you notice, in the

15 second horizontal line it says reference 16, reference

16 15, reference 14 on the top, as you go, reference 1 --

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Yes.

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  -- reference 1 on the right side.

19 Now, you go to the third page and it says forecast data

20 and then it starts at reference 16, 15, 14.  And then

21 you see the next one I have, 13 and 12 on the same UNSE

22 rate case data.  One was for 3 percent growth and one

23 was 5 percent growth.

24          And then you can continue on for very slow.  I

25 did put words like slow and hot and normalized.  And I
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1 have just had this with Mr. Beck and he knows that.  And

2 that also makes the data more variable, because if it is

3 slow growth compared to fast growth, the numbers will

4 increase faster than they will during the slow growth.

5          Again, I honestly tried to put the best numbers

6 by year with the forecast data.  And then the left-hand

7 column I have the actual data.  I have used this in rate

8 cases.  I have used this in reliability hearings.  And

9 it just keeps getting bigger as I keep getting more

10 information.

11          And I understand the objection.  I do not -- I

12 will not say these numbers are perfect.  Okay?

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am going to overrule the

14 objection here and allow the concerns that have been

15 raised to go to the weight rather than the

16 admissibility.  We are dealing with an administrative

17 hearing.  It does appear from the references that much

18 of the data comes from, purportedly from reports that

19 are generated by the applicant.  I do this, of course,

20 with the proviso that the applicant is certainly free to

21 cross-examine over the data that is presented.

22          MR. PATTEN:  Fair enough, Your Honor.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  But I will accept the avowal or

24 the testimony of Mr. Magruder that he has collected

25 those from sources that include a substantial number of
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1 applicant sources.

2          MR. PATTEN:  And, Your Honor, often in a

3 Commission proceeding I would agree to the admission

4 subject to check.  I have no reason to think

5 Mr. Magruder has not pulled this together the way he has

6 explained it.  And that may be, and this is a slightly

7 different proceeding, with some different evidentiary

8 burdens than many Commission proceedings, so if that

9 process is acceptable to you, that may short circuit

10 some of these things.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, do you object?

12          MS. WEBB:  I don't object.  But I think I want

13 to do that thing that -- and I am not questioning you,

14 Marshall, trust me.  Mr. Patten said that subject to

15 check.  Given his credentials, I absolutely believe

16 this.  But I thought it was going to follow under that

17 106 thing.  But I think, I don't object to it at all,

18 but I think the thing that, if somebody did go and check

19 and there was something that was a little off, is that

20 how it is?

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  If you would like to condition

22 your objection on an ability to check this out, your

23 nonobjection to a later checking it out, that's fine, we

24 will note that.

25          I will admit the exhibit subject to further
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1 cross-examination or further testimony.  All right.

2 Let's proceed.

3          (Exhibit No. MM-5 was admitted into evidence.)

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  Exhibit MM-6 happens to be

5 reference 15.  And it is from a website that I have

6 cited in the previous document.  And it is a UES data

7 sheet.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

9          MR. PATTEN:  Again with the representation of

10 where it came from subject to check, we have no

11 objection.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

13          MS. WEBB:  No.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Without objection then MM-6 is

15 admitted.

16          (Exhibit No. MM-6 was admitted into evidence.)

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  7 -- 6, excuse me.  MM-7 is

18 another similar projection by month of peak demand.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  From what source, sir?

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  Another UNSE website.  It might

21 be the OATT site if I remember correctly.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The OATT?

23          MR. MAGRUDER:  They have to provide data so

24 other companies can know what their peak demands are.

25 And this is where that would come from.
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1          MR. PATTEN:  It is the Open Access Transmission

2 Tariff website that is maintained by FERC.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So there is no agricultural

4 connotation that's associated?

5          MR. PATTEN:  Not on this one.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

7          MS. WEBB:  Can I do a nonobjection again?

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  You can have a nonobjection.

9          MS. WEBB:  And the same thing for me, I would

10 like to see some sort of reference to where it came

11 from.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Well, I will accept

13 Mr. Magruder's representation that he got it off of the

14 OATT site for UNS.

15          MR. PATTEN:  If I could inquire of Mr. Magruder

16 approximately what day you printed this off.

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  The same day as the previous one,

18 27 May.

19          MR. PATTEN:  Subject to check, we have no

20 objection.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  7 is

22 admitted.

23          (Exhibit No. MM-7 was admitted into evidence.)

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  MM-8.

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-8 was received by the company
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1 in response to my data request 1-3.  And it is written

2 by Tucson Electric and Southwest Transmission

3 Corporation dated April 3rd, 2009.

4          Actually let me, let me continue on.  If you

5 continue through the document, it is only a part of a

6 document which included several other proposals.  The

7 last two pages are the cover letter that included that

8 proposal, and that is dated April 3rd, 2009, from, as

9 you noticed, a variety of companies' logos at the top of

10 the paper.  That's the forwarding letter.  And this

11 happened to be one -- happens to be one of about five

12 proposals in that letter.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Is there an objection?

14          MR. PATTEN:  I do object on relevance on this

15 one.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is the relevance?

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  It discusses the use of a Nogales

18 tap in the future for reliable energy interfaces,

19 interconnection.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Could you point us to that

21 language, what page?

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  One example is on page 2, last

23 paragraph, five lines from the bottom.  Figure 1 on

24 page 3, it is extremely hard, but in the original sent

25 from the company I can read the word Nogales on top of
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1 one of those lines.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Again, we are in an

3 administrative proceeding.  It is -- I will allow this

4 to go to the weight rather than the admissibility.  It

5 does mention the Nogales tap.  I will allow it.  And put

6 it this way, it appears that there is no significant

7 prejudice associated with its admission.  And we will

8 admit it for whatever relevance it may have.

9          (Exhibit No. MM-8 was admitted into evidence.)

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Exhibit MM-9, which is Southwest

11 Transmission Co-op substation information, and honestly

12 I don't remember what website I downloaded this from so

13 I will just leave it at that.  But it does include the

14 Nogales tap to the year 2017 in the last line.

15          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

16          MS. WEBB:  No objection -- well, the same one.

17          MR. PATTEN:  I would object to this.

18          MS. WEBB:  I know where it comes from.  I just

19 have future ongoing concerns with this same thing.  I

20 would just like to know where information is derived

21 from so I don't have an objection.  I am just pointing

22 out a concern.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

24          MS. WEBB:  But it does reference the Nogales tap

25 and UNSE.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  No, you have objection?

2          MR. PATTEN:  Without knowing the source it is

3 tough to agree to it subject to check, so...

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  It is, and I think that's pretty

5 basic.  So I am going to sustain the objection to this

6 exhibit without information concerning its source.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's fine.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Thank you.

9          MM-10.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-10.  Exhibit MM-10 is my

11 witness summary, which is also filed with Docket

12 Control.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

14          MR. PATTEN:  No objection.

15          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  MM-10 is admitted.

17          (Exhibit No. MM-10 was admitted into evidence.)

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-11 was a data request,

19 attachment for data request 1-10 submitted earlier to

20 the company.  And I received it last Friday.  I did draw

21 some horizontal lines and labeled each of the ten

22 outages on pages 1 and 2, and I have written a

23 supplement on page 3 to summarize the table.

24          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

25          MS. WEBB:  No objection.
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1          MR. PATTEN:  No objection.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  MM-11 is admitted.

3          (Exhibit No. MM-11 was admitted into evidence.)

4          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-12 is a result of a data

5 request 2-34 which was to look at the electric and the

6 electromagnetic fields.  The purpose of this was to look

7 at the narrowest road or right-of-way width where

8 electrical and electromagnetic field strength might be

9 an issue in determining those road widths.

10          I have drawn two vertical lines on each, and

11 from of the original I can see what is the pre -- a

12 pre-upgrade for the pre-project and post-project curve.

13          And then on the second page I have the electric

14 field.

15          And the third page in that exhibit is a table

16 from the Sahuarita/Nogales transmission line final

17 environmental impact statement, page 4-114, that

18 those -- the electromagnetic strengths and for the

19 magnetic field and for the electrical field.  And I did

20 not go into this in my testimony because of Mr. Beck's

21 response that I had that implied that the field

22 radiation distances were not a factor that he considered

23 in determining right-of-way.  In previous cases it has

24 been considered important.  And using the data from

25 previous studies show I could possibly get it down to 40
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1 feet and that was the purpose of the data.  Both sources

2 are from UNS Electric.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, is there an objection?

4          MR. PATTEN:  With respect to the first two

5 pages, I would just note that we did provide the charts.

6 The handwriting I believe is Mr. Magruder's on the two

7 documents.  With that understanding, no objection to the

8 first two pages of MM-12.

9          And we have no objection to the data content

10 within the third page.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Any objection, Ms. Webb.

12          MS. WEBB:  I don't remember the exhibit.  It is

13 not in my original binder.  That's why I was asking.

14          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's the previous page.

15          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No objections, MM-12 is

17 admitted.

18          (Exhibit No. MM-12 was admitted into evidence.)

19          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-13 is a data request for

20 reliability data, and was sort of typical of some of the

21 responses I received in my testimony, that I did not

22 receive answers to some of my data requests.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

24          MR. PATTEN:  I would object to his

25 characterization of a response, since in this case this
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1 is the response we provided.

2          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  The objection is sustained.  I

4 have trouble with relevance.  I have trouble with the

5 handwriting.  So on a couple of different levels I am

6 not sure that that adds much to the proceeding.  So

7 MM-14 is out.

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's fine.  MM-14 --

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  13.

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Do you want -- were you talking

11 13 or 14?

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  13.  Let's go to 14.

13          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-14 is an excerpt from the

14 Federal Register dated June 22nd, 2004.  And the reason

15 I had this in my prefiled exhibits was that on the

16 second page it talks about the cost for wheeling charges

17 in terms of dollars per kilowatt month for the WAPA area

18 in Arizona, the southwest district of the Western Area

19 Power Administration.

20          And on the last page, I took and did a

21 calculation based on what I understood was equivalent

22 was for TEP and for WAPA.  Upon cross-examination of

23 Mr. Beck, I found out that that technique is not being

24 used anymore.  And, therefore, the additional $827,000

25 that I determined by comparing the WAPA versus TEP rates
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1 issue has been resolved, and I would like to withdraw

2 this item.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I assume no one objects.

4          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

5          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Very good.  14 is out.

6          15.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  15 is the response to data

8 request 1-7, which was asking cost data for the program.

9 And I have discussed it in my testimony.  And on the

10 second page I had a breakout of the numbers that they

11 had.  And at that point, I thought the project cost was

12 $35 million.  I have since found out it is something

13 else.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

15          MS. WEBB:  No.

16          MR. PATTEN:  I believe Mr. Beck did testify it

17 is his exhibit.  I think it would clarify the record if

18 it was included in the record, so no objection.

19          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  No objection, 15 is in.

21          (Exhibit No. MM-15 was admitted into evidence.)

22          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Now, I don't have a 16 in front

24 of me.

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  I believe 16 was the picture that
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1 I handed out of the power pole in the middle of the

2 Santa Cruz River.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ah.  All right.  Any objection?

4          MR. PATTEN:  No objection, Your Honor.

5          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  16 is admitted.

7          (Exhibit No. MM-16 was admitted into evidence.)

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  Exhibit MM-17 is a picture

9 showing the contrast between various pole types at the

10 Kantor substation and a row of 46 kilovolt Corten poles.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

12          MR. PATTEN:  No objection, Your Honor.

13          MS. WEBB:  No objection.

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  17 is in.

15          (Exhibit No. MM-17 was admitted into evidence.)

16          MR. MAGRUDER:  MM-18 is my actual submission on

17 the 7th of May of my data request set 1.  I actually

18 e-mailed it off probably about 90 percent of what was in

19 the actual one in draft form as a heads-up.  So I gave

20 the company even a heads-up that the data request is

21 coming.  But I do not consider it being submitted until

22 the 7th when I formally submitted it.  And this is my

23 data request set 1.

24          And the next one is, I think we can do these

25 together, is MM, is Exhibit MM-19, and that's my data
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1 set 2.

2          And I would like to present those for admission.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Any objection to

4 MM-18 or MM-19?

5          MR. PATTEN:  I would object as irrelevant to the

6 issues here.

7          CHMN. FOREMAN:  What is the relevance?

8          MR. MAGRUDER:  My testimony and my

9 cross-examination was not clean cut because I learned

10 items as these proceedings continued.  As I learned

11 items, things changed.  And it was because I was not

12 provided the information in a timely manner.

13          CHMN. FOREMAN:  So your concern here is that

14 people will know that changes in your testimony have

15 come about as a result of the changes in the responses

16 that you have gotten to your data requests.  Am I

17 understanding you?

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  Yes.  And the response -- and I

19 testified that I just didn't, I thought my questions

20 were good, I just didn't get the answers.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.

22          MR. PATTEN:  Your Honor, if I could respond to

23 that.

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  And I don't want to be

25 argumentative.
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1          MR. PATTEN:  We did respond to his data

2 requests.  We ultimately did answer all of them.  He

3 gave us a large number of them well before he had been

4 granted intervention that we never could provide

5 information.  I think Mr. Magruder was not satisfied

6 with some of the answers and perhaps we didn't

7 necessarily understand some of the data requests, but I

8 just felt a need to respond to Mr. Magruder's

9 statements.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And again, this is admission of

11 evidence, it is not evaluation of it.  And again it is

12 an administrative proceeding.  I understand now the

13 basis for his request.  And I will admit MM-18 and MM-19

14 for the limited purpose of demonstrating the reason for

15 the changes in his testimony.

16          (Exhibits Nos. MM-18 and MM-19 were admitted

17 into evidence.)

18          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Does that conclude

19 the exhibits that you had to offer, sir?

20          MR. MAGRUDER:  I would like to ask the Chairman.

21          Would you want me to copy my opening statement?

22 I can enter it or not enter it.  Doesn't matter to me.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Your opening statement is in the

24 record.  I don't think there is --

25          MR. MAGRUDER:  That's why I asked the question.
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1 Thank you.

2          I finished with my data requests, with my

3 exhibits.

4          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Now, how long do you

5 anticipate your examination of Mr. Magruder will last?

6          MR. PATTEN:  I have no cross-examination for

7 Mr. Magruder.

8          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Ms. Webb, how long do you

9 anticipate your examination of Mr. Magruder will last?

10          MS. WEBB:  I am scared.  Sorry.  I need the

11 microphone.  Ten minutes.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Well, we are late in the day.  I

13 would like very much to -- I think some Committee

14 members have more questions for Mr. Magruder, and I

15 would like to finish his examination today.  So please

16 proceed, please make it as succinct as possible.

17          MS. WEBB:  Actually I have two questions.

18

19                     CROSS-EXAMINATION

20 BY MS. WEBB:

21    Q.    Mr. Magruder, how are you today?

22    A.    I am doing just fine.

23    Q.    I had them right available until we started this

24 exhibit thing.  I apologize.

25          You mentioned renewable energy, if they were
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1 able to do a fourth ring on the bus at the Nogales tap.

2 Have you seen my Exhibit EW-11?

3    A.    Yes, I have.

4    Q.    Okay.  Can you turn to the last page.

5    A.    Can I have it?

6    Q.    Now I don't have one.  On the last page it says

7 the delivery point.  Tell me what --

8    A.    And I see one of the delivery points is Nogales

9 tap, 115 kilovolts for UNS Electric.

10    Q.    Do you think if -- would this be a possible --

11 or could you identify this exhibit, please.

12    A.    This is a 2009 request for proposals for wind

13 renewable energy resources, Tucson Electric Power and

14 UNS Electric, dated May 19th, 2009.  And it is labeled

15 as Exhibit EW-11.

16    Q.    So in your opinion, if they were able to do this

17 fourth bus at the Nogales tap, then renewable energy

18 could go through the Nogales tap, is that correct?

19    A.    Based on the testimony from Mr. Beck, it appears

20 that that is highly probable.

21    Q.    And you testified that the peak load in Nogales

22 is 75, correct?

23    A.    Approximately 75 at this time.

24    Q.    And my understanding from the testimony earlier

25 is that the constraint in Nogales or for the line is
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1 somewhere around 60 megawatts, is that correct,

2 currently with the WAPA agreement?

3    A.    The WAPA agreement says 50.9 unless they have a

4 generator lit off.  And if they have a -- and my

5 understanding is if they have one generator lit off, it

6 is good for 65.8.

7    Q.    Okay.  Now, we are -- I am not going to ask any

8 more.

9    A.    I would have been able to give you a much better

10 answer, but one of my data requests were to see the

11 documentation, and I never got to the documentation.

12          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Mr. Magruder, no question is in

13 front of you.

14          THE WITNESS:  Okay.

15 BY MS. WEBB:

16    Q.    Do you feel you had adequate answers to your

17 questions to be able to answer that kind of a question?

18    A.    I did not receive the documentation to support

19 the change in the WAPA constraints that was asked in one

20 of my data requests.

21    Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  We will just go on to the

22 next subject.

23          Have you seen my EW Exhibit 8, second page -- or

24 first page, second photo on the left?

25    A.    No stopping sign?
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1    Q.    Second photo down on the left.

2    A.    The one that is on the street that shows the two

3 sets of the poles?

4    Q.    You have a different one than I do.  On the

5 right, yes, that one, correct.

6    A.    Okay.

7    Q.    Can you identify that photo, please.

8    A.    What was that?  Oh, that was taken in Phoenix,

9 in south Phoenix.

10    Q.    And the pole on the right, does it appear that

11 there is distribution lines on the large transmission

12 line?

13    A.    Yes, it does.  It looks like it is a little more

14 than a distribution.  It might be a 46 kilovolt or so.

15    Q.    But does it appear to you that on that large

16 distribution line there are two different varieties of

17 electrical lines?

18    A.    On the pole on the right, it looks to me to be

19 six transmission lines on the three arms, and then there

20 are three larger twin arms.  And then at the bottom

21 there are three smaller arms that look like they

22 probably have a subtransmission system on it.  And there

23 might even be something below that, I can't tell, like a

24 com line.

25    Q.    Can you identify what kind of poles those are on



UNS / Vail to Valencia 6/4/2009
L-00000F-09-0190-00144 Case No. 144   Vol. III

Court Reporting & Videoconferencing Center Phoenix, AZ
ARIZONA REPORTING SERVICE, INC. www.az-reporting.com (602) 274-9944

593

1 the left?

2    A.    They look like Corten steel.

3    Q.    In your opinion, which one can you see better?

4    A.    I can see Corten steel a lot easier than I can

5 see the, looks like, dull grayed galvanized steel.

6    Q.    Does this appear to be a rural or urban

7 environment?

8    A.    This appears to be an urban environment.

9    Q.    Okay.  All right.  That pretty much does it.

10 Thanks a lot.

11          Oh, wait, I wanted to ask one more question if

12 that's okay.  Did we in any way work together on your

13 testimony?  I mean, not testimony, but on our

14 questioning, cross-examination?

15    A.    No.  These were as much a surprise to me as they

16 were probably everybody else.

17          MS. WEBB:  Okay, thank you.

18          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.

19          MS. WEBB:  One more thing.  May I offer into

20 evidence Exhibit E-11, EW-11 now?

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Any objection?

22          MR. PATTEN:  I am not sure we have had adequate

23 foundation put in place for it, but no objection.

24          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have no objection.

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  E-11 is admitted.
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1          (Exhibit No. EW-11 was admitted into evidence.)

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Member Noland.

3

4                        EXAMINATION

5 BY MEMBER NOLAND:

6    Q.    Mr. Magruder, on your Exhibit MM-19, on page,

7 looks like page -- I don't know what page.  It is data

8 request 2-11.  It is at the bottom of --

9    A.    I see that.

10    Q.    -- the third page.

11    A.    I see that request.

12    Q.    Did you get an answer to this request from UNES?

13    A.    I did get an answer.

14    Q.    Is it a long answer?

15    A.    It is not that long.

16    Q.    I -- Mr. Chairman.

17          Can you refer me to the answer?  Just, is it in

18 their exhibits?

19    A.    No, it is not.  It is -- I have the data

20 responses from the company but it is very thick and

21 that's why I didn't provide it.

22    Q.    Okay.

23    A.    Do you want me to read?  It will take about 30

24 seconds to read it.

25    Q.    Read it a slow 30 seconds so that the court
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1 reporter can get the language.  Sometimes when people

2 read they read too fast.

3    A.    I sort of have to read the question and the

4 answer.  Do you mind my doing that?

5    Q.    Yes, I do.

6    A.    Okay.

7    Q.    I do mind you doing that.  I would just like to

8 have the answer.  We can read the question.

9    A.    Answer A, generally the 500 foot wide corridor

10 provides sufficient flexibility to work with landowners

11 along the proposed route for specific right-of-way

12 locations.  Specifically the 1250 foot wide corridor

13 request for the Preston Mobile Home UNS Electric seeks

14 additional flexibility to negotiate with the property

15 owner to determine actual right-of-way location.  B, see

16 response to 2-11 (A) above and 2-12 below.  Specific

17 maps may be available during the hearing.  C, generally

18 UNS Electric is requesting 500 foot wide and 1250 foot

19 wide corridors in which it intends to acquire a 100 foot

20 right-of-way.

21          MEMBER NOLAND:  Thank you.  Thank you.

22          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Other questions, Committee

23 members?

24          (No response.)

25          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.  Thank
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1 you, sir.

2          MR. MAGRUDER:  Thank you.

3          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Do you have any redirect of

4 yourself?

5          MR. MAGRUDER:  I don't, I don't think so.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Good.  Do you have

7 anything else to present, or is your presentation

8 concluded except, of course, for argument at the end?

9          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have concluded my presentation.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  Very good.

11          I think this is an appropriate time then to take

12 the evening break.  And I guess it is the break we have

13 come to at the end of our three-day session.  I am

14 disappointed that we were not able to conclude the

15 hearing within three days.  We will now have to find a

16 time where we can continue this matter.

17          Ms. Webb, how long do you anticipate it will

18 take to present your case?

19          MS. WEBB:  I am going to be optimistic and say

20 25 minutes, if there are no questions.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  I am just guessing that

22 there will be some questions.

23          Does the applicant anticipate any redirect

24 presentation?

25          MR. DERSTINE:  Not at this time.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  And I am trying to think of

2 whether we can get this done in one day or two.  And I

3 would ordinarily suggest that we schedule two days, and

4 hope we can get it done in one.  Are my fellow Committee

5 members comfortable with that approach?  Are the parties

6 comfortable with that approach?

7          MS. WEBB:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Can I just have

8 one small request maybe, or no?

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Sure.

10          MS. WEBB:  Is there a possibility that we could

11 try and get a hotel maybe in the Chandler side of

12 Phoenix, just because Mr. Magruder and I live so far

13 south --

14          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I think we could.

15          MS. WEBB:  -- and hope we don't use the second

16 day?

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I think that would make some

18 sense, try and find a hotel or other facility where this

19 could be heard that, number one, has good air

20 conditioning and, number two, has a working audio

21 system.  It seems to me that there has to be a higher

22 and better use of Mr. Jerden's time than what he has

23 been forced to do the last three days.

24          But I think what we will --

25          MEMBER EBERHART:  We do appreciate it.
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1          CHMN. FOREMAN:  We do appreciate his attempts.

2          I think what we will have to do is just contact

3 everybody.  But let me ask the applicant to get started

4 on trying to find a location.  And we are going to

5 try -- I would like to get back together as quickly as

6 possible.  Whenever we take a break like this you lose

7 something, and I think the quicker we get back together,

8 the easier it would be.

9          I am going to have a series of things that I

10 will want the parties to work on before we reconvene.  I

11 know one of the things now will be a list of exhibits

12 indicating which are in and which are out.  We will

13 want, of course, for the transcript of the tour to be

14 submitted.  And I have already indicated that that's in.

15 And I think that was UNS-22.

16          MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.

17          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I am going to want revised CECs.

18 I would like a revised CEC to have one condition that

19 addresses color.  And in the applicant's proposed CEC, I

20 would like the condition concerning color to articulate

21 the standard that the applicant would like for

22 exercising its discretion with regard to which color it

23 wants to use.

24          It is my understanding from Mr. Beck's testimony

25 that the applicant's position is that it would like the
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1 flexibility to use both, depending upon the elevation of

2 the pole placement, and so I would like to see the

3 actual wording.  And I will be giving you time limits

4 for this as we go along.

5          Ms. Webb, your testimony is going to be coming

6 on the last day, so we are not going to have a break

7 between your testimony and the time we go into a

8 discussion of the CEC.  I would like for you in advance

9 of the next proceeding to submit a very short pleading

10 that gives us your position with regard to each segment

11 of the proposed route.  I want you to go through just

12 like I went through it with Mr. Magruder.  If you

13 support the preferred locations, say so; if you have an

14 alternative, say so.  If you favor an alternative west

15 of the railroad tracks, then I need to know how legally

16 that's going to take place, because that's going to be a

17 major impediment.  If you have an opposition to the

18 replacement of the wooden poles, I want to know that.

19 If you have a position with regard to whether the poles

20 should be galvanized or the brown, I would like to know

21 that.  If you favor using both, then I would like for

22 you to articulate where you want to use one and where

23 you want to use the other.

24          And, Mr. Magruder, the same thing with you, a

25 short, very succinct pleading indicating, just in case
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1 the 52 percent becomes 49 percent, where you ultimately

2 line up with regard to each portion of the proposed

3 route and alternatives, how you would solve the problem

4 of placing the poles west of the railroad tracks in the

5 floodway, and what you would do about color.  If you

6 want them all one color, say that; if you want them two

7 colors, then tell us how you would make the break.

8          I would like all three parties to, and this

9 is -- you don't have to do this, but it would be very

10 helpful to the Committee if you would contact the Santa

11 Cruz County folks.  And, as Member Eberhart has pointed

12 out, there are concerns about placement of the poles in

13 the floodway.  If you are going to take the position

14 that that's legally possible, we are going to need

15 something in writing from somebody saying that that's

16 doable, and if you want to place it over in the

17 floodway.

18          We also are going to need something about how

19 you are going to deal with the water table issues.  And

20 there could potentially be water table issues on the

21 east side of the railroad tracks also.  And I would like

22 to see more information than what I see in the

23 applicant's CEC about what you would do if you take your

24 foundation down to the point where you get the water

25 table, because I think that that's a legitimate concern.
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1          Now, are there other concerns that Committee

2 members wanted -- Member Noland.

3          MEMBER NOLAND:  Mr. Chairman, something that we

4 don't have here, and was part of the reason for my

5 question, is I have seen nothing outlining the 500-foot

6 corridor along this way.  I understand where the 1250

7 is, but we were really struggling with would that cover

8 both sides of the mobile home park.

9          I had earlier been wondering myself about

10 whether the notice area of the 500-foot corridor would

11 cover the west side of the railroad tracks.  And it is

12 very hard for me to determine that from what you have

13 presented.  So I would like to see a reflection of the

14 500-foot corridor and the 1250-foot corridor to assist

15 us in making a decision on these various segments.

16          And as Mr. Magruder was going through it, I

17 don't agree with his calculations, but I was doing the

18 calculations in my mind of where it was from the center

19 of the 100-foot right-of-way or the 37-foot that's on

20 the east side of the railway, how far over and across to

21 the west side would that notice area apply.  And I think

22 we need to know that to even anticipate that.

23          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Could we have a map that would

24 show the area in question, along the bosque from south

25 of Cañez up to stop 9 on the tour where the preferred
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1 route and the existing route are close together and the

2 preferred route is along the railroad track, can we have

3 a map that shows where the railroad right-of-way is and

4 how wide it is, where the preferred line is and how wide

5 that 500-foot corridor would be, and where, within that

6 500-foot corridor, you could place the 100-foot

7 right-of-way so that it would be as close to the

8 railroad right-of-way, either east or west of the

9 railroad, and whether that would still be within the

10 area for which notice was given?  Would that -- okay.

11          Member Youle.

12          MEMBER YOULE:  Mr. Chairman.  Is this on?

13          Also, the Chairman had asked for information on

14 Santa Cruz County Flood District, I think contacts with

15 them.  I would also be interested in whether, if you

16 were on the west side of the railroad, if that

17 implicates Corps of Engineers Section 404 permitting

18 requirements, which I think is a major issue.

19          Thank you.

20          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Eberhart.

21          MEMBER EBERHART:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22          Along the same lines as Ms. Noland and Youle

23 requested, the other thing I would like to see on the

24 map or sketch would be the existing right-of-way for the

25 two existing lines in Segment 2.  And if that map could
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1 be overlaid on an aerial exhibit showing the existing

2 improvements to the lots, I think that would be a very

3 powerful tool for the Committee to understand the

4 implications of what exactly selecting one route or the

5 other will happen.

6          And I did see a legal description in the draft

7 CEC.  However, I had two pages 11 and didn't have a page

8 12.  So you need to take a look at the legal

9 description, because that's -- this area is on page 12.

10 And that's the area that I think we want to make sure

11 the legal description is exactly where that centerline

12 of that legal description is, whether it is centered

13 within the 37 and a half feet existing easement or if it

14 is somewhere else.

15          Thank you.

16          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Whalen.

17          MEMBER WHALEN:  If the legal notice allows you

18 to go west, just a thought of why would we go through

19 one section and have to tear out trees.  Could we not

20 perhaps look at the Sonoita area to cross the railroad

21 and then put the entire line along that side if it

22 allows?  Because right now, by doing it at Cañez, you

23 are taking care of the residents that are there now, but

24 potentially you may have other residents in that bosque

25 area.  And if it allows, you may have better dealings
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1 with one landowner on the west.  Just as a thought.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Member Wong.

3          MEMBER WONG:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

4          On further reflection on the issue of placing

5 the poles west following Mr. Whalen's comment is I would

6 like to learn more about the placement of these poles.

7 I think Mr. Beck stated that there would be issues of

8 maintenance, access.

9          Is it an industry standard that this is no

10 longer placed on riverbeds?  Are there other places,

11 other rivers, let's say Pima County or others, that

12 there is actually pole placement along riverbeds?  And

13 how are they secured?  I can recall that there has been

14 pretty big transmission lines in the Phoenix area along

15 the Salt River.  But that has been years ago.  So I

16 would just like to know whether that's still permissible

17 in the industry standard.

18          Thank you.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  And as I am listening to

20 this there is one other thing I would like for you to

21 do.  We had statements, comments, not evidence, but

22 comments from people who lived in this area who were

23 concerned about the preferred placement causing them to

24 come into conflict with county zoning rules.  Can you

25 check on that and see if in fact there would be any
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1 problem if the right-of-way came to them rather than

2 them coming to the right-of-way, and, if so, what

3 concerns would be raised.

4          I mean, it is clear, and I certainly mean no

5 disrespect to any of our friends here in Santa Cruz

6 County, but it is clear that the growth patterns of this

7 area appear to be somewhat at odds with the letter of

8 the law or the letter of the planning and zoning.  And

9 so I am -- I do not want to be put into a position of

10 saying, well, we are going to put you in a position

11 where you are in violation of the law and we don't care

12 about it because we don't think Santa Cruz County has

13 enforced their zoning in the past.  We obviously do not

14 want to do so that.

15          So I think it would be very helpful, to me

16 anyway, to know what consequences would occur if the

17 route east of -- the preferred route, place the poles

18 east of the railroad rather than west of the railroad,

19 and whether the right-of-way could be narrowed in any

20 way so that there would be no consequences or so the

21 consequences would be minimized.

22          Member Noland.

23          MEMBER NOLAND:  I think the question would be

24 would they be grandfathered with the rights that they

25 have because this was subsequent to them building their
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1 structures and building their houses.

2          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  Member Youle.

3          MEMBER YOULE:  One other question.  If it looks

4 like the west side of the river is a possibility and

5 there are forbidding legal impediments to it, I would be

6 interested in knowing how that mitigates some of the

7 critical and endangered species habitat impacts from the

8 prior routes.

9          Thank you.

10          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right.  So we have given you

11 a little homework.  We will take our recess.  We will be

12 in touch.  And we will look forward to getting this

13 resolved as quickly as we can.

14          I am sorry.  Mr. Eberhart.

15          MEMBER EBERHART:  Mr. Chair, I know we have

16 some, two hearings already scheduled for July and

17 August.  Do you offhand know the dates of those to give

18 to the applicant?

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  I do not.

20          MEMBER YOULE:  I have got the list.

21          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Tara or Susie back at the office

22 will be able to tell you that.  But my hope is we can

23 reconvene this before late July.  I would very much like

24 to get this done this month.  I know that that will be

25 difficult with everybody's schedule, and it is always
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1 difficult to try and coordinate as many schedules as we

2 have to coordinate, but I would really like to get this

3 done within the next two or three weeks.

4          MR. DERSTINE:  That's our preference as well.

5 Thank you.

6          CHMN. FOREMAN:  All right, very good.

7          MR. MAGRUDER:  Who will we coordinate schedules

8 with?

9          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Tara Williams --

10          MR. MAGRUDER:  Okay.

11          CHMN. FOREMAN:  -- is one of the secretaries.  I

12 have half of her time.  And Susie Ellis is the other

13 secretary.  I have a quarter of her time.  So I have

14 three-quarters of a secretary.  So one of those two

15 ladies will be in charge of trying to coordinate

16 schedules.

17          MR. MAGRUDER:  I have several key obligations I

18 can't get out of, so I will work on it.

19          CHMN. FOREMAN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you

20 all.

21          (The hearing recessed at 5:02 p.m.)

22

23

24

25
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